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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of Dexin China Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”),
| am pleased to present the audited annual results and business review
and future prospects of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Reporting
Period”).

The year 2023 was a year full of challenges and opportunities for
China’s real estate market. As the population has entered an era
of negative growth and urbanization has entered a latter stage,
the supply-demand relationship of China’s real estate market has
changed, and the industry as a whole has presented a complex
and changeable situation. At the beginning of the year, due to the
concentrated release of backlog demand during the pandemic, the
property market in many places across the country ushered in a wave
of “modest recovery”, but the overall market fundamentals were still
weak, after a short-lived rally, the property market was frozen again.
The real estate industry has experienced a difficult time, access to
financing encountered obstacles, market transactions declined, pre-
sale funds were under stringent regulation, liquidity continued to
tighten, and the industry entered a period of profound adjustment.

In the face of severe market environment and fierce competitive
pressure, the Company insists on ensuring delivery as the focus,
and endeavours to warrant the smooth delivery of its projects.
As we recognize well that on-time delivery is crucial to meeting
the expectations of buyers and is also one of the key elements in
maintaining people’s livelihood. Therefore, we have taken a series of
measures to strengthen project management and quality control to
ensure that our projects are delivered on time, and in agreed quality
and quantity.

Throughout 2023, the Group has delivered approximately 40,000 units
in 49 batches, with a delivered area of 6.20 million sg.m., representing
100% delivery as contracted.
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6 DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

In order to achieve the goal of on-time delivery, we work with
policymakers, financial institutions and real estate companies to jointly
promote on-time delivery. From the “ensuring on-time delivery” policy
first mentioned in July last year to the implementation of “three arrows”
to support the financing of real estate companies, and then to increase
the financial support for guaranteeing the delivery of housing projects
this year, the three parties of policymakers, financial institutions and
housing enterprises have worked together to ensure the smooth
delivery of projects. At the same time, we also actively responded to
the call of the government to strengthen the supervision of pre-sale
funds for real estate projects, prevent the channelling of funds from
their original purposes, and ensure the safety and stability of project
funds.

In 2023, the Company adhered to the strategy of building up land
reserve in first - and second-tier cities to ensure the long-term
development and stable growth of the Company. We recognize that
first - and second-tier cities are the core areas of China’s economic
development, and also an important support for the real estate market.
By the end of 2023, our land reserve in first - and second-tier cities
has reached 80% of our portfolio. The Company has always taken
the first- and second-tier cities as an essential component of the
Company’s land reserve, and consolidating high-quality land resources
in the Yangtze River Delta region will be a strong backup for the future
development of the Company.

In terms of operating results, despite the difficult times experienced by
the real estate industry, the Company’s total revenue achieved stable
growth. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded a
total revenue of approximately RMB24.51 billion, representing a year-
on-year increase of approximately 10.7%. Among which, revenue
from the sales of properties was RMB23.98 billion, representing a
year-on-year increase of 12.9%. The main revenue contributors were
those cities like Hangzhou, Wenzhou and Shanghai where the Group
has involved in their development for a long time, which played the
functional role of the Company by focusing on the core regions at the
critical moment.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

During the Reporting Period, the Group was elected as one of the
“Top 100 Private Enterprises in Hangzhou 2023” and ranked 16th
among the “Top 50 Private Enterprises in Hangzhou 2023”. This is a
recognition of the Group’s outstanding performance in the real estate
industry and the service sector.

Honor is recognition, and also the motivation to move forward, which
will motivate us to continue to excel ourselves.

In 2023, the Chinese government introduced a series of real estate
control policies to ensure the smooth operation of the property
market. Among which: the introduction of a series of relaxation policies
such as easing interest rates, optimizing land supply and eliminating
purchase restrictions, which shows the importance of the real estate
industry in the national economy. As the country has confidence in
us, we should have greater confidence. In the face of difficulties in the
market, we did not shrink back, but met the challenges with more faith
and determination. We know well that adversity is the litmus test of
corporate strength and resilience.

In the coming year, we will always take delivery of quality products as
the premise, and follow the direction of sustainable development, we
will forge ahead in adversity, and live up to the trust of shareholders
and customers.

Finally, on behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of the Company, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all the shareholders for their support to the Company and
all the employees for their dedication to the Company over the past
year.
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8 DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB N D

GENERAL OVERVIEW

In 2023, economic activities in different countries were slowly
recovering from the COVID-19. However, there was insufficient
momentum for economic growth. In the first year of recovery after the
COVID-19, although the global supply chain had returned to normal,
production and demand were still affected by high interest rates and
economic downturn. Political risks and energy supply issues were
gradually receding, but the United States and the euro zone were
still plagued by inflation and monetary policy tightening. High interest
rates posed a challenge to economic recovery. In 2023, both the US
and Europe saw significant changes in their interest rate policies as
they navigated the economic challenges of the post-pandemic era.
The European Central Bank maintained historically high interest rates.
This was part of a broader strategy to balance recession risks with
inflationary pressures. Similarly, the Federal Reserve in the US ended
the year with high federal funds rate. These rates were set against
the backdrop of inflation stabilization and were expected to decrease
gradually between 2024 and 2026.

In terms of the domestic economy, the annual GDP of China grew
by 5.2% year-on-year. Under the optimization and upgrade of the
domestic economic structure, the real estate sector was still in the
process of deep adjustment and transformation. The national real
estate development investment amounted to RMB11,091.3 billion,
representing a decrease of 9.6% as compared to last year. The sales
area of commercial housing was 1,117.35 million sg.m., representing
a decrease of 8.5% as compared to last year. The sales of commercial
housing amounted to RMB11,662.2 billion, representing a decrease
of 6.5%. The construction area for housing was 8,383.64 million
sg.m., representing a decrease of 7.2% as compared to last year.
The data showed that both the investment and sales have declined.
At the policy level, despite the gradual relaxation of controls in many
areas, the effect on demand was trivial and sales remained sluggish.
There was a circular impact on the investment and supply ends due
to the continuous lack of improvement in sales and financing. Positive
progress was made on the delivery front. The gross floor area of
housing completed amounted to 998.31 million sq.m., representing an
increase of 17.0%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The year 2023 was marked by a slow and cautious recovery from
the COVID-19. While there were signs of improvement, such as the
normalization of the global supply chain and the receding of political
risks and energy supply issues, challenges remained. High interest
rates, economic downturn, inflation, and the tightening of monetary
policies in the United States and the Eurozone were significant hurdles
on the path to recovery. The global economy was on the mend, but
the journey to full recovery was still underway.

In 2023, the Group recorded total revenue of approximately
RMB24,509.8 million and gross profit of approximately RMB1,799.3
million, up 10.7% and down 17.4% year-on-year respectively. In 2023,
contracted sales recorded approximately RMB22,160 million, down
38.6% year-on-year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group derives its revenue primarily from sales of properties and,
to a lesser extent, property construction and project management
services, lease of commercial properties and hotel operations. For the
year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded a total revenue
of approximately RMB24,509.8 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 10.7%.

Contracted sales

For the year ended 31 December 2023, including those of joint
ventures and associates, the Group recorded contracted sales
of approximately RMB22,160 million, representing a year-on-
year decrease of approximately 38.6%, and contracted GFA sales
of approximately 1,195,000 sg.m., representing a year-on-year
decrease of approximately 39.4%. The average selling price (“ASP”)
of our contracted sales for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
approximately RMB18,544 per sg.m., representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 1.4%.
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10 DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB N D

Sales of properties

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the revenue from sales
of properties increased by approximately 12.9% year-on-year to
approximately RMB23,976 million, accounting for approximately 97.8%
of the total revenue of the Group. For the year ended 31 December
20283, the Group recognised total GFA of approximately 1,320,337
sg.m., representing an increase of approximately 24.3% as compared
to the year ended 31 December 2022. The ASP of the properties
recognised as property sales was approximately RMB18,159 per
sg.m., representing a decrease of approximately 9.2% year-on-year.
The decrease of ASP was mainly due to the increase in the recognised
GFA of areas with lower ASP.

The following table sets out the recognised sales and GFA sold of each
city for the year ended 31 December 2023:

HE2023F12A31HILFE - WEHERA
FILEIENN4I12.9% EH AR 23,976 B E L
(RAREB AW ARHIO7.8% ° HLE2023F12
A31BLEFE  AEBECHRALELETDELY
1,320,337 F 5K - &E E2022F12831H 1k
FELHK24.3% - BREBMEHEE 2WERN
FHEEBNATF R ARAARE18,1597T © Rkt
TRE#I9.2% - FHEB TREIERANTHE
EBRENME D EREEE AL MATE -

TREFHEE2023F12A31BILFELHH D
BRIHEELRDEREMAE ¢

Recognised
Recognised ASP
GFA B2 | Recognised
BERA THEE revenue
BEEE RMB/sq.m. EERAKA
sqg.m. ARM%x,/ RMB’000
City WH TR T K ARET
Hangzhou UM 377,760 25,170 9,508,138
Wenzhou BN 228,255 18,310 4,179,440
Shanghai ey 47,120 44,784 2,110,210
Xuzhou I 176,891 10,656 1,884,935
Kunshan Bl 92,982 13,635 1,267,798
Chengdu &R 99,124 12,749 1,263,720
Zhoushan Al 65,779 16,705 1,098,838
Xian Fiifzs 83,555 10,660 890,670
Nanjing EhR 40,118 17,643 707,782
Jingjiang 5L 75,824 8,603 652,323
Wuxi m55 5,891 23,230 136,850
Foshan # Il 19,503 6,972 135,977
Huzhou M 6,180 18,516 114,424
Ningbo B 928 18,586 17,255
Taizhou &M 219 18,203 3,990
Wuhan % 107 24,171 2,575
Suzhou #x N 101 12,701 1,278
Total &5t 1,320,337 18,159 23,976,203
Note: Kiat -
Recognised revenue in the above table includes the revenue from residences, LtXREHERBWABEBEETE BEZMW - EHE5M#

commercial spaces, car parks and storage spaces, and recognised GFA does
not include the GFA of car parks and storage spaces.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Property construction and project management
services

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the revenue from property
construction and project management services decreased by
approximately 57.4% year-on-year to approximately RMB246.2 million,
accounting for approximately 1.0% of the total revenue of the Group.
The decrease was primarily attributable to a decrease in the volume of
our construction and project management services for our projects in
operation.

Management and consulting service income

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the revenue from management
and consulting service income decreased by approximately 14.2%
year-on-year to approximately RMB141.9 million, accounting for
approximately 0.6% of the total revenue of the Group. The decrease
was primarily attributable to the decrease in the sales of the joint
ventures and associates in service during the Reporting Period.

Lease of commercial properties

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the revenue from rental
income decreased by approximately 12.0% year-on-year to
approximately RMB91.5 million, accounting for approximately 0.4% of
the total revenue of the Group. The decrease was primarily attributable
to the decrease in the occupancy rate of rental properties during the
Reporting Period.

Hotel operations

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the revenue from hotel
operations decreased by approximately 0.6% year-on-year to
approximately RMB54.1 million, accounting for approximately 0.2% of
the total revenue of the Group. The decrease was primarily attributable
to the decrease of occupancy rate for the year ended 31 December
2023 as compared to the previous year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB N D

Investment properties REYE

The following table sets out a summary of the Group’s investment  FRIIRKR2023F12 A1 HAEBEREME
properties as at 31 December 2023: WmeE :

Total rental income

for the year ended

Total GFA 31 December

held for Leased ER ARSI A
investment GFA BelARR
RFERER 5%k 2023 2022
REEER g 20235 20225
Project (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
EHE (7 K) (7K | (ARETR) | (ARETR)
1 Hangzhou Konggang City 107,068 9,625 8,460 =
A ZE B
2 Hangzhou Sky City 68,915 64,728 13,622 6,393
Al REZR
3] Hangzhou Elegant Mansion 33,278 25,820 6,480 9,727
M SUERER
4 Hangzhou Yuanju Dothink Centre 20,092 = = =
A REEEP O
5 Hangzhou Hangzhou One 17,536 17,536 6,797 9,722
A /M One
6 Hangzhou Yinhu Technology Park 15,429 14,090 - -
M AR E
7 Hangzhou Hangzhou Wings 14,287 14,287 13,401 14,001
M MMz E
8 Xuzhou Sky Scraper 84,418 30,981 6,575 7,021
&M JUBES 1R
9 Xuzhou Xincheng Community Commercial 3,949 1,681 - -
&N G =UN =
10 Huzhou Delan Square 13,082 9,471 3,239 3,650
M EERS
11 Nanjing Nanjing Xianlinzhigu Project 60,510 3,043 3,526 =
2 RIS A
12 Shanghai Shanghai Songjiang Industrial Park 58,176 26,909 2,356 1,567
i} EBMITHERE
13 Taizhou Shenxian Garden 51,606 14,895 3,073 3,433
aM f =

12 DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED EEHEZEREBRAE



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W& DN

Total rental income

for the year ended

31 December

Total GFA BZ12A31HLEEN
held for Leased = Ao\ B =
investment GFA _
BEREN EHEE 2023 2022
MESEEE (L 20234 20224
Project (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
1HE (EHRK) (EEXR) | (AR%TR) | (ARETR)
14 Beijing Beijing Suiyu Youth Community Apartment 5,711 3,590 - 11,712
= TREEEFHLRAS
554,057 236,656 67,529 67,226
Other rental income 23,948 36,709
HipHES WA
Total st 91,477 103,935

The Group will further improve the efficiency in development and
operation of its investment properties to ensure stable rental income
growth, and to strengthen earnings sustainability.

Land reserves

Leveraging on the Group’s deep understanding of the property
markets in our key development areas and intensive studies on its
target cities, the Group continued to strategically select and acquire
parcels of land at strategic and advantageous locations in those
regions and cities in order to further develop the Group’s presence
in those markets. As of 31 December 2023, the Group (together with
its joint ventures and associates) had 134 projects with land reserves
amounting to approximately 10,110,017 sqg.m., of which 113 projects
were located in the Yangtze River Delta Region, and the remaining 21
projects were located in the Pearl River Delta, Chengdu-Chongging
economic areas, the economic belt of middle reaches of Yangtze River
and other regions.

AEBBE - REREVENRE ELL
BRHE  BEESWAREERR - MEBHA

HENE -
i

BENEHMBEREHETNSHRZEREI K&
B EWMARAIT - NG B EES R4
EEVWEZSHE RN TEB BB ERAE
BT ME—PHEAEERZETS
¥R - BIE2023F12H31H » AEE (EF
HEZECERBE AR 134EEB A L i#
#H#/10,110,017F 5K - HAR113{E15 B L
RE=AE - 2 21 8B B 5 56 R B
= KBERLERRRIFHEETSMH
[& o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB N D

The following table sets out the GFA of the Group’s land reserves FNREFIAEB (EREA S DE MBS NF])
(together with its joint ventures and associates) by geographical & ZE2023%12 831 BIZHIE(I & 219 #) L i

locations as of 31 December 2023: HEEEMERE
Total Land Percentage of
reserves GFA total land bank
& i 1 & Mo 2 55
BEEEE HELH
(sq.m.) (%)
City WH (E75K) (%)
Hangzhou Al 2,779,809 27.5%
Nanjing R 900,880 8.9%
Taizhou a M 864,807 8.6%
Wenzhou BN 844,982 8.4%
Chengdu &R 690,469 6.8%
Ningbo =K 637,648 6.3%
Xuzhou I 622,324 6.2%
Wuhan BZ 556,137 5.5%
Huzhou Pl 543,376 5.4%
Quzhou gl 358,890 3.5%
Zhengzhou ZH M 312,117 3.1%
Foshan 1l 266,716 2.6%
Zhangzhou EM 201,039 2.0%
Guangzhou =0 153,159 1.5%
Jingjiang UpaN 149,846 1.5%
Shanghai B! 69,401 0.7%
Kunshan B 68,171 0.7%
Xian [iikq 37,966 0.4%
Shangrao & 32,496 0.3%
u.s. 15 12,143 0.1%
Changzhou N 4,606 0.0%
Zhoushan Al 2,071 0.0%
Wuxi 15 964 0.0%
10,110,017 100%

14 DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED EEHEZEREBRAE



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Overall performance

During the year ended 31 December 2023, total revenue of the Group
was approximately RMB24,509.8 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of approximately 10.7%. Gross profit was approximately
RMB1,799.3 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 17.4%. Gross profit margin was approximately 7.3%,
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 2.5 percentage
points. Net loss of the Group recorded approximately RMB1,960.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2023. Loss attributable to
owners of the Company decreased by approximately 685.7% year-
on-year to approximately RMB2,188.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2023.

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded a total
revenue of approximately RMB24,509.8 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of approximately 10.7%. The increase was primarily
attributable to the increase in revenue from sales of properties.
Specifically, revenue from the sales of properties was approximately
RMB23,976.2 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 12.9%, accounting for approximately 97.8% of the
total revenue of the Group; revenue from property construction
and project management service was approximately RMB246.2
million, representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately
57.4% accounting for approximately 1.0% of the total revenue of
the Group; revenue from management and consulting services
was approximately RMB141.9 million, representing a year-on-year
decrease of approximately 14.2%, accounting for approximately
0.6% of the total revenue of the Group; rental income from the
lease of commercial properties was approximately RMB91.5 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 12.0%,
accounting for approximately 0.4% of the total revenue of the Group;
and revenue from hotel operations was approximately RMB54.1
million, representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 0.6%,
accounting for approximately 0.2% of the total revenue of the Group.

BEER W& DN

1 %5 (51 A
1 B30

HZE2023F12A31HLFE  AEEAWK
AN BEANREE24,509.8F8 T B EAL
10.7% ° EFIKAARYA,799.38 8T ' ALt
WAET7.4% o EFIERL BT7.3%  BLERDL
25EBE DB - HE2023F12A31HILEFE -
AEBEBFEBOAARE1,960.38& T °
EHZE2023F12A31HIEFE @ KNARHEA AJE
1HEER LR 4685 7% EH AR HE2,188.9
BET -

A

B E2023F12A31HLEFE - AEEESE
WA# BARE24,500.8E& T AL EF
#10.7% - EELAETERARYEHEEKRA
BMATE - BBEME  MEHERANAAR
#23,976. 2B BT  EIEIMNA12.9% @ (hA%E
B AH#07.8%  MERERIERTER
BURAHBARE246.25E7T ' BLLE DL
57.4%  EAREEBLKRAKND1.0%  BEER
BHARBURANDEARE141.988 T © Bt
WAL HI14.2% - EREEBIRAKL0.6% :
BENMERENHSWANABARKII 5HE
TT 0 AR #12.0% @ (G AEBEZLKRA N
0.4% : ARBEEZWANRARES418B
Bt BHRADE0.6%  EAEEBIKRARNEL
0.2% °
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16 DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB N D

Cost of sales

The cost of sales of the Group primarily consists of the costs incurred
directly in relation to the property development and sales activities,
property construction and project management services, lease of
commercial properties and hotel operations.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the cost of sales of the Group
was approximately RMB22,710.6 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 13.7%.

Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the gross profit of the Group
was approximately RMB1,799.3 million, representing a year-on-
year decrease of approximately 17.4%. The decrease was primarily
because overall gross profit margin decreased from approximately
9.8% for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately 7.3%
for the year ended 31 December 2023. The overall gross profit margin
decreased by approximately 2.5 percentage points. The decrease in
overall gross profit margin is primarily attributable to the increase in the
cost of sales of the recognized projects during the Reporting Period.

Other income

The Group had other income of approximately RMB92.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023, as compared to approximately
RMB126.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2022. The other
income mainly included interest income from related party and third
party amounts of approximately RMB7.9 million, income of guarantee
provided for the borrowings of joint ventures and associates of
approximately RMBO.7 million and others of approximately RMB84.0
million (for the year ended 31 December 2022: interest income from
related party and third party amounts of approximately RMB36.5
million, income of guarantee provided for the borrowings of joint
ventures and associates of approximately RMB8.5 million and others
of approximately RMB81.3 million). The decrease was primarily
attributable to a year-on-year decrease in the number of the joint
ventures and associates in service during the Reporting Period.

BETHRERERAA

AEENHERATERRMERERKHER
B MEZENEREERY BEWEEES
KB 5B E B EE R -

HE2023F12A31BILFE - KAEEMNHEE
Bt

ERARLG BARE22 710.6 B&EIT @ BIELIE L
13.7% ©
EF

EHZE2023F12A31HIEFE - ZEBMHEFNL
ABARKE1,799.3BE T - AR 4I17.4% -
BRARLETERHREREMNKRAEE2022F
12831 B IEFEMA9.8% R EEH E2023F 12
AS1AILLFEMNLT7.3% - BEEFRTRLY
25MEDE - BEEFNEXTREEHNMED
WIE B 45888 & R A S INFT BN

Htig A

HE2023F12A31HILEFE  AEBSBSEM
WA BARBI2.6EET * HE2022F 124
STHIEFEAHBAOARARKI1264B&ETT °
Hin WA X ZBRIER BT RE=FRIBL
BARBTIOBEEBTHFEWA EERER
BEE DN RERRBEROBANAARKLTE
BrhEMOBARYS4.0E8E T (FHZE2022
F12A31BIEEE - RE@E T RE=KIE
HABAREICEEETHFEWA - REED
EREEDNRABRIEREROBADAARE
SS5EBTREMNAARKSIZERT) ' &
BEROEZEHRBFERNRERTNEEDE
REtE N TIE A R



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other losses - net

The Group recorded net other losses of approximately RMB212.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2023 (for the year ended
31 December 2022: net other losses of approximately RMB85.1
million). The Group’s net other losses for the year ended 31 December
2023 mainly included exchange losses of approximately RMB48.1
million, losses on disposal of subsidiaries of approximately RMB88.5
million and other losses of approximately RMB103.4 million. The
Group’s net other losses for the year ended 31 December 2022
mainly included losses on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss of approximately RMB36.0 million, losses on disposal of
subsidiaries approximately RMB121.3 million and exchange losses of
approximately RMB110.3 million.

Fair value (losses)/gains on investment properties

The Group develops and holds certain of its commercial properties
such as commercial centres, office buildings, shopping malls, serviced
apartments and car parks for rental income or capital appreciation,
or both. Any increase or decrease in the Group’s investment property
value is recognised as fair value gains or losses in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded fair value
losses on investment properties of approximately RMB533.4 million
(for the year ended 31 December 2022: fair value losses on investment
properties of approximately RMB25.8 million), which was primarily
attributable to the fair value losses of some projects.

Selling and marketing expenses

The Group’s selling and marketing expenses increased by
approximately 22.73% year-on-year from approximately RMB689.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately
RMB845.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2023. Taking
the selling and marketing expenses that were capitalized in contract
acquisition costs into account, total selling and marketing expenses
for the year ended 31 December 2023 increased, compared to the
previous year. The increase was primarily attributable to the increase in
the capitalized sales of recognized properties and the selling expenses
during the Reporting Period.

BEER W& DN

Hit R

BHZE2023F12A31BIEFE  AEEHBE
HBEFEOAARE212.48 8T (B E2022
F12ABNBLILEFE : AMEBEFEHNA/ARK
85 1HET) - NEEEE2023F12A31H 1
FEMHMBBFEIZRREELBEANAA
R#48 1858 HEMBRARBBRHNAAR
e85 EB T RHEMEBENARARK103.48
BT - REEEHZE2022F12A31B ILFEME
BB FEFERRERAABAETEAEY
HAERNEREEBSENAARYKIG.0EE
T HENBARMNEBLNAARK121.38
BTRELEEHNAAREI103EBET

REWMEDAEE (BB WE

AEBERBELFHEETHEDE (PIEEF
O MAE - BYES  BEARBRESR
%) - AERBUE S WA KIS E IR EHME R
5B AEEREMENAEXRELSERA
SEGEEMBEHRRTER/ DA BERDEHE
18-

B E2023F12A31RLEFE - AEBERSERE
MEAREBEEBBHNABARES33.485E T (H
ZE2022F12 A1 AIEFE : WEMELAEE
BERHBARMKE258FET)  TEEHNEMD
BEARBERIE -

REBNIEEREHAIHEZE2022F12 531
HIEFEMOAAREEG89.25 & T LL1E N
4922.73% = #H E2023F 12 A31HIEFEMH
BARMKBA5.8E BT o Lt RN E WK
RERE 2 HE REHFRZE - BIE2023512
ABBILEEZHEREHAXBER LFE
FRIgH o IS MEERBRRMERNEE Y
B E L HE RITBUHE R SIE INFTEL -
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18 DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB N D

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by approximately
21.2% year-on-year from approximately RMB870.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB1,054.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023. The increase was primarily
attributable to the impact of provision for impairment of inventories and
receivables during the Reporting Period as a result of the impact of the
macroeconomic situation and the downturn in the real estate market.

Finance costs - net

Finance costs of the Group increased by approximately 260.2% year-
on-year from approximately RMB97.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately RMB352.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2023. The increase was primarily attributable to the
increase in finance costs of amounts due to non-controlling interests
and related parties and the decrease in deductible capitalised interest
and income from bank deposits.

Share of results of joint ventures and associates

The Group accounts for the results of joint ventures and associates
using the equity method, which mainly represent the share of profits
related to the projects delivered during the relevant period that have
been offset by losses incurred by other joint ventures and associates.

Share of results of joint ventures and associates decreased by
approximately 132.6% year-on-year from profits of approximately
RMB626.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to a loss
of approximately RMB204.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2023. The decrease was primarily attributable to the GFA of properties
delivered from joint ventures and associates decreased year-on-year
during the year.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses of the Group decreased by approximately 35.1%
year-on-year from approximately RMB1,000.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB649.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023, which was primarily attributable to a
year-on-year decrease in the profit before tax during the year and the
decrease in the overall gross profit margin of the projects.

BETHRERERAA

TR

AEEMTHRASAEZE2022F12A31HIEF
M A ANRES70.58 & TLRLLIEINE21.2%
EHZE20283F12A31ALFEMNHNAARE
1,054.8B BT - ZEMEBRHNZ RBLRE
FEREHEMBEEROZE  REPARTRE
FEMEKRIEREERB ZZERY -

BB R AR

AEBHEE K ABEZE2022F12 4318 IEF
EMHAAREI7.OR E TR IENA260.2%
SEHZE20283F12A31HIEFENHNABARE
352.5B&TT o ZIEMIIEE AR ENFEZER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

As a result of the foregoing reasons, the Group’s profit and total
comprehensive income decreased by approximately 1,313.6% from
approximately RMB161.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 to loss of approximately RMB1,960.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2023. The profit attributable to owners of the Company
decreased by approximately 685.7% from approximately RMB373.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to the loss attributable to
owners of the Company approximately RMB2,188.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

The basic and diluted losses per share of the Company is RMB0.74
per share for the year ended 31 December 2023, representing
a decrease of approximately 628.6% from earnings per share of
RMBO0.14 for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group has always pursued a prudent treasury management policy
and actively manages its liquidity position with sufficient standby
banking facilities to cope with daily operation and any demands for
capital for future development.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group funded its
operations, working capital, capital expenditure and other capital
requirements primarily from cash generated from its operations, mainly
including proceeds from the pre-sales and sales of properties, receipt
of rental income, income generated from investment properties, as well
as bank loans and borrowings from other financial institutions.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had a total cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash of approximately RMB4,745.2 million
as compared to approximately RMB7,375.2 million as of 31 December
2022. The decrease was primarily due to the decrease in proceeds
from sales of properties. Substantially all of the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents were denominated in RMB, USD and HKD.

BEER W& DN

FAFNERZE B EAE

EREMRE  AEBEOFBRE2EW=EE
HEZE2022F 12 A31HIEFEMH A AR
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STHIEFEMNAARBIIS7TEE LRI L
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB N D

During the year ended 31 December 2023, addition of borrowings
obtained by the Group amounted to approximately RMB1,483.0 million
and reduction of borrowings amounted to approximately RMB6,265.4
million. As of 31 December 2023, the Group’s total borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB16,408.7 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 22.6% compared to approximately
RMB21,191.1 million as of 31 December 2022. Amongst the
borrowings, approximately RMB13,449.9 million (as at 31 December
2022: approximately RMB9,340.6 million) shall be repayable within one
year and approximately RMB2,958.8 million (as at 31 December 2022:
approximately RMB11,850.5 million) shall be repayable after one year.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had total facilities from banks
and other financial institutions of approximately RMB48,500 million
and unused facilities from banks and other financial institutions of
approximately RMB37,340 million.

Key financial ratios

As of 31 December 2023, the Group’s net gearing ratio (calculated
as the total borrowings from banks and other financial institutions net
of restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents divided by total equity)
was approximately 96.4%, an increase by 27.8 percentage points as
compared with approximately 68.7% as of 31 December 2022. The
increase was primarily attributable to the decrease in total assets.

The Group’s current ratio was calculated based on its total current
assets divided by its total current liabilities as of the respective dates.
The Group’s current ratio had slightly decreased from approximately
1.26 times as of 31 December 2022 to approximately 1.08 times as of
31 December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates its business in China. Other than the
foreign currency denominated bank deposits, bank borrowings
and senior notes, the Group did not have any other material direct
exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations for the year ended 31
December 2023. Although RMB depreciated against U.S. dollar and
Hong Kong dollar in 2023, the Directors expect that such fluctuation of
RMB’s exchange rate would not have material adverse effects on the
operation of the Group.

The Group will closely monitor the exchange rate risk regularly and
make foreign exchange hedging arrangement when necessary. The
Group considers that no foreign exchange hedging arrangement is
needed currently.

Pledge of assets

As of 31 December 2023, certain of the Group’s borrowings from
banks and other financial institutions were secured by its properties
held for sale, properties under development, land use rights
and investment properties, with carrying value of approximately
RMB20,315.0 million as of 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022:
approximately RMB34,514.9 million). The Group’s equity interests in
certain subsidiaries were pledged as security for borrowing as at 31
December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB N D

Commitments

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had commitments that are

contracted but not provided as follows:

iR

HZE2023F12A318 » NEEDFT LB RERE

Y ERFELT ¢

31 December
2023
2023%F

128318
(RMB’000)
(AR¥T )

31 December
2022

20224
12H31H
(RMB’000)
(AREETIT)

Property development activities S E RO ) 7,853,555 13,419,552
Property, plant and equipment E R Gy 151,830 43,361
Investment properties wEYE 434,009 357,125
Total &% 8,439,394 13,820,038
Financial guarantees and contingent liabilities HEERERRAEE

As of 31 December 2023, the Group’s total financial guarantees are as

follows:

Guarantee in respect of mortgage facilities

BETERNRBHE

HZE2023F12A310 » AEBRMGBERARE

m -

31 December
2023

2023%F
12A31H
(RMB’000)
(AR T T)

31 December
2022
20224

12A31H
(RMB’000)
(AR¥TFT)

for certain purchasers REHER 5,374,129 16,036,093
Guarantee provided for the borrowings of MEELEREERAIER
joint ventures and associates TR R (R 1,498,849 2,937,695
Total &% 6,872,978 18,973,788
22 DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED  f&f&shEZR AR AT



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group has arranged bank mortgage financing for certain
purchasers of the Group’s property units and provided guarantees
to the relevant banks to secure repayment obligations of such
purchasers. As of 31 December 2023, the maximum amount of
guarantees provided by the Group to the relevant banks for the
mortgage arrangements of the Group’s purchasers amounted to
approximately RMB5,374.1 million (31 December 2022: approximately
RMB16,036.1 million). These include guarantees which will be
terminated upon the earlier of the following two dates: (i) the date
when the property ownership rights are transferred to the purchasers,
and the related building ownership certificates to which banks are
beneficiaries are registered, or (ii) the date when mortgage loans are
settled between the mortgagee banks and the purchasers, under
the circumstance that the purchasers pay off the purchase price in
advance.

Pursuant to the terms of these guarantees, if any of the Group’s
property purchasers default in their repayment obligations to the
banks, the Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage
principal together with accrued interest and penalty owed by the
defaulting purchasers to the banks and thereupon the Group is entitled
to take over the legal title and possession of the relevant property
units. The Group’s guarantee period starts from the dates of grant of
the mortgage facilities to its purchasers by the relevant banks.

The Group provided guarantees for borrowings of its joint ventures and
associates, which amounted to approximately RMB1,498.8 million as
of 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: approximately RMB2,937.7
million). The relevant borrowings were primarily from banks to finance
property development projects of these joint ventures and associates,
whereby the land use rights of the joint ventures and associates were
pledged to the banks and the Group’s guarantee was provided in
addition to the pledges. As the fair value of the relevant land use rights
pledged by the relevant joint ventures and associates are generally
higher than the borrowing amounts, the Group’s credit risk exposure
associated with such guarantee is contained.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had no other material contingent
liabilities.
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Significant investments, material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures

On 6 April 2023, Ningbo Houdong Real Estate Information &
Consulting Co., Ltd. (2% B R EHE (= S5 8H6 R A7) as the vendor,
an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an equity transfer agreement with Zhongyi Ningbo Eco-garden
Holding Co., Ltd. (& %K £ L BT’ EEBR A7) as the purchaser,
pursuant to which the vendor agreed to sell and the purchaser agreed
to purchase 100% equity interest in Yuyao Houxin Property Co. Ltd.
(RIKEFEBEEABRAR]) (a then indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) at a consideration of RMB372,540,000. For details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 6 April 2023.

On 11 May 2023, Zhejiang Junfeng Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.
IR LM EEIE AR A7) as the vendor, an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an equity transfer
agreement with Hangzhou Yuhong Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.
FINE P EEIB AR AT as the purchaser, pursuant to which the
vendor agreed to sell and the purchaser agreed to purchase 35%
equity interest in Wuhu Dingxiang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(FH R R ER AR A F]) at a consideration of RMB102,000,000.
For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
11 May 2023.

On 28 June 2023, Dexin Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. (B E&E
AR AT as the vendor, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an equity transfer agreement with Hangzhou
Chenxu Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. (Ii/NRE D EER AR A7)
as the purchaser, pursuant to which the vendor agreed to sell and the
purchaser agreed to purchase 70% equity interest in Beijing Xinleging
Property Management Co., Ltd. (Qt R EEMEZTIEFRAF) at a
consideration of RMB207,547,945.23. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 28 June 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 25 July 20283, Zhejiang Jingrun Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.
IR ECEEEGMRAR]) (“Zhejiang Jingrun’) as the purchaser,
an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the Equity Transfer Agreement | jointly with Hangzhou Zhenkun
Investment Co., Ltd. (JUNE#IRE B R A7) (“Vendor I”), Hangzhou
Zheyu Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. (IR EERER A F)
(“Target Company I”), and Deqging Lvcheng Zheyu Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. (BB E X BRAR]) (“Project Company 1”), pursuant to
which Vendor | agreed to sell and Zhejiang Jingrun agreed to purchase
45.5% equity interests in Target Company | at a consideration of
RMB81,900,000.

On 25 July 2023, Zhejiang Jingrun entered into the Equity Transfer
Agreement Il jointly with Yucheng Group Co., Ltd. (F#EEK K
BRAR]) (“Vendor II”), Target Company |, and Project Company
I, pursuant to which Vendor Il agreed to sell and Zhejiang Jingrun
agreed to purchase 10% equity interests in Target Company | at a
consideration of RMB18,000,000.

On 25 July 2023, Zhejiang Jingrun entered into the Equity Transfer
Agreement Il jointly with Hangzhou Zhezhen Enterprise Management
Co., Ltd. (MM ERLEERBAER A7) (“Vendor III”), Zhejiang
Runguan Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. (T ETB R EEEERE A
Al) (“Target Company II”), and Deging Lvxin Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(BB IEBEE AR QA (“Project Company II”), pursuant to which
Vendor Il agreed to sell and Zhejiang Jingrun agreed to purchase
45.5% equity interests in Target Company Il at a consideration of
RMB81,900,000.

On 25 July 2023, Zhejiang Jingrun entered into the Equity Transfer
Agreement IV jointly with Vendor Il, Target Company Il and Project
Company II, and Vendor Il agreed to sell and Zhejiang Jingrun
agreed to purchase 10% equity interests in Target Company Il at a
consideration of RMB18,000,000.

For details of the above acquisitions, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 25 July 2023.
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On 24 August 2023, Hangzhou Desheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. (fii/!
mHEEBEXEAEMRAR]) (an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company) (“Hangzhou Desheng”), Hangzhou Deyin Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (/M= RE ZER A F]) (an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company) (“Hangzhou Deyin”), Hangzhou Kaishen
Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. (Ml PEEEBR A &) (an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) (“Hangzhou
Kaishen”), Hangzhou Konggang Real Estate Co., Ltd. (fi/N =8 & %
AR AT (an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company)
(“Hangzhou Konggang”), as the vendors, entered into separate
transfer agreements of underground parking space (the “Target
Parking Spaces”) use rights with Hangzhou Junde Commercial
Operations Management Co., Ltd. (/B EmEELEEAR A
Al) (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Dexin Services Group
Limited ((ZzREEBEFR A7) (“Hangzhou Junde”), pursuant to
which, Hangzhou Junde has conditionally agreed to purchase and
each of Hangzhou Desheng, Hangzhou Deyin, Hangzhou Kaishen
and Hangzhou Konggang has conditionally agreed to sell the rights-
of-use of the Target Parking Spaces at an aggregate consideration
of RMB211,435,000. On 24 August 2023, in view of the disposal of
the Target Parking Spaces, the Company and Dexin Services Group
Limited (f25iRE £ BB A R]) (“Dexin Services”) entered into a
termination agreement to terminate the Parking Space Leasing and
Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement dated 9 June 2022 and
entered into by the Company and Dexin Services upon and subject to
the completion of disposal of the Target Parking Spaces.

On 24 August 2023, Deqging Moganshan Dexin Movie City
Development Co., Ltd. (BBETFLEEXLRMFAZEERAA) (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) (“Dexin Movie
City”), as the Vendor, entered into an equity transfer agreement
with Dexin Shengquan Property Services Co., Ltd. (E{5E 2R
%A A 7)) (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Dexin Services)
(“Shengquan Property”), pursuant to which, Shengquan Property has
conditionally agreed to acquire and Dexin Movie City has conditionally
agreed to sell the 100% equity interest in Deging Moganshan Ruijing
Real Estate Co., Ltd. (2 E T ILInEEE X B A7) at a consideration
of RMB90,000,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For details of the above disposals, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 9 June 2022, 23 September 2022 and 24
August 2023.

Hangzhou Konggang Real Estate Co., Ltd., an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, as the borrower, and Hangzhou
Branch of Bank of Wenzhou Co., Ltd., as the lender, have entered
into four loan agreements (the “Loan Agreements”) during the period
from 27 November 2020 to 29 June 2021. The lender provided loans
to the borrower in an aggregate amount of RMB840 million, which
were originally due during the period from 26 November 2022 to 25
June 2023. Upon amicable negotiations between the lender and the
borrower, the parties entered into four loan extension agreements in
relation to the Loan Agreements, agreeing to extend the repayment
due dates of such loans to 24 November 2024.

For details of the aforementioned matters, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 10 February 2023.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not make any material
investments during the Reporting Period and there was no other
material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures by the Group during the Reporting Period.

Future plans for material investments

The Group will continue to invest in its property development projects
and acquire suitable land parcels, if it thinks fit. These investments
will be funded by internal resources and external borrowings. Save as
disclosed above, the Group did not have any future plans for material
investments as of the date of this annual report.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

The Group firmly believes that talent is the most important corporate
resource and always adheres to a people-oriented human resources
development strategy, creating a sound working environment featuring
harmonious development and positive interaction between the Group
and its staff. As of 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of
1,273 (31 December 2022: 1,561) employees. Total expenditure on
salary and welfare of the Group’s employees for the year ended 31
December 2023 amounted to approximately RMB423.2 million (for the
year ended 31 December 2022: approximately RMB713.2 million).

Besides, the Group endeavors to establish an incentive system
aligned to the corporate development objective to improve employee
engagement. Meanwhile, with an aim to establish an open-ended
organization, the Group keeps optimizing the organizational structure,
empowering the base-level employees and improving efficiency.

The Group has adopted a system of determining the remuneration of
employees based on the performance of employees. In general, the
Group provides competitive remuneration packages to employees,
which include basic salaries, performance-based rewards and year-
end bonus. The Group also pays social security insurance for the
Group’s employees, including medical insurance, work-related injury
insurance, endowment insurance, maternity insurance, unemployment
insurance and housing funds. In addition, the Group has formulated
a project co-investment scheme and has adopted a share option
scheme on 11 January 2019 to fully enhance the enthusiasm of
the Group’s employees. In terms of employee training, the Group
provides consistent and systematic training to employees based on
their positions and expertise, in order to enhance their expertise in real
estate and their related fields.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUTURE PROSPECTS

As the largest economic zone in China, the Yangtze River Delta Region
accounts for approximately one-fourth of China’s GDP. The Group
has been focusing on the Yangtze River Delta Region for years, and
will continue to seize the development opportunities in the region by
leveraging on its local brand advantages, while expanding into other
core and potential cities in China. Upholding a long-termism view, the
Group will stay true to its original aspiration of developing high quality
products with repeated calculations and upgrading, thus providing
good products and services to create value for customers. The
Group will rely on years of extensive development and management
experience and operation capabilities, continue to expand into cities
with diversified development potential, support the future sales growth
of the Company with high-efficiency operation as well as sell-through
and cash collection rates outperforming the market level, and also
respond to changes and control risks with prudent judgment.

The Group will continue to emphasize the business concept of
“improving internal skills for resilient development and sticking to
customer-oriented approach to create value for customers”, and
maintain the quality image of “Hangzhou workmanship”. Against the
backdrop of the central government’s general policy of “housing
is used for living, not for speculation” and “ensuring delivery”, the
Group will persist in the steady development, adhere to the strategy
of focusing on deep cultivation, stick to prudent financing, optimize
the capital structure, continue to improve financing costs, deepen the
“selective and strategic” capital cooperation strategy, so as to achieve
a balanced development of scale, profit and brand, achieve quality and
resilient growth, and bring long-term and stable investment returns to
all investors.
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The following table sets out the GFA breakdown of the Group’s FXREJIAEER (EREAZSDENBEENT)
land reserves (together with its joint ventures and associates) by & ZE2023F12 831 BiZ B B EH M TR
geographical as of 31 December 2023: RS E AR

Held for
Under future Total land

Completed development | development reserves

B%T ERT | BERRAR | IHRELE

Rentable
GFA held for
Saleable | investment GFA under
GFAunsold | #{EREM | development
AETHE mitA ZE® | Planned GFA Total GFA
BEER BEER BEEE | RABEER | 4E2ZER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) | Percentage

(FA%) (FAX) (F7K) (F7K) (FA%) LAl

Real estate projects developed HiEL FAMRMNYLER
by our subsidiaries

Hangzhou M 654,469 320,366 1,164,858 = 2,139,693 21.2%
Taizhou aM 34,095 51,663 715,708 60,102 861,568 8.5%
Ningbo B 21,636 = 542,685 = 564,321 5.6%
Nanjing AR 88,440 60,509 403,698 - 552,647 5.5%
Huzhou AN 42,464 13,082 487,830 - 543,376 5.4%
Wuhan HE 28,926 - 400,571 - 429,497 4.2%
Wenzhou B 78,502 17,071 323,424 = 418,997 4.1%
Xuzhou Gl 63,004 88,367 240,784 - 392,155 3.9%
Chengdu k& 88,150 - 168,695 = 256,845 2.5%
Jingfiang =il 10,449 = 139,397 = 149,846 1.5%
Shanghai s 11,225 58,176 - - 69,401 0.7%
Kunshan B 51,634 = 16,537 = 68,171 0.7%
Xi‘an )3 37,966 = = = 37,966 0.4%
Foshan il 35,605 - - - 35,605 0.4%
Shangrao & 32,496 = = = 32,496 0.3%
Zhoushan Al 2,071 - - - 2,071 0.0%
Wuxi =i 964 - - - 964 0.0%
Sub-total gt 1,282,096 609,234 4,604,187 60,102 6,555,619 64.8%
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Held for
Under future Total land

Completed development | development reserves

B%T R | BERRAR | tHRGEAE

Rentable

GFA held for
Saleable | investment GFA under
GFAunsold | #{EREM | development

RETHE it #EH | Planned GFA |  Total GFA

BEER EEER BEER | RUERER | 4E%ER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) | Percentage
(FAK) (F£7K) (FAK) (EA%) (F7K) b4l

Projects held by our joint RELEREER
ventures

Nanjing HR 176,507 - 171,726 - 348,233 3.4%
Wenzhou B 20,254 = 210,254 = 230,508 2.3%
Quzhou BN = = 201,132 = 201,132 2.0%
Chengdu & - - 98,660 - 98,660 1.0%
Hangzhou bl 23,423 - - - 23,423 0.2%
Foshan Al 21,821 - - - 21,821 0.2%
Sub-total Pt 242,005 - 681,772 - 923,777 9.1%

2023 FE#HRE ANNUAL REPORT 31



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB N D

Projects held by our associates B& A REHEEH

Completed
BAT

Saleable
GFA unsold
RETHE
EEER
(sq.m.)
(FHX)

Rentable
GFA held for
IVERIE
BEREN
A
BEER
(sq.m.)
(F7K)

Under
development

ke

GFA under

development
ERA
BEER
(sq.m.)
(FHK)

Held for
future
development

BERREER

Planned GFA
REREER
(sq.m.)
(FHK)

Total land

reserves
IHRERE

Total GFA
BREAR
(sq.m.)
(FHK)

Percentage

t il

Hangzhou M 177,606 56,248 382,839 = 616,693 6.1%
Chengdu & 334,964 - - - 334,964 3.3%
Zhengzhou M - - 312,117 - 312,117 3.1%
Xuzhou &M 31,074 - 199,095 - 230,169 2.3%
Foshan il - - 209,290 - 209,290 2.1%
Zhangzhou EM - - 201,039 - 201,039 2.0%
Wenzhou B 2,251 = 193,226 = 195,477 1.9%
Quzhou B - - 157,758 - 157,758 1.6%
Guangzhou EN 132,985 - 20,174 - 153,159 1.5%
Wuhan g 126,640 = = = 126,640 1.3%
Ningbo B 78,327 - - - 73,327 0.7%
America XH 11,723 420 = = 12,143 0.1%
Changzhou BM 4,606 = = = 4,606 0.0%
Taizhou a 3,239 - - - 3,239 0.0%
Sub-total gt 898,415 56,668 1,675,538 - 2,630,621 26.0%
Total &% 2,422,516 665,902 6,061,497 60,102 10,110,017 100%
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The following table sets out a summary of the Group’s property

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
TR N DM

projects as at 31 December 2023:

Investment
Properties

Ranx

City
Fresm

Hangzhou
i

Hangzhou

i
Hangzhou
i
Hangzhou
M
Hangzhou
il
Hangzhou
fiM

Xuzhou

Gl

Xuzhou

Gl

Xuzhou

Gl

Xuzhou

Gl

Huzhou

il
Nanjing
AR
Shanghai
LA
Taizhou

i

Project/Phase
20 /K&

Dexin Konggang Gity
BREN
Sky City Complex

= BGRE
Elegant Mansion
NEER

Hangzhou One
fione

Yinhu Technology Park
RitHEE
Hangzhou Wings
iz

Sky Scraper A

NEALE
Sky Scraper B

NNt
Sky Scraper Red and Purple

NS REE

Celebrity Mansion

ZR

Delan Square

BERS

Nanjing Xianlinznhigu Indlustrial Park
ARUAEAERE

Shanghai Songjiang Industrial Park
LEDITEE

Shenxian Garden
BlEEEE

Project Status

REAHRR

Completed
71

Completed

71
Completed
L
Completed
71
Completed
71
Completed
L

Completed

=1

Completed

A
Completed

A
Completed

7L
Completed

7L
Completed
7L
Completed
L
Completed
Za

BME :

Project Location

RE it

Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2013) No. 2
BHE 201325004
Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2017] No.19

BRELROT9% 05

Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2017] No. 41
MG L2017)41 530

Yu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2013] No.71
RBELRO1GT1R 5

Fu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2011] No.30
BHEH2011]303: 452

Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2013] No. 48
IR Li2013)485 08

Land Parcel 2010-08G

2010-08G
Land Parcel 2010-01G

2010-01G
Land Parcel 2010-08G, 2010-01G

2010-08G ~ 2010-01G
Land Parcel 2018-4

2018-43%345%
Land Parcel 001-106-000-00038-000

001-106-000-00038-000
No.Ning 2018GY04/05
NO.Z2018GY04/05

Songjiang Land Parcel No.905
INTo06% 1%

Baitazhen Land Parcel 2015119
AEE20151194

TRIIRR2023F12 A31BEALBEWEER 2

Existing Use

of the Project
EARERS

Lease Expiry

REE S

Commercial 2053
Bx

Residential and 2058
commercial

B

Residential 2087
iz

Gommercial 2057
Bx

Gommercial 2053
Bx

Commercial 2053
Bx

Residentialand 2050
commercial

Al

Residential and 2051
commercial

At

Residential and 2051
commercial

At

Residential and 2058
commercial

At

Residential and 2046
commercial

A

Commercial 2068
Bx

Industrial 2052
I%

Commercial 2057

[
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City Project/Phase Project Status Project Location Use of the Project
FrEsm BE/KR FAMRR FR it FRTERAAS
Development  Hangzhou Sky City Phase | Completed Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2017) No.19 Residential and
Properties commercial
S M REZE-H Tl BB 201719500 53
Hangzhou Dexin Yunchuan Business Genter Completed Xihu District Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2018)No. 20 Commercial
ikl BEZIEHDL 7l FfBREL 0182050 548 B Bx
Hangzhou Douhuigiantang Under development  Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2017) No.17 Residential and
commercial
i Besr itd ML 20171755055 i
Hangzhou Zheda Insigma (Yinhu) Innovation R&D Park -~ Completed Fu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2011] No.30 Commercal
Project (Phase 1)
M WA (508) B R EDER (Z4) 7l ElE201]308 Bx
Hangzhou Hangzhou ONE Completed Yu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2013) No.71# Commercial
i FUHONE 7l RBELO1G7TI#ER [
Hangzhou Elegant Mansion Completed Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2017] No. 41 Residential
M NEER 7l MBREROT R i
Hangzhou Dajiang One Completed Hang Dajiangdong Land Parcel [2017] No. 9 Residential
M AIES 7l RALR2017)9% 5% iz
Hangzhou Hangzhou Wings Completed Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2013) No. 48 Commercial
i iMz& 7l MBEL013)48% 05 [
Hangzhou Yuerong, Jingping and Nine Villa Carparks ~ Under development ~ N/A N/A
i #% R RSRER ided NER NER
Hangzhou Time Mansion Completed Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2018) No. 19 Residential and
commercial
i BRAE 7l BHURL01819%05% 33
Hangzhou Shixin Palace Completed Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2018) No. 4 Residential and
commercial
i b 7L BHRL018)4505% 53
Hangzhou Yin'aowan Completed Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2019) No. 22 Residential and
commercial
i g 7L BHRL019225 058 53
Hangzhou Golden Mansion Completed Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2018) No. 2 Residential
il HEER Tl SR 01825 iz
Hangzhou Bay Cloud Completed Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2018) No. 12 Residential
M EEEREKN L BHRL018)1285 fiz
Hangzhou Canal Mansion Under development  Yu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2019) No. 2 Residential
M EizH i3 FHRL01905 5% fiz
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Project/Phase

Project Status

Project Location

Primary Intended
Use of the Project

s

Hangzhou
i

Hangzhou

il

Hangzhou

M
Hangzhou
i
Hangzhou
M
Hangzhou
M
Hangzhou
i
Hangzhou
M
Hangzhou
M
Hangzhou
i
Hangzhou
i
Hangzhou
i
Hangzhou
M
Hangzhou
i
Hangzhou
M
Hangzhou
M
Hangzhou
i
Hangzhou

i

BR /K&

Time City
Bt 2R

Yuefenghua

HmE
Yuehangli

Bng

New Shixin Palace (Chinoiserie Mansion)
Himbf (2R
Qiantang Mansion
HEEH

Lake View Mansion
BilZR

Yue Gity Mansion
Bl R

River Mansion
LEEdh
Changlin City
RHZR

Dexin Konggang Gity
Bz
Chenguangli

RAE

Heping Dexin Genter
MEEEDD
Oriental Lake Mansion
248

Corniche

AR IRE
Qingmanli

FRE

Center Mansion
e

Central One Mansion
TLEiEh
Binwang Zhichen
BELR

REAHRR

Completed
71

Completed

A

Under development

i3

Completed

Tl

Under development
idd

Under development
i3

Under development
i3

Completed

71

Under development
i3

Completed

71

Completed

L

Completed

7l

Completed

71

Completed

gl

Under development
idd

Completed

71

Completed

71

Under development
kg

Rt

Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2019) No. 6
BHEL (20196505
Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2019) No. 22

MEE 01922505
Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2019) No. 25

0192555

Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2018] No. 24 Shushan Unit

BHEL20184R B E b

Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2018] No. 34
P L [2018)345%

Yu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2020] No. 8
A (2020185

Yu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2020] No. 9
AL (2020195

Jian Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2019] No. 27
BT (2019)27%

Yu Znheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2020] No.33
AR [2020]33%

Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2013) No. 2
RHGL010258 5%

Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2019) No. 61
P L(2019)61 5504

Wenhui Unit XC0402-B1/B2-02
NEETIXC0402-81/B2-02

Fushan Unit XH2006-07 Land Parcel

T TTXH2006- 0745

Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2020) No. 25
B 02025%

Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2020] No. 44
Sl [2020]445%

Fu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2020] No. 22
BBt [2020]22%;

Jian Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2019] No. 26
RHFHIE[2019]26%

Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2021] No. 6
BRI [2021]6%

RETERBAR

Residential
frz
Residential and

commercial
i
Residential and

commercial
i
Residential
[z
Residential
[z
Residential
fiz
Residential
fiz
Residential
[z
Residential
[z
Commercial
Bx
Residential
[z
Commercial
Bx
Commercial
Bx
Residential
[z
Residential
[z
Residential
fiz
Residential
fiz
Residential
[z
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City Project/Phase Project Status Project Location Use of the Project
FrEsm BE/KR FAMRR FR it FRTERAAS
Hangzhou Hangzhou Huayaoll Completed Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2021] No. 14 Residential
i MERE 7L AL 2021145 s
Hangzhou Huayunchunjing Under development  Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2020] No. 77 Residential and
commercial
i TEFA i3 MBI [2020)77%% [33
Hangzhou Tonglu Fuchunyun Village Completed Tong Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2021] No. 05 Residential
i MEEEZH 71 B 021)05% =z
Hangzhou Zhicaicheng Under development  Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2021] No. 27 Residential and
commercial
i bAZ] s BRI 0212TR 53
Hangzhou Wenchen Wangfu Completed Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2021] No. 35 Residential
M IRER Tl BB 2001]35% iz
Hangzhou Cloud in Center Under development  Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2020] No. 16 Commercial
ikl 220 i3 MBI 2020165 Bx
Hangzhou Hopeful Gity Under development  Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2021] No. 50 Residential
i RERR igd BRI 021)50% iz
Hangzhou (S0609-12, Gongchengiao Unit, Qiaox ~ Gompleted Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2021] No. 38 Residential
ki BEL R & mG30600-12 Al BB H[2021)38% [z
Hangzhou (S0609-12, Gongchengjao Unit, Qiaox ~ Under development  Lin Ping Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2022] No. 1 Residential
ikl HBRM kR BT B [2022)158 frz
Hangzhou Closely AOT Under development  Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2022] No. 13 Residential
M BARR igd BHRIL022)135% frz
Wenzhou Nine Vila Under development ~ Quhai District Wutian New District A-4-02a Land Parcel Residential
pitl Yk ided SR RBHEA-4-020508 fiz
Wenzhou Dexin SSAW Boutique Hotel Completed Zongdi No.3303040180040015 Commercial
bl BRRERE 7L ~iE$3303040180040015 Bx
Wenzhou Gorgeous Palace Under development  Qidu 04-C-14~18 Land Parcel Residential
it FEe i3 HE04-C-14-18 11 fiz
Wenzhou Philippe Cloud Under development  Jinhalyuan District Land Parcel C-09 Residential
a BN ided £ BRRC-0045E [z
Wenzhou Ruian Mansion Under development  Land Parcel 2018XG032 Residential
M Bl i 2018XG032%% =z
Wenzhou The Riverside Completed Taohuadao T05-07 Land Parce Residential
i fafie L HEBT05-075% fiz
Wenzhou Central Mansion Completed Yongjia County 3303240022019006 Residential
i ZRE Al XE5£3303240022019006 fiz
Wenzhou Center Mansion Under development  Land Parcel 2018XG033 Residential
bl I s 2018XG033%: =z
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Project Location

Primary Intended
Use of the Project

s

Wenzhou
i
Wenzhou
2
Wenzhou
it

Wenzhou

Al
Wenzhou
ol

Wenzhou

al
Wenzhou
et
Wenzhou
bl

Huzhou

il
Huzhou
it
Huzhou
it
Huzhou
gl
Huzhou
it
Huzhou
it
Huzhou
bl
Huzhou
bl
Ningbo

ER

BR /K&

City Lakeside
B8
Jiangyuewan
i) |
Fenghui

BE

East Fame

REE

River Sparkle
TEZH
Eastern Mansion

RRE

Central One Mansion

TIER

Tianchen Mingdi South, Tianchen Mingdi
North

AR AHES - REAH LA

Delan Square

REES

Majestic Mansion
Aesthetic Garden
ER

City Garden 1

RE1

City Garden 2
RE2

Deqing Shidai Yung
EEBREE
Nanxun Xunchengfu
Gaofeng Village Project
BEFER

Lake City Realm

254

REAHRR

Completed
71
Completed
L
Completed
71
Completed

gl
Completed
71

Under development

g4

Completed

gl

Under development

i3
Completed

gl

Completed

71

Completed

7l

Completed

71

Completed

L

Completed

7l

Under development
i3

Under development
kg

Completed

%I

Rt

Wenzhou S1 Line Longxia Station A-12b Land Parce

MM SRS RS EA- 120458

Taohuadaopian District T05-14a Land Parcel

S RET05- 142t
Land Parcel 2019XG016
2019XGO165% 5%

Wenzhou Economy Technology Development District Jinhaiyuan

District Land Parcel D-06b
ANEER LR £ SERD-060H

Yongjia Oubei Urban New District Qianpai - Wangjiawu

KEBIHHHEAR-T55

Wenzhou Economy Technology Development District Jinhaiyuan

District Land Parcel G-08b
AMNEERTEEE 2 SRRC-08005

Wenzhou Binjiang Business District Land Parcel 03-02-21

BNTETEBE-02-215

Chengdong New District Land Parcel D18-1-AB located at

Kunyang Town, Pingyang County
FEERBENRAED18-1-ABA
Land Parcel 001-106-000-00038-000

001-106-000-00038-000

Land Parcel 2017-335

2017-335

Land Parcel 2017-401-1
2017-401-1

Fuxi Street Land Parcel 2019-009-1
SEZHE2019-009-1

Fuxi Street Land Parcel 2019-009-2
£Z£7182019-009-2

Wukang Street Land Parcel 2020-016
RREE2020-016

Land Parcel 2021-21

201-21%

Land Parcel 2017-343

2017-343

Yongtuzigao (2018) No. 08006

A1 E£(2018)080065

RETERBAR

Residential
frz
Residential
[z
Residential
[z
Residential

[z
Residential
fiz
Residential

fiz
Residential
[z
Residential

fiz
Residential and
commercial

i
Residential
[z
Residential
[z
Residential
frz
Residential
[z
Residential
=
Residential
fiz
Commercial
Residential
[z
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City Project/Phase Project Status Project Location Use of the Project

FrEsm BE/KR ERAKR FR it FRTERAAS

Ningbo Huchengdajing Completed Yinzhou District 06-03-02# Dongaian Lake Land Parcel Residential

2 WA i B E06-03-024REHER =

Ningbo Mountain Village Completed Yong Chu Chu Land Parcel 2020-005 Residential

£ W2 EEH 7l B #1112020-005% iz

Ningbo Yunchengdajing Under development  Land Parcel 2019-85 Residential

ER AR i 2019-85414% i

Ningbo Center Mansion Completed Yong Chu Chu Land Parcel 2020-024 Residential

= RIGE Eal 120200048 [z

Ningbo Oriental Mansion Completed Yong Chu Chu Land Parcel 2020-103 Residential

£ R 71 B 1112020-100%; fE

Ningbo Wenchen Mansion Completed Yong Chu Chu Land Parcel 2020-152 Residential

£y XRf L FFI2020-152%% [z

Ningbo Binxueli Gompleted Land Parcel 2020-7 Residential

- B2E 7l 2020- 75458 iz

Taizhou Jiangshan Mansion Phase |l Completed Beichengjiedao Puxi No.1 Residential

&N gl 7l p LN iz

Taizhou Shenxian Garden Phase | Under development  Baitazhen Land Parcel 2015119 Commercal

aM BUEXTBLE-H ided AEH201511945 [

Taizhou Shenxian Garden Phase |l Under development  Land Parcel G2018160 Commercial

an BllEUEREE S idd (2018160 S

Taizhou Liuxian Li Project Phase I Under development  Xiantuzi Land Parcel (2022) No. 4 Commercial

aM 2z igd {7 (2022)45% Bx

Taizhou Xihu Yunzhuang Under development  Yuhuanxincheng (Xuanman Phase Il) Residential
Jiankangyangshengxiaozhen Phase | Land Parce

aM i)t g4 TR P ) R M- frz

Taizhou Jiangshan Yunhe Completed Land Parcel Located at the Palace East to the Tongjiang Road  Residential
and North to the Xiandai Road, Lugiao District

AN LILER Tl RERRIENR  RRAEMER IR fiz

Taizhou Guanlanfu Under development  Land Parcel 331082113229132 Residential and

commercial

oM 8RR idd 331082113229132 if

Taizhou Taizhou Fei Long Hu Large Land Parcel ~ Under development  Taitugaozi [2021]No. 001 Residential

&N aRERALA i A1 E7(2021)001%: 2

Zhoushan Putuo Donggang Project Completed Zhoushanshi Putuoqu Donggang New District Land Parcel Residential
No. 42-5

Al BHif Tl AT ERERENE2-5504 iz
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City Project/Phase Project Status Project Location

s BR /K& REAHRR Rt RETERBAR

Use of the Project

Quzhou Jiangwancheng Completed Land Parcel Located at East of Manyuewan, Chengdong New  Residential and
District, Changshan Gounty commercial
EN ik 2] L L ESEN £ o i3
Quzhou Yunzhi Chenli Under development  Granted Land Parcel of Reserve Land Located at West of Residential
Hehua West Street, South of Pingan West Street, Railway
Station District. Land Parcel Quzhou Chu [2021] 1
o 2IRE ided KBS REERRAATRARRARR LR frz
Ema2021)1%
Xuzhou Sky Scraper A Completed Land Parcel 2010-08G Residential and
commercial
Gl NERALA 7l 2010-08G i3
Xuzhou Sky Scraper B Completed Land Parcel 2010-01G Residential and
commercial
Gl NEBBE 7l 2010-01G i3
Xuzhou Imperial Cullinan Under development  Land Parcel 2017_11G, 2017_11G Residential
M RER s 2017_11G + 2017_11G fz
Xuzhou Celebrity Mansion Completed Land Parcel 2018-4 Residential and
commercial
G ER 7l 2018-45505% ]33
Xuzhou Meidi Dexin Academy Mansion Under development  Land Parcel 2019-21 Residential
Gl EHEEAMRE kg 2019-2158445% iz
Xuzhou Wings of Future Gompleted Land Parcel 2019-45 Residential
Gl ARZE 7l 2019-455445% fx
Xuzhou Chinoiserie Mansion Completed Land Parcel 2020-4 Residential
Gl NER 7l 2000-4%405% iz
Xuzhou Online City Completed Land Parcel 2020-19 Residential
M ARLR 7l 200019534453 fix
Xuzhou Peace Mansion Under development  Land Parcel 2020-20 Residential
M IR 4 2020-205 458 iz
Xuzhou Yunxi Elegant Courtyard Partly completed Land Parcel 2020-32 Residential
Gl ey FAxIL 20203254458 iz
Nanjing Nanjing Xianlin Intelligent Valley (CJ)-C Completed Land Parcel No. Ning 2018GY04 Commercal
BR ARIMEACI-C A NO.E2018GY04 i
Nanjing Nanjing Xianlin Intelligent Valley (CJ)-J Completed Land Parcel No. Ning 2018GY05 Commercial
BR ARIHEAC)-Y 71 NO.22018GY05 Bx
Nanjing Jiuxi Mansion Under development  Land Parcel No. Lishui 2019G15 Residential
AR REFR it 4 NO. k2019615 iz
Nanjing Oriental Gourtyard Under development  Land Parcel 2019G11 Residential
ER BREH kg 2019611 =z
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FrEsm BE/KR FAMRR FR it FRTERAAS
Nanjing Nanjing Xianlin Intelligent Valley (FG1) Under development  Land Parcel NO.2019G40 Commercial
BR ARIHEAFG) ki NO.2019G40 [
Nanjing Nanjing Xianlin Intelligent Valley (IG2) Under development  Land Parcel No. Ning 2019GY14 Commercial
BR ARIHEAIG) kg NO.E2019GY14 [
Nanjing Xingchen Jinyuan Completed Land Parcel NO.2020G41 Residential
AR ERBE 7l NO.2020G41 iz
Nanjing Jiugihe Mansion Under development  Land Parcel 2020N0.G49 Residential
BR YEfR ki 2020NO.G49 % iz
Nanjing Lishui Chengnan Land Parcel Completed Land Parcel No. Lishui 2021G09 Residential
ER TR 71 NO. k2021609 iz
Nanjing Nanjing Xianlin Intelligent Valley (E) Under development  (Temporariy) Land Parcel No. Ning 2013GY31 Commercial
o) BRIEAER) iz ZENO.E2013GY31 %
Shanghai Dexin  Zhizao 368 Project Completed Songjiang Land Parcel No.905 Industrial
L Bz + B1E3007ER 7l HNI0sH R Ix
Shanghai Yinxiu Yunlu Under development  Land Parcel 202012601 Residential
L& EAZHE i 202012601 iz
Kunshan Dexin Park Vision Completed Kun Di Wang [2019] Land Parcel Guazi No. 2-3 Residential and
commercial
il REHE LR 7l B R019)EF2-3R 0 ]33
Jingjiang Jiang Yu Tian Jing Phase | Completed Jing Chu Land Parcel 2019 Gua No. 31, 32 Residential
BiI ARG~ 71 Ef#2019831 - 32% fiz
Jingjiang Jiang Yu Tian Jing Phase I Completed Jing Chu Land Parcel 2019 Gua No. 31, 32 Residential
B TEAE_H gl BH2019831 - 2% iz
Wuxi Elegant Yunxi Completed Land Parcel Xi Guo Tu (Jing) 2019-12 Residential
&5 312 7l HET(8)201912 frz
Changzhou Changzhou Celebrity Mansion Completed JZX20180702 Residential
BN ENERR 7l J2X20180702 fz
Chengdu Guanlan Courtyard Under development  Tianfu New District Shigao Land Parcel No. 34 Residential
% BEAR idd BN GE a hiin [z
Chengdu Jinxiutiancheng Under development  Tianfu New District Shigao Land Parcel No. 16, 19, 20 Residential
R RERE i AIHERE16 19 084 iz
Chengdu Kings Lake Completed Land Parcel TF2020-10 Residential
w# HHER 71 TF2020-10583% fz
Chengdu Meishan Dongpo Project Under development  Land Parcel D-232 Residential
K EMAR s D-232 fz
Chengdu Chengdu Yicheng Dayuan Completed Land Parcel DY2020-016(252) Residential
w# KBRHAR 7l DY2020-016(252)5% 458 iz
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Project Location
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Use of the Project

s

Chengdu
%
Chengdu
K#
Wuhan
i)
Wuhan

RE
Wuhan
BE
Wuhan
BE
Guangzhou
BN
Guangzhou
B
Foshan
il
Foshan
b1l
Foshan
b1l
Zhengzhou
N

Xian

[
Zhangzhou
BN
Shangrao
#

Us.

e

BR /K&

Chengdu Tianjiao City
RBRBLR
Yinjiangchen

IR

Courtyard in Jiangnan
TAAR
Chenguangli

REE

Starry Park

ESLE

Wuhan Time City
REREIR
Golden Mileage
PEEE

Center of Bay Area, Guangzhou
BMERES
Langging Yuan
Gl

Jiangnanyin Mansion
TRIE

Foshan Santangyuan
BL=%R
Zhengzhou Project
DR

Xichen Mansion
i)

Zhangzhou Project
EMER

Celebrity Mansion
AR

One Park

One Park

REAHRR

Completed

71

Under development
s

Completed

71

Completed

7l

Under development
i3

Completed

gl

Under development
s

Completed

71

Completed

71

Completed

71

Under development
kR

Under development
i3

Under development
kg

Under development
idd

Completed

71

Completed

gl

Rt

Land Parcel IN20(251):2020-065
JN20(251):2020-065

Land Parcel QBJP2020-10(252)
QBJP2020-10(252)

Wuhan Land Parcel P (2018) No. 48
REPQO1848F %

Wuhan Land Parcel P (2019) No. 100

REP019)10088 185

Land Parcel P (2019) No. 017
P(2019)0175% 58

East and West Lake Land Parcel P (2020) No. 187
P(2020187T R R iR

Land Parcel 83101265A19001
83101265A19001

Land Parcel 2020NJY-7

2020NJY-7

Land Parcel TD2019(GM) WG0018
TD2019(GMWG0018

Land Parcel TD2019(CC) XG0004
TD2019(CC)XG0004

Land Parcel TD2021(NH) WG0009
TD2021 (NH)WG0009

Zhengzhou Airport District Land Parcel 1#3#4#6#94#
2R 1434446408

Land Parcel HX1-(28)-124

HX1-(28)-124

Tai 2020p03 Land Parcel

£2020p03

Land Parcel DEB2018014, DEB2018015
DEB2018014 - DEB2018015

N/A

Oyl

RETERBAR

Residential
frz
Residential
[z
Residential
[z
Residential and
commercial

[
Residential
fiz
Residential
fiz
Residential
[z
Residential
[z
Residential
frz
Residential
[z
Residential
[z
Residential
fiz
Residential
frz
Residential
[z
Residential
fiz
Residential
frz
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BB N D

Notes:

54 DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Data on site area have been excerpted from the information contained
in the relevant land use rights certificate and housing title certificate
(or real estate title certificate) or, if there is no relevant land use rights
certificate, from the data on site area in the land grant agreement.

With respect to the GFA, the data on a completed project have been
excerpted from the housing title certificate (or real estate title certificate)
or documents of acceptance; the data on a project under development
or planning shall be excerpted from the information (with a deviation
of no more than 3% from the actual GFA) contained in the relevant
construction work planning permit or construction work commencement
permit or, if there is no construction work planning permit, from the data
on the capacity building area in the land grant agreement.

Leasable GFA refers to the area from which rental income can be
generated.

A property is considered as “sold” after the Group entered into the
relevant purchase agreement with and has delivered it to the customer.
A property is deemed to have been delivered to the customer after it
has passed the acceptance check. A property is considered as “pre-
sold” in the event that the Group has entered in the relevant purchase
agreement but has not yet delivered it to the customer.

Refers to the date on which the Group obtained the construction work
commencement permit or the date estimated by the Group.

Refers to the date on which the Group obtained or is expected to obtain
the pre-sale permit of the project, based on the internal records of the

Group.

Refers to the date on which acceptance examination upon completion
is obtained or the expected date of completion.

Based on the actual equity interests held by the Group in the relevant
project companies pursuant to PRC laws.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEBNEEFE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board consists of 6 Directors, of whom 2 are executive Directors,
1 is a non-executive Director and 3 are independent non-executive
Directors. Our Board is responsible for and has general powers for the
management and conduct of our business.

Executive Directors

Mr. Hu Yiping (# —), aged 57, is the founder of our Group and
has been our Director since 16 January 2018. He was re-designated
as an executive Director and the chairman of our Board on 14 August
2018. He is the chairman of the nomination committee. He was also
appointed as a director of Tak Yick International Limited (“Tak Yick”)
and Dexin Holding (Hong Kong) Limited (“Dexin HK”) on 7 February
2018 and 22 March 2018, respectively. He is also a director of certain
members of the Group. Mr. Hu Yiping is the father of Mr. Hu Shihao,
our non-executive Director and one of our Controlling Shareholders.
He is also one of our Controlling Shareholders. Mr. Hu Yiping is
primarily responsible for overall development and investment strategies
and major business decisions of our Group. He has around 28 years
of experience in the PRC real estate industry. He established Dexin
Real Estate Group Co., Ltd (“Dexin Real Estate”) on 1 September
1995 and has been the director and chairman of the board of directors
since then. He is currently an executive director and chairman of Dexin
Services Group Limited (stock code: 2215) which is listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Hu Yiping is the president of the Zhejiang Province Real Estate
Industry Association* (41L& FEHER ). He is also the chairman of
Huzhou Chamber of Commerce in Hangzhou* ({10 T #iNE€) and
the president of the New Urban Industry Committee of the General
Association of Zhejiang Entrepreneurs* (M AAEHBIBEXL S
). Mr. Hu Yiping graduated from Zhejiang School of Construction*
T AZETEER) in Zhejiang, the PRC in January 1987 with a
diploma degree (FH2£[F) in Civil Engineering Specialty (LREZE

EEg

EXCH6RESFHEN EF2R2/MTES -
1BRIFATESZANIBRBUIFAITES -
EE2RBRVHE RENEEMARES

BITES

H—FkE 5755 AAKERIMA - 52018
F1A16HEEFRMNES - EMN201848 A4
1ABREARNTESRESTSER - HRIIRSA
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%), and from Zhejiang Yu Cai Workers’ University (T & A4 BT X
£) in Zhejiang, the PRC in June 1995 with an associate degree (K&
ESFF) in Architecture. He also obtained his bachelor’s degree (4%}
&%) in Financial Management (online course) from Tianjin University (X
K E) in Tianjin, the PRC in 2013. He also obtained his executive
master of business administration (EMBA) from Xiamen University in
Xiamen, the PRC in September 2018. He also obtained a qualification
for senior economist issued by Zhejiang Human Resources and Social
Security Department* (#1/T& A ERMEZRIEEE) in December
2007. He also obtained a qualification for engineer issued by Personnel
Department of Huzhou* (431 A= /3) in September 1996.

Mr. Fei Zhongmin (E£#) (“Mr. Fei”), aged 54, has been our
Director since 16 January 2018. He was re-designated as an executive
Director and was appointed as our president on 14 August 2018.
He is a member of the remuneration committee. He is responsible
for business operation, day-to-day management and daily business
decisions of our Group. He is also a director of certain members of
the Group. He has over 26 years of experience in the PRC real estate
industry. He joined our Group as a project manager of Dexin Real
Estate in August 1997. Since then, he served various positions in
Dexin Real Estate and other subsidiaries of our Company, including
vice president, executive vice president, president and director, during
which his responsibilities included participating in the formulation of
our Group’s strategy and the day-to-day management.

Mr. Fei graduated from Zhejiang Yu Cai Workers’ University* (4TI &
A B T KE) in Zhejiang, the PRC in January 1995 with an associate
degree (KEEZF) in Architecture. He also obtained his executive
master of business administration (EMBA) from Shanghai Jiaotong
University (/8238 K22 in Shanghai, the PRC in June 2013. He also
obtained a qualification for engineer issued by Personnel Department
of Shaoxing* (48 #1t A 2 /@) in November 2006.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Hu Shihao (%5 %), aged 29, was appointed as our non-executive
Director on 14 August 2018. He was also appointed as a director of Dexin
HK from 22 March 2018 to 9 March 2021. Mr. Hu Shihao is a member of
the audit committee. He is the son of Mr. Hu Yiping who is our executive
Director and one of our Controlling Shareholders. He is also one of our
Controlling Shareholders. Mr. Hu Shihao is primarily responsible for
providing advice on the financial affairs of our Group. He has over 9 years
of working experience in the real estate industry.

Mr. Hu Shihao graduated from Boston College in Massachusetts,
the United States in May 2018 with a bachelor’s degree in Finance.
He also graduated from Columbia University in New York City, New
York, the United States in May 2019 with a master degree in Property
Development.

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert (Ek#) (“Dr. Wong”), aged 72, has
been our independent non-executive Director since 11 January 2019.
He is primarily responsible for providing independent advice on the
operations and management of our Group. Dr Wong is the chairman
of the audit committee. He has 28 years of experience in accounting.
Dr. Wong is the principal consultant of KND Associates CPA Limited,
Hong Kong, a private professional auditing firm in Hong Kong, and is
responsible for administration, operation, audit and corporate taxation
since January 2018. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of APAC Resources Limited (stock code: 1104), Solargiga
Energy Holdings Limited (stock code: 757), China Merchants Land
Limited (stock code: 978), China Wan Tong Yuan (Holdings) Limited
(stock code: 6966), China Medical & HealthCare Group Limited (stock
code: 383), Dexin Services Group Limited (stock code: 2215), all are
listed on the Stock Exchange.

Dr. Wong was the managing director of Charise Financial Planning
Limited, a private professional consulting firm in Hong Kong, and was
responsible for administration and operation from October 2005 to
January 2014. He was the principal consultant of KND & Co., CPA
Limited, a private professional auditing firm in Hong Kong, and was
responsible for administration, operation, audit and corporate taxation
from January 2014 to December 2017.
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Dr. Wong obtained his bachelor’s degree in Commerce from a joint
program held by Shenzhen University (%&3II7KX&) in Shenzhen, the PRC
and Clayton University in Missouri, the United States of America in May
1990. He also obtained a bachelor’s degree in Business Management
(online course) and a master’s degree in Business Administration
(online course) from Nottingham Trent University in Nottingham, the
United Kingdom in December 2005 and December 2007, respectively.
He also obtained his doctoral degree in Philosophy in Business
Administration from the Bulacan State University, Republic of the
Philippines in December 2010.

Dr. Wong was elected or admitted and has remained as member
of a number of institutions, including being a fellow member of The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong since January 1999, a fellow member
of The Institute of Certified Public Accountants in Ireland since August
2000, a fellow member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries) since February 2002, a member of The Chartered Institute
of Arbitrators since May 2002, a fellow member of The Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators) in United Kingdom since September
2002, a fellow member of Association of International Accountants
since September 2005 and a member of the Hong Kong Securities
and Investment Institute since November 2012.

Mr. Ding Jiangang (T £ZHMl) (“Mr. Ding”), aged 60, has been our
independent non-executive Director since 11 January 2019. He
is primarily responsible for providing independent advice on the
operations and management of our Group. Mr. Ding is also the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of
the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. He has over
7 years of research experience in the PRC real estate industry. He
graduated from Xi’an Metallurgy and Architecture College* (FA% /A&

REELD) in Xi'an, the PRC in June 1983 with a bachelor’s degree in
Civil Engineering Specialty (L K& Z 2). Since May 2014, Mr. Ding has
been the director* (F?EE) of Zhejiang Daily Media Real Estate Institute*
(I B B E R T

of real estate industry, and is responsible for research on real estate

ft), which is engaged in provision of market analysis

policy and real estate market. He is currently an independent non-
executive director of Binjiang Service Group Ltd. (stock code: 3316)
and Shinsun Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2599), both are
listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Ding was the director* (ft&) of
Transparent Market Institute* (FEBA ™% 5Tht), which is engaged
in provision of market analysis of real estate industry, and was
responsible for research on real estate policy and real estate market
from March 2013 to May 2014. He was the assistant manager (&=
fE) of the economic department of, and the deputy editor (24247 8)
of the website Live in Hangzhou* ({E7E#T/M) of, Zhejiang Online News
Website Co., Ltd.* (MI &R B A R 2 A]), which is engaged
in online news publication and he was responsible for researching
financial properties and providing commentaries thereon from
September 2008 to March 2013. He was the journalist and producer
of Zhejiang Radio & TV Group* (#IEZEEREE), which is engaged
in publication and sales of newspaper, magazines and video, and he
was responsible for production of property programs from April 1989
to September 2008. He was the teacher and the leader of teaching
and research group of building structure of Zhejiang Construction
Industrial College* (#iL & B T ¥ 24) and was responsible for
teaching building structure courses and management of the teaching
and research group from November 1985 to April 1989.

Mr. Chen Hengliu (“Mr. Chen”), aged 69, has been our independent
non-executive Director since 11 January 2019. He is primarily
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of our Group. Mr. Chen is a member of each of the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee. He has 16
years of experience in the PRC real estate industry. Prior to joining our
Group, since November 2006, Mr. Chen has been the vice president
of Sunac China Holdings Limited (i8I~ BI#5 A% A R A7) (stock code:
1918), a company listed on the Stock Exchange which is engaged
in property development, and the chairman of its Southeast regional
branch, and he is responsible for the group’s human resources and
the development strategies of the Southeast regional branch.
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Mr. Chen was the general manager of the United States subsidiary(ies)
of China Sciences Group (Holding) Co., Ltd.* (FRIEZEBEFER)ER
‘A A]), which is engaged in the procurement and sales of technological
products, and he was responsible for corporate development and
human resources from 1994 to 1997. He was the assistant to the
general manager (&2 B)IE) and the manager of the development
department (B E 204 1#) of Legend Holdings Corporation (Bf#83%
f& B n B R A &) (stock code: 3396) (previously known as Chinese
Academy of Sciences Computer Technology Research Institute
Technology Development Company* (H B} 2 B 51 & Bl iff 70 P st 4%
R /A7), a company listed on the Stock Exchange which is engaged
in research and development and manufacture of computer products,
and he was responsible for corporate development and human
resources from 1988 to 1990. He was the assistant researcher of the
Research Center of Contemporary Science History of the Institute for
History of Natural Sciences of Chinese Academy of Sciences* (+
B2 EARZLMEMORARZ LR E), which is engaged in
research in science history, and he was responsible for research of
history of contemporary technology development from 1985 to 1987.

Mr. Chen graduated from Beijing Normal University* (1t 5 A& K £2)
in Beijing, the PRC in July 1982 with a bachelor’s degree in Science
(322). He also obtained his master’s degree in Science (¥£) from
Graduate University of Chinese Academy of Sciences (F B f} E25z AT 55
A PBr) in Beijing, the PRC in May 1985.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Our senior management is responsible for the day-to-day management
of our business. The biography of each of our senior management
member is set out below.

Mr. Fei Zhongmin (&£ #8)), aged 54, is our executive Director and
president. For details of his biography, please refer to “—Board of
Directors — Executive Directors” in this section.

Ms. Fang Jing (5 &) (“Ms. Fang”), aged 49, was appointed as
our executive vice president on 14 August 2018. She is primarily
responsible for marketing and sales, customer services and business
management of our Group. She was the vice president of Dexin Real
Estate from February 2012 to July 2014, and has been serving as
the executive vice president of Dexin Real Estate since July 2014,
primarily responsible for marketing and sales and customer services
management. In addition, Ms. Fang was the sales director (& $H42E5),
project general manager and general manager of Hangzhou region of
Dexin Real Estate, primarily responsible for sales, customer services,
project management and regional company’s operation management
from February 2006 to February 2012. She was the director of Dexin
Real Estate (Quzhou) Co., Ltd.* (25 HE(EIMN)BR AR, primarily
responsible for major business decisions from April 2016 to May 2018.
She has 22 years of experience in the PRC real estate industry.

Prior to joining our Group in February 2006, Ms. Fang was the
operational manager of Hangzhou Woaiwojia Real Estate Agent
Co., Ltd.* MMNBEERRFEHELLBR A F]), which is engaged in
agency service of sale and purchase of commodity properties, and
she was responsible for management of property leasing and sales
from October 1999 to December 2002. She was the head of sales
management department of Hangzhou Shengshi Weiye Real Estate
Agent Co., Ltd.* (fi/ ek & E F i ERIEHFR 2 7)), which is engaged
in agency service of sale and purchase of commodity properties,
she was responsible for sales management from December 2002 to
February 2006.
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Ms. Fang graduated from Zhejiang University* (#)T X&) in Zhejiang,
the PRC in June 1996 with a bachelor’s degree in Inorganic Nonmetal
Material Engineering. She also obtained her executive master of
business administration (EMBA) from Zhejiang University* (47T X£2) in
Zhejiang, the PRC in December 2015.

Mr. Zhang Ce (&) (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 53, was appointed as our
vice president on 14 August 2018. He is primarily responsible for daily
design management of our Group and in charge of our product centre.
He has been serving as the vice president of Dexin Real Estate since
February 2012, primarily responsible for product design, research
and development. He has over 24 years of experience in the PRC real
estate industry.

Prior to joining our Group in April 2010, Mr. Zhang was the chief
(EEBBERE
) (formerly known as Lianyungang Xiangyi Real Estate
EREBRFEMERZEFRAQF)), which
is engaged in property development and property leasing, and he

engineer of Lianyungang Xiangyi Group Co., Ltd.*
EHERAA
Development Co., Ltd.* (i

was responsible for property design and engineering management
from October 2007 to September 2009. He was the deputy general
*(PFREEBRAF) (formerly
NI RREBRA
7)), which is engaged in industrial investment* (£ %#%%), and he was
responsible for design work management from May 2005 to December
2009. He was the director* (A7) of Lianyungang Architectural Design
Research Institute Limited Liability Company* (=& m &2 588 5T
REBREERF
and he was responsible for architectural design and department
management from July 1992 to March 2005.

manager of Zhongyi Group Co., Ltd.
known as Zhejiang Zhongyi Investment Co., Ltd.”

), which is principally engaged in design drawings,
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Mr. Zhang graduated from Wuhan Urban Construction Institute* (/%
W E R 2 Fr) (currently known as Huazhong University of Technology*
(FEFR R KE)) in Wuhan, the PRC in July 1992 with a bachelor’s
degree in Engineering in Architecture Profession. He also obtained
his master’s degree in Business Administration from China Europe
International Business School (FEXEIER TG £FT) in Shanghai, the
PRC in August 2016. He has also obtained the qualification for senior
architect issued by Human Resource Bureau of Jiangsu Province in
November 2004 and qualified as the State’s Registered Class One
Architect (B — sk 52 EEAD) issued by The National Administration
Board of Architectural Registration in March 2009.

Wei Xiaolong (#/)8E) (“Mr Wei”), aged 44, was appointed as our
vice president on 1 November 2023. He is primarily responsible for the
product and operation centre and the Hangzhou region of our Group.

Tong Ying (E%¥) (“Ms Tong”), aged 41,
assistant President on 1 November 2023. She is primarily responsible

was appointed as a

for the finance and financing of our Group.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chau Hing Ling (BAE#) (“Ms. Chau”) was appointed as the
company secretary of our Company on 18 May 2018. She joined
Corporate Services of Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited since
June 2013, and now serves as an executive director of Corporate
Services, where she leads a team of professional staff to provide a full
range of company secretary services. Ms. Chau has over 23 years of
experience in the corporate services industry. Prior to joining Vistra
Corporate Services (HK) Limited, she was the associate director of
corporate secretarial of an international corporate services provider.

Ms. Chau is also currently the company secretary or joint company
secretary of several companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Ms.
Chau received a master of laws majoring in corporate and financial law
from The University of Hong Kong in November 2007. She has been a
fellow member of The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known
as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) in United
Kingdom and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
known as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries) since May
2013.
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The Board is pleased to present this annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and its subsidiaries
established in the PRC are primarily engaged in the property
development and construction services, property investment and hotel
operations in the PRC.

The activities and particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are shown
under Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 277
to 280 of this annual report. An analysis of the Group’s revenue and
net results for the year by principal activities is set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group, an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key
performance indicators and an indication of likely future developments
in the Group’s business, could be found in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
in this annual report. The review and discussion form part of this
directors’ report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognizes that employees, customers and business
partners are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is
committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with its
employees, providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners.
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The Company provides a fair and safe workplace, promotes diversity
to our staff, provides competitive remuneration and benefits and career
development opportunities based on their merits and performance.
The Group also puts ongoing efforts to provide adequate trainings
and development resources to the employees so that they can keep
abreast of the latest development of the market and the industry and,
at the same time, improve their performance and self-fulfillment in their
positions.

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with customers and provide the products in a way that
satisfy needs and requirements of the customers. The Group enhances
the relationship by continuous interaction with customers to gain
insight on the changing market demand for the products so that
the Group can respond proactively. The Group has also established
procedures in place for handling customers’ complaints to ensure
customers’ complaints are dealt with in a prompt and timely manner.

The Group is also dedicated to developing good relationship with
suppliers and contractors as long-term business partners to ensure
stability of the Group’s business. We reinforce business partnerships
with suppliers and contractors by ongoing communication in a
proactive and effective manner so as to ensure quality and timely
delivery.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

Details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance for
the year ended 31 December 2023 is included in an environmental,
social and governance report which is published by the Company and
uploaded to the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
together with this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The consolidated financial results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out on pages 135 to 287 of this annual report.
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The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

No interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2023.

There is no arrangement under which a shareholder has waived or
agreed to waive any dividend.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”),
details of which are disclosed as follows:

Purpose

The Dividend Policy sets out the principles and guidelines that the
Company will apply when considering the declaration and payment of
dividends to the shareholders of the Company.

Principles and guidelines

The Company may, subject to the Cayman Companies Law, from
time to time in a general meeting declare dividends in any currency to
be paid to the shareholders of the Company but no dividend shall be
declared in excess of the amount recommended by the Board.

The Board may from time to time determine to pay to the shareholders
of the Company such interim dividends as appear to the Board to be
justified by the profits of the Company.

The Board has the discretion to declare dividends to the shareholders
of the Company, subject to the Articles of the Association of the
Company (the “Articles”) and all applicable laws and regulations,
taking into account the factors set out below:

° financial results;

° cash flow situation;

° business conditions and strategies;
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° future operations and earnings;

° capital requirements and expenditure plans;
° interests of shareholders;

° taxation considerations;

° any contractual, statutory and regulatory restrictions on payment
of dividends; and

° any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
Review of the Dividend Policy

The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from time to
time.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

For Determining the Entitlement to Attend and Vote
at the 2024 AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
20 June 2024 to Wednesday, 26 June 2024, both days inclusive,
during which period no share transfer will be effected, for the purpose
of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the
2024 AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2024 AGM,
all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged for registration with the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday,
19 June 2024.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 288 of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note
40 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 277 to 280 of
this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in Note
14 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 232 to 233 of
this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in Note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements on page 257 of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in
Notes 27 and 28 to the consolidated financial statements on pages
258 to 259 of this annual report.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of reserves available for distribution to shareholders are set out
in Note 44(a) of the consolidated financial statements on page 287 of
this annual report. Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is distributable to the
shareholders provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

BORROWINGS FROM BANK AND OTHER
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

During the year, the Company issued senior notes with details set out
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Senior
notes” in this annual report. Details of borrowings from bank and other
financial institutions of the Group as at 31 December 2023 are set out
in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 260 to
263 of this annual report.

LOAN AND GUARANTEE

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had not made
any loan or provided any guarantee for loan, directly or indirectly, to
the Directors, senior management of the Company, the Controlling
Shareholders or their respective associates (as defined in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2023.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or
the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer
new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the
date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hu Yiping (Chairman)

Mr. Fei Zhongmin

Ms. Shan Bei (resigned on 29 June 2023)
Non-executive Director

Mr. Hu Shihao

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert

Mr. Ding Jiangang
Mr. Chen Hengliu
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Company as at the date of this annual report are set out on pages
55 to 63 in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” to this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Hu Yiping and Mr. Fei Zhongmin being the executive
Directors, has entered into a service contract with the Company for
an initial term of three years commencing from 26 February 2019 (the
“Listing Date”).

Mr. Hu Yiping and Mr. Fei Zhongmin, being the executive Directors,
have renewed the service contract with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 26 February 2022.

Mr. Hu Shihao, being the non-executive Director, has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing from the Listing Date.

Mr. Hu Shihao, being the non-executive Director, has renewed the
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 26 February 2022.

Each of Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert, Mr. Ding Jiangang and Mr. Chen
Hengliu, being an independent non-executive Director, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of
three years commencing from the Listing Date.

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert, Mr. Ding Jiangang and Mr. Chen Hengliu,
being the independent non-executive Directors, have renewed the
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 26 February 2022.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has or is proposed
to have entered into any service agreement or letter of appointment
with any member of the Group (excluding agreements expiring or
determinable by any member of the Group within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation).

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Other than disclosed in the sections headed “Related Party
Transactions and Connected Transactions” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 272 to 276 of this annual report, no contract
of significance was entered into between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2023 or subsisted at the end of
the year and no contract of significance for the provision of services
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries was entered into during the year ended 31
December 2023 or subsisted at the end of the year.

DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than disclosed in the sections headed “Related Party
Transactions and Connected Transactions” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 272 to 276 of this annual report, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the Group
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which
a Director or any entity connected with such a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2023.

BETHRERERAA

BEXFBEEN  BEEECKLRBAZHARN
£ BEfIAK 8 R B R] S AL AR 75 thh et S R AE B
(TERR—FRAEMXA BAKEEFKE
RERIETEAS N EEE CEERERIN A%
&) o

BEEZERBRRNELN

BRAFRIEB IR RBERS ] RIEEEN
RN EEIARF272E 276 H LR A B 1§
MERM AT TR A SN - B E2023F 12 A31
HIEFE @ ARRSKHETMME QRS EET
AR RS EEAHB AR LEASLHE
BESBANNFRFE B E2023F 12731
HIEFE - ZR2RQ B 5K BE 2 AR AR 58 sl B A (a] B
BARIMARA RSk E A HE A R ET
VEBAAHNEHMESRSONFREFE -

EERNEARS  Z¥HEN
REY RS

BRAFRIAB ARSI RBERS I RIEBERN
WEDM I SEARE272E276 B LR A B 75
WK EISATIMBEIN - ADBISKEEAME
NERFRKEE2023F12 A31H ILFERT
WEHE - SELANEETNZESNEMEA
EERERSEEEREAR B FENYHA
SEEBBEENRS « RHHEL -



COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The emoluments (including the discretionary bonuses) of the Directors
and senior management of the Group are decided by the Board
with reference to the recommendation given by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five
highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in Note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 222 to 226 of this annual
report.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any Director or any of the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office. None of the Directors has waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Company has also adopted the Share Option Scheme as incentive
for Directors and eligible employees. Details of the said scheme are set
out under the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this annual
report.

Except as disclosed above, no other payments have been made or are
payable, for the year ended 31 December 2023, by the Group to or on
behalf of any of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, none of the Directors or
their respective close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had
any interest in a business that competed or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group, other than
being a director of the Company and/or its subsidiaries.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
OBLIGATIONS PURSUANT TO THE
LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company does not have
any other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22
of the Listing Rules.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

On 1 February 2019, each of the controlling shareholders entered
into the deed of non-competition in favor of the Company (the “Deed
of Non-competition”), pursuant to which, among other things, each
of the Controlling Shareholders has irrevocably and unconditionally
undertaken, jointly and severally given certain non-competition
undertakings to the Company. Details of the Deed of Non-competition
are set out in the section headed “Relationship with the Controlling
Shareholders — Deed of Non-competition” in the prospectus of the
Company (the “Prospectus”).

The controlling shareholders confirmed that they have complied with
the Deed of Non-competition during the year ended 31 December
2023. The independent non-executive Directors have conducted
a review for the year ended 31 December 2023 and also reviewed
the relevant undertakings and are satisfied that the Deed of Non-
competition has been fully complied with.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the Directors’ service contracts and appointment letters
as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ service contracts”
in this annual report, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Group was entered into or in existence as at the end of the year or
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2023.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Group was not involved in any material legal proceedings during
the year ended 31 December 2023.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 11 January 2019, the Company adopted the share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”), which falls within the ambit of, and is
subject to, the regulations under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The
purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to grant
options to selected participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group. The Directors consider the Share Option
Scheme, with its broadened basis of participation, will enable the
Group to reward employees, Directors and other selected participants
for their contributions to the Group. Given that the Directors are
entitled to determine the performance targets to be achieved as well
as the minimum period that an option must be held before an option
can be exercised on a case by case basis, and that the exercise price
of an option cannot in any event fall below the price stipulated in the
Listing Rules or such higher price as may be fixed by the Directors, it
is expected that grantees of an option will make an effort to contribute
to the development of the Group so as to bring about an increased
market price of the Shares in order to capitalize on the benefits of the
options granted.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on the day on which trading of the
Shares commence on the Stock Exchange, such 10% limit represents
263,200,000 Shares, but excluding any Shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of the Over-allotment Option.

The total number of shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 263,200,000 Shares, accounting for approximately 8.86%
of the issued shares of the Company as at the date of this annual
report.

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Company (including
both exercised and outstanding options) to each participant in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in
issue for the time being.
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The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years from 11 January 2019 and the options granted have a 10-
year exercise period. Options may be vested over such period(s)
as determined by the Board in its absolute discretion subject to
compliance with the requirements under any applicable laws,
regulations or rules. The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is
approximately 4 years and 9 months.

The exercise price per Share under the Share Option Scheme will be
a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant
(orovided that in the event that any option is proposed to be granted
within a period of less than five business days after the trading of the
Shares first commences on the Stock Exchange, the new issue price
of the Shares for the Global Offering shall be used as the closing price
for any business day falling within the period before Listing); and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of
the grant of an option.

An option may be accepted by a participant within 5 business days
from the date of the offer of grant of the option. An option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
at any time during a period to be determined and notified by our
Directors to each grantee, which period may commence on a day after
the date upon which the offer for the grant of options is made but
shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant
of the option subject to the provisions for early termination under the
Share Option Scheme. Unless otherwise determined by our Directors
and stated in the offer of the grant of options to a grantee, there is
no minimum period required under the Share Option Scheme for the
holding of an option before it can be exercised.

No options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed by the
Company under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31
December 2023 and up to the date of this annual report and there
were no outstanding share options under the Share Option Scheme
during the year and up to the date of this annual report.

A summary of the terms of the Share Option Scheme has been set out
in the section headed “D. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix VI of the
Prospectus.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2023, interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)), which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which he/she was taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or (c)
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to the
Listing Rules were as follows:

(i) Long/short position in ordinary Shares

Name of Director Capacity

Esps af

Mr. Hu Yiping® Interest in controlled corporation
(i il R rEER

Mr. Fei Zhongmin Beneficial owner

LS EGEAA

Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2) The calculation is based on the total number of 2,969,341,000 shares
in issue as at 31 December 2023.

(3) The entire issued share capital of Tak Yuan International Limited (“Tak
Yuan”) is held by Mr. Hu Yiping, therefore Mr. Hu Yiping is deemed to
be interested in all the Shares held by Tak Yuan by virtue of the SFO.
Since Mr. Hu Yiping owns 92% of Tak Shin International Limited (“Tak
Shin”), Mr. Hu Yiping is also deemed to be interested in all the Shares
held by Tak Shin by virtue of the SFO.
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(i) REBRHINVGE KA

Approximate
percentage of

the Company’s
issued share capital®
ERARE T
RAENBAE S L

64.56%

Number of
ordinary Shares
interested
BERERN
EEREE

1,916,886,000 (L)

39,164,500 (L) 1.32%

G
(1) FRILEZALRBGR0EE -

(2) %K 2023F12A31ABETRHD B
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(ii) Interests in associated corporations of the
Company

(ii) AA D BB EE AR

Percentage of

Name of associated Capacity/nature Number of shareholding
Name of Director corporation of interest shares" interest
ESp? HEEE AR 5/ EuntE RpEE REBAL
Mr. Hu Yiping Tak Shin® Beneficial owner 460 (L) 92.00%
H—FEE &Ko ERBBA
Mr. Hu Shihao Tak Shin® Beneficial owner 40 (L) 8.00%
LRSS &Ko ERBBA
Notes: Bt

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares.

(2) Tak Shin is the holding company of the Company and therefore an
“associated corporation” of the Company within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO. Tak Shin held 1,841,936,000 Shares of the Company
which accounted for approximately 62.03% of the total share capital
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above in this annual report and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any interests
and/ or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the Company,
as at 31 December 2023, the following corporations/persons (other
than Directors or the chief executive of the Company) had interests
of 5% or more in the issued shares of the Company according to the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO:

Capacity

&4
Tak Shin Beneficial owner
=m E=EBA
Ms. Wei Peifen® Interest of spouse
Bms e B e
Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2) The calculation is based on the total number of 2,969,341,000 shares in
issue as at 31 December 2023.

(8) Ms. Wei Peifen is the wife of Mr. Hu Yiping. Under the SFO, Ms. Wei Peifen
is deemed to be interested in Mr. Hu Yiping’s interests in Tak Shin and Tak
Yuan.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors,
as at 31 December 2023, no person (other than the Directors or
chief executives of the Company) had registered an interest or a
short position in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed under the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” in this annual report, at no time during
the year under review was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debt
securities including debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

In the year under review, the Group’s largest customer accounted
for 0.98% of the Group’s total revenue. The Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 3.01% of the Group’s total revenue.

In the year under review, the Group’s largest supplier accounted
for 5.67% of the Group’s total purchase. The Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for 11.95% of the Group’s total purchase.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined under
the Listing Rules) or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) has any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers
or the Group’s five largest customers.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF
HOLDERS OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to
the Shareholders of the Company by reason of their respective holding
of the Company’s securities.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the employees of the
Hong Kong subsidiaries are required to participate in the Mandatory
Provident Fund in Hong Kong. The employees of the PRC subsidiaries
are members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The employees of both Hong
Kong and the PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to this
retirement benefits scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme.

As at 31 December 20283, the Group did not have any forfeited
contributions that were utilised to reduce the level of contributions
under its defined contribution scheme.

Details of the pension obligations of the Company are set out in Note
8 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 222 to 226 of this
annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed under the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” in this annual report, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2023 or subsisted at the end of the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group had entered into various transactions which constituted
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. All
the connected transactions during the year that need to be disclosed
herein are conducted in compliance with the Listing Rules. Reference
is made to the various announcements of the Company as referred
to below. Unless otherwise defined, capitalised terms used in this
subsection shall have the same meanings as those defined in the
announcements.
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The Group had entered into various transactions which constituted ARN&EBEBRE(EHRE) FE14ASF L ZEE
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing KIFEBEXINTS - FRFABRRFER
Rules. All the continuing connected transactions during the year WEMNFEBESFHFTAECLETRBIY o 241
that need to be disclosed herein are conducted in compliance with  #ARQAF H B A2019F11 A28H ~ 2019412
the Listing Rules. Reference is made to the announcements of the H13H - 202095 H28H + 2020F9A3H -
Company dated 28 November 2019, 13 December 2019, 28 May 20214F5H3H - 202254 A26H * 202246 A
2020, 3 September 2020, 3 May 2021, 26 April 2022, 9 June 2022, 23 9H : 2022949 H23H &2023F12 A15HAA
September 2022 and 15 December 2023. The transaction amount of & o REBRE E2023F12 A31 H ILFEHNHF
the continuing connected transactions of the Group for the year ended /BRIEX SN ZLEH M

31 December 2023 is set out below:

Transaction Amount
for Year Ended

31 December 2023
B £2023F12H31H
LFEENRZEHE
(RMB’000)
(AR¥T 1)

Connected Person Nature of Transaction

BEAL REME

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions

TRABRIFEMBER S

Dexin Shengquan Property Services Co., Ltd. Provision of property management service 57,586
(formerly known as “Shengquan Property
Service Co., Ltd")
(“Shengquan Property Service”)"

EEREMERBERAA R R E TR

(RTE B2 EREERAF])
(TEBE2MERE])O
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Zhejiang Geya Decoration Co., Ltd. Provision of decoration and 136,965
(“Zhejiang Geya Decoration”)? related services

A TR IR S AR A7) (IR TS )@ R AR RS

Huzhou Geya Doors and Windows Co., Ltd. Provision of decoration and 18,599
(“Huzhou Geya”)® related services

MMARFEPTE AR AR (DHMAERD O R AR R RS

Dexin Services Group Limited Smart community solution services 5,908
(“Dexin Services”)?

EERBEEER AR ([BERBED® BEMEBRT RIRS

Dexin Services® Commercial consulting and related services -

EiER®O [EEEEESEEEL T

Dexin Services® Property sales assistance services 8,254

s RO P 7 1 $H AR 75
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Notes:

M

Property Service is a company established under the laws of the PRC
with limited liability and is principally engaged in providing property
management services. Shengquan Property Service is an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of Dexin Services as at the date of this annual report.

On 1 February 2019, the Company and Property Service entered into
the framework property management service agreement to govern the
provision of property management services by Property Service to the
Group for its property development projects for a term up to 31 December
2021.

On 13 December 2019, the Company and Property Service entered into
the supplemental framework property management agreement to amend
the annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The revised annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
RMB73.0 million. The annual caps for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2021 were RMB51.0 million and RMB65.9 million, respectively.

On 28 May 2020, the Company and Property Service entered into the
Supplemental Framework Property Management Service Agreement
to revise the existing annual caps under the Framework Property
Management Service Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2020
and 2021. Save for the amendment to the existing annual caps, all
other terms and conditions (including the pricing policy and basis) of the
Framework Property Management Service Agreement shall remain in full
force and effect.

The revised annual caps under the Supplemental Framework Property
Management Service Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2021 were RMB124,000,000 and RMB190,000,000, respectively.

On 3 September 2020, the Company and Property Service entered into
a supplemental agreement (the “Second Supplemental Framework
Property Management Service Agreement”) to further revise the
proposed annual caps under the Framework Property Management Service
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2021.
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R

The Second Supplemental Framework Property Management Service
Agreement replaces and supersedes the Supplemental Framework
Property Management Service Agreement in its entirety. Save for the
amendment to the existing annual caps, all other terms and conditions
(including the pricing policy and basis) of the Framework Property
Management Service Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

The revised annual caps under the Second Supplemental Framework
Property Management Service Agreement for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2021 were RMB106,000,000 and RMB179,000,000,
respectively.

On 3 May 2021, the Company and Shengquan Property Service entered
into the New Framework Property Management Service Agreement
to (i) amend the existing annual caps under the Framework Property
Management Service Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021;
and (ii) determine the proposed annual caps for the period from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2023.

The revised annual cap under the New Framework Property Management
Service Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2022
were RMB93,600,000 and RMB99,200,000 respectively, the proposed
annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2023 was RMB108,400,000
respectively.

On 15 December 2023, the Company and Shengquan Property Service
entered into the 2024 Framework Property Management Service
Agreement to renew the New Framework Property Management Service
Agreement for a period of three years ending 31 December 2026.

The proposed annual caps under the 2024 Framework Property
Management Service Agreement for the three years ending 31 December
2024, 2025 and 2026 are RMB58,400,000, RMB49,500,000 and
RMB40,340,000 respectively.

Zhejiang Geya Decoration is a company established under the laws of the
PRC with limited liability and is principally engaged in providing decoration
services. Zhejiang Geya Decoration is owned as to 91.43% by Mr. Hu
Yuegen, the brother of Mr. Hu Yiping.

On 1 February 2019, the Company and Zhejiang Geya Decoration entered
into the framework decoration service agreement to govern the provision of
decoration and related services by Zhejiang Geya Decoration to the Group
for its property development projects for a term up to 31 December 2021.

On 13 December 2019, the Company and Zhejiang Geya Decoration

entered into the supplemental framework property management agreement
to amend the annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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The revised annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
RMB200.0 million. The annual caps for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2021 were RMB160.0 million and RMB200.0 million,
respectively.

On 28 May 2020, the Company and Zhejiang Geya Decoration entered
into the Supplemental Framework Decoration Service Agreement to
revise the existing annual caps under the Framework Decoration Service
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2020 and for the year ended
31 December 2021.

The revised annual caps under the Supplemental Framework Decoration
Service Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021 were
RMB260,000,000 and RMB320,000,000, respectively.

On 3 May 2021, the Company and Zhejiang Geya Decoration entered
into the New Framework Decoration Service Agreement to determine
the proposed annual caps for the period from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2023, in order to regulate the transactions between the Group
and Zhejiang Geya Decoration in relation to the provision of decoration and
related services for the Group’s properties.

The proposed annual caps under the New Framework Decoration Service
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2022 was RMB336,000,000
and for the year ended 31 December 2023 was RMB353,000,000.

On 15 December 2023, the Company and Zhejiang Geya Decoration
entered into the 2024 Zhejiang Framework Decoration Service Agreement
to renew the New Framework Decoration Service Agreement for a period
of three years ending 31 December 2026.

The proposed annual caps under the 2024 Zhejiang Framework Decoration
Service Agreement for the three years ending 31 December 2024, 2025
and 2026 are RMB115,000,000, RMB61,000,000 and RMB58,000,000
respectively.

Huzhou Geya is a company established under the laws of the PRC with
limited liability and is principally engaged in providing decoration services.
Huzhou Geya is owned as to 90% by Mr. Hu Yuegen, the brother of Mr. Hu
Yiping.

On 13 December 2019, the Company and Huzhou Geya entered into
the framework decoration service agreement to govern the provision of
decoration and related services by Huzhou Geya to the Group for its
property development projects for a term up to 31 December 2019.

The annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2019 was RMB30.0
million.
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On 28 May 2020, the Company and Huzhou Geya entered into the New
Huzhou Framework Decoration Service Agreement, whereby Huzhou Geya
agreed to provide decoration and related services to the Group.

The proposed annual caps under the New Huzhou Framework Decoration
Service Agreement for the two years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021
will be RMB53,000,000 and RMB45,000,000, respectively.

On 3 May 2021, the Company and Huzhou Geya entered into the New
Huzhou Framework Decoration Service Agreement to determine the
proposed annual caps for the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2023, in order to regulate the transactions between the Group and Huzhou
Geya in relation to the provision of decoration and related services for the
Group’s properties.

The proposed annual caps under the New Huzhou Framework
Decoration Service Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2022
was RMB47,000,000 and for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
RMB50,000,000.

On 15 December 2023, the Company and Huzhou Geya entered into the
2024 Huzhou Framework Decoration Service Agreement to renew the New
Huzhou Framework Decoration Service Agreement for a period of three
years ending 31 December 2026.

The proposed annual caps under the 2024 Huzhou Framework Decoration
Service Agreement for the three years ending 31 December 2024, 2025
and 2026 are RMB36,000,000, RMB26,000,000 and RMB25,000,000
respectively.

Dexin Services Group Limited is a company established under the laws
of the Cayman Islands with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2215).

On 3 May 2021, the Company and Dexin Services entered into the
Framework Agreement for Smart Community Solutions Services to govern
the provision of smart community solution services by Dexin Services to
the Group for its property development projects for the three years ended/
ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023.

The proposed annual caps under the Framework Agreement for Smart
Community Solutions Services for the three years ended 31 December
2021, 2022 and 2023 were be RMB17,700,000, RMB19,700,000 and
RMB20,600,000, respectively.
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On 15 December 2023, the Company and Dexin Services entered into the
2024 Framework Agreement for Smart Community Solutions Services to
renew the Framework Agreement for Smart Community Solutions Services
for a period of three years ending 31 December 2026.

The proposed annual caps under the 2024 Framework Agreement for
Smart Community Solutions Services for the three years ending 31
December 2024, 2025 and 2026 are RMB3,110,000, RMB3,260,000 and
RMB3,430,000 respectively.

On 3 May 2021, the Company and Dexin Services entered into the
Framework Agreement for Commercial Consulting and Related Services
to govern the provision of commercial consulting and related services by
Dexin Services to the Group for its property development projects for the
three years ended 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023.

The proposed annual caps under the Framework Agreement for
Commercial Consulting and Related Services for the three years ended 31
December 2021, 2022 and 2023 were be RMB6,800,000, RMB6,800,000
and RMB6,800,000, respectively.

On 3 May 2021, the Company and Dexin Services entered into the
Framework Agreement for Property Sales Assistance Services to govern
the provision of property sales assistance services by Dexin Services to
the Group for its property development projects for the three years ended/
ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023.

The proposed annual caps under the Framework Agreement for Property
Sales Assistance Services for the three years ended 31 December
2021, 2022 and 2023 were be RMB16,400,000, RMB17,200,000 and
RMB18,100,000, respectively.
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On 7 August 2020, Hangzhou Wuhe (a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company) as lessor and each of Hangzhou Changyu and
Hangzhou Kangyu as lessee entered into the Lease Agreements for a
term of three years from 15 December 2020 to 14 December 2023.
The Proposed Annual Caps under the Lease Agreements for the year
ended 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023 were RMB7,404,800 and
RMB9,353,500, and RMB8,963,800 respectively.

The Transactions allow the Group to increase the occupancy rate and
make efficient use of its investment properties and increase its revenue
from leasing.

Each of Hangzhou Changyu and Hangzhou Kangyu is owned as to
100% by Hangzhou Suiyu, which is owned as to 58.0% by Dexin
Holdings. Dexin Holdings is owned as to 91.61% by Mr. Hu Yiping (an
executive Director and a controlling Shareholder) and 8.39% by Ms.
Wei Peifen (the wife of Mr. Hu Yiping and a controlling Shareholder).

On 26 April 2022, Zhejiang Dehong as lessor (an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company) and Hangzhou Jingyu as lessee
entered into the Lease Agreement for a term of two years and ten
months from 1 May 2022 to 28 February 2025. The proposed annual
caps under the Lease Agreement for both the year ended 30 April
2023 and the year ended 30 April 2024 were RMB14,136,395, and
the proposed annual caps for the year ending 28 February 2025 were
RMB11,773,874.

The transactions allow the Group to increase the occupancy rate and
make efficient use of its investment properties and increase its revenue
from leasing.

Hangzhou Jingyu is indirectly owned as to approximately 68.00% by
Dexin Holdings. Dexin Holdings is owned as to approximately 96.18%
by Mr. Hu Yiping (an executive Director and a controlling Shareholder)
and approximately 3.82% by Ms. Wei Peifen (the wife of Mr. Hu
Yiping), respectively.
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On 9 June 2022, the Company entered into the Parking Space
Leasing and Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement with
Dexin Services, pursuant to which, Dexin Services would provide
exclusive parking spaces sales and leasing agency services in respect
of the target parking spaces to the Group. The proposed annual
caps under the Parking Space Leasing and Sales Agency Services
Framework Agreement for the year ended/ending 31 December 2022,
20283 and 2024 was/will be RMB50,000,000, RMB90,000,000 and
RMB90,000,000 respectively. No transaction amount was incurred for
the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2023.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company is held as to 64.56%
by Mr. Hu, of which (i) 2.52% were beneficially held by Tak Yuan
International Limited, which is in turn held as to 100% by Mr. Hu; and
(i) 82.03% were beneficially held by Tak Shin International Limited,
the controlling shareholder of the Company, which is in turn held as to
92.00% by Mr. Hu. Meanwhile, Dexin Services is held as to 56.46%
by Shengfu International Limited, the controlling shareholder of Dexin
Services, which is in turn held as to 91.6% by Mr. Hu.

The independent non-executive Directors confirmed that the above
continuing connected transactions have been entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group on normal
commercial terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The independent
non-executive Directors further confirmed that the annual caps in
respect of the above continuing connected transactions are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole and that the transactions were conducted in accordance
with the pricing policies disclosed in the Prospectus or the relevant
announcements.
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In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
of the Company has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that nothing has come to its attention in
relation to the above continuing connected transactions with regard
to the matters set out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of such
transactions.

The Group entered into certain related party transactions with related
parties during the year ended 31 December 2023, details of which are
set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements on pages
272 to 276 of this annual report. Save as disclosed above, none of
the related party transactions constituted connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Company further confirms that the connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions have complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding dealings in the securities of the Company by the Directors
and the Group’s senior management who, because of his/her office
or employment, is likely to possess inside information in relation to the
Group or the Company’s securities.

Upon specific enquiry, all Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2023. In
addition, the Company is not aware of any non-compliance of the
Model Code by the senior management of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2023.
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EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

A winding-up petition (“Petition”) dated 20 March 2024 was filed by
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited in the High Court
of Hong Kong (“High Court”) against the Company, in relation to the
non-payment of the 9.95% senior notes due December 2022 issued by
the Company in the principal amount of US$350,000,000 and accrued
interests.

The Company has engaged legal advisors to proceed with the
application to the High Court for a validation order but there is
no guarantee that any validation order would be granted by the
High Court of Hong Kong. In the event where a validation order
is not granted but the winding-up order is not dismissed or
permanently stayed, all transfers of shares of the Company after the
commencement of the winding up (i.e. 20 March 2024) shall be void.

As at the date of this annual report, no hearing has taken place in
relation to the Petition and no winding-up order has been made by
the High Court against the Company. The Petition is scheduled to be
heard on 5 June 2024.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
21 March 2024 and 28 March 2024.

Save as disclosed above, there are no important events after the
Reporting Period and up to this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Board, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the public float as required under
the Listing Rules.
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INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
for all Directors and senior management. These insurances provided
protection to the liability incurred from related cost, fees, expense and
legal actions resulting from corporate activities. Pursuant to Article 192
of the Articles, the Directors, managing Directors, alternate Directors,
auditors, secretary and other officers for the time being of the
Company and the trustees (if any) for the time being acting in relation
to any of the affairs of the Company, and their respective executors or
administrators, shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them, their or
any of their executors or administrators, shall or may incur or sustain
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty or supposed duty in their respective offices or
trusts, except such (if any) as they shall incur or sustain through their
own fraud or dishonesty, and none of them shall be answerable for
the acts, receipts, neglects or defaults of any other of them, or for
joining in any receipt for the sake of conformity, or for any bankers
or other persons with whom any moneys or effects of the Company
shall be lodged or deposited for safe custody, or for the insufficiency
or deficiency of any security upon which any moneys of the Company
shall be placed out or invested, or for any other loss, misfortune or
damage which may arise in the execution of their respective offices
or trusts, or in relation thereto, except as the same shall happen
by or through their own fraud, dishonesty or recklessness. The
Company may take out and pay the premium and other moneys for the
maintenance of insurance, bonds and other instruments for the benefit
either of the Company or the Directors (and/or other officers) or any of
them to indemnify the Company and/or Directors (and/or other officers)
named therein for this purpose against any loss, damage, liability and
claim which they may suffer or sustain in connection with any breach
by the Directors (and/or other officers) or any of them of their duties to
the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate
governance for enhancing the management of the Company as well as
preserving the interests of the shareholders as a whole. The Company
has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules as its own code to govern its corporate governance practices.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with
all applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code contained in
Part 2 of Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2023.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the
Company with an aim to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 95
to 130 of this annual report.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group made charitable
and other donations amounting to RMB472,488.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had reviewed together with the management and
external auditor the accounting principles and policies adopted by the
Company and the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

AUDITOR

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 18 April
2022, PricewaterhouseCoopers has resigned as the auditor of the
Company with effect from 14 April 2022 and Elite Partners CPA
Limited (“Elite Partners”) has been appointed as the new auditor of
the Company with effect from 14 April 2022, to fill a casual vacancy
following PricewaterhouseCoopers’ resignation. Elite Partners was
re-appointed as the auditor of the Company at the annual general
meeting held on 26 June 2023, for a term expiring on the date of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Elite Partners,
which shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, has audited the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2023. The Company proposes to re-appoint
Elite Partners as the auditor of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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Save as disclosed above, there was no change in the external auditor
of the Company for the three years preceding the date of this annual
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company was in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Company.

CHANGES IN THE BOARD AND THE
DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report,
the changes in the Board and the information of Directors are as
follows:

()  Ms. Shan Bei resigned as an executive Director, vice president and
authorised representative of the Company with effect from 29 June
2023.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors confirm that no information

is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules.

On behalf of the Board

Hu Yiping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 April 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in
the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange since the Listing
Date. The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders and
to enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
adopted the CG Code. During the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Board believes that the Company has fully complied with the code
provisions of the CG Code. The Company will continue to review and
enhance its corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with
the code provisions of the CG Code.

COMPANY'’S CULTURE

The Board believes that corporate culture underpins the long-term
business, economic success and sustainable growth of the Group. A
strong culture enables the Company to deliver long-term sustainable
performance and fulfil its role as a responsible corporate citizen. The
Company is committed to developing a positive and progressive
culture that is built on its Vision, Mission and Values.

During 2023, the Company continued to strengthen its cultural
framework by focusing on the following:

e Vision: Become a pan-real estate whole industry chain integration
service continuous innovator;

e Mission: 1. Build a platform for employees and create value for
shareholders; 2. Take responsibility for the society and become
the life confidant of customers;

e Values: 1. Three righteousness of being positive, following the
right path, and being authentic; 2. Three sharing: co-creation,
cosharing, and co-responsible.

TRERHE

BEEMANRARREHZE2023F12H31H8 [FF
BrzFEREPREADEETARE -

TEERAESR

BHE B LA BRNEERA ET - AEEK
R ERSRENTEERNRBREME DS
MEACEEBEMMKHEE - ZQRERMD
EEASTE] - REIE2023F12A31HIEFE -
EEZeRAAAFEE2HEETLEETATIN
TANEX o ARRIFEBERT RIRAECEE
BB RABRETREESTRBFANEX

AR

EEZgRE EENEAEENEREA
BAREEERENEBER LG EEK
5o MABMKENER - 2BARENEEX
ERE  BARRGAERRHAIFEER -
BITERBEELERRNELE - ARFHN
NEFR - EanMEESRAAR - BZIER - &
BESHXE »

2023F Hifd] + A AR BBEFTATANEIE « #
BEANSR A B XALHELS

B  RRZEHEEEXRBESRHKH
FERIEE

. w1 RETIERYE  RERRAERB
B 2RHe@AREE NATPHLER
e

e EE®H:1.=IF: #HER -  FEB - MIE
m2.=3: Hal K= Hig-

2023 FE#RE ANNUAL REPORT 95



96 DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERHE

The Board sets and promotes corporate culture and expects and
requires all employees to reinforce. All of our new employees are
required to attend orientation and training programs so that they may
better understand our corporate culture, structure and policies, learn
relevant laws and regulations, and raise their quality awareness. In
addition, from time to time, the Company will invite external experts to
provide training to our management personnel to improve their relevant
knowledge and management skills.

The Board considers that the corporate culture and the purpose,
values and strategy of the Group are aligned.

THE BOARD
(1) Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility for day-to-day management and operation
of the Group to the senior management of the Group. To
oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board
has established three Board Committees including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. The Board has delegated to the Board Committees
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.
All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
perform their duties.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,

in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and its Shareholders at all times.
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(2) Directors’ and senior management’s liability

insurance and indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Directors and senior management of the Company
for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The insurance
coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.

(3) Board composition

The Board currently comprises two executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Hu Yiping (Chairman)

Mr. Fei Zhongmin

Ms. Shan Bei (resigned on 29 June 2023)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Hu Shihao

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert

Mr. Ding Jiangang

Mr. Chen Hengliu

Except that Mr. Hu Yiping is the father of Mr. Hu Shihao, there is
no other relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material/ relevant relationship(s)) between the Board members.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board at all times
met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10(A)
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive Directors with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise and the appointment of independent non-
executive Directors representing at least one-third of the Board.
Among the three independent non-executive Directors, Dr. Wong
Wing Kuen Albert has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise as required
by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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(4) Board diversity policy (4) EEEZ LR

Pursuant to Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the nomination
committee (or the Board) shall have a policy concerning diversity
of board members, and shall disclose the policy on diversity or a
summary of the policy in the corporate governance report. The
board diversity policy of the Company (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) specifies that in designing the composition of the
Board, Board diversity shall be considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge.
The appointment of Directors will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be evaluated against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, knowledge and skills.

The composition of the Board will be disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report every year and the Nomination Committee
will supervise the implementation of this policy. The Nomination
Committee will review the effectiveness of this policy, as
appropriate, discuss any revisions that may be required, and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval. The Board will annually review the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy and its effectiveness.

The Board targets to appoint at least a female director no later than
31 December 2024, with the ultimate goal of achieving gender parity.

As at 31 December 2023, the diversity of the Board is illustrated
as below. Further details on the biographies and experience of the
Directors are set out on pages 55 to 63 of this annual report.
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The Nomination Committee has reviewed the membership, structure

and composition of the Board, and is of the opinion that the structure

of the Board is reasonable, and the experiences and skills of the

Directors in various aspects and fields can enable the Company to

maintain high standard of operation.

(5) Measurable objectives

For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity Policy,

the following measurable objectives were adopted:

(i)

(ii

Independence: The Board should include a balanced
composition of executive and non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) so that
there is a strong element of independence in the Board. The
independent non-executive Directors shall be of sufficient
calibre and stature for their views to carry weight.

Skills and experience: The Board possesses a balance of
skills appropriate for the requirements of the business of the
Company. The Directors have a mix of finance, academic and
management backgrounds that taken together provide the
Company with considerable experience in a range of activities.

Apart from the above objectives, the Board Diversity Policy has the

following objectives to comply with the Listing Rules:

at least one third of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive Directors;

at least three of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive Directors;

at least one of the members of the Board shall have obtained
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related

financial management expertise; and

at least one of the members of the Board shall be female.

Save that the Board is currently comprised of male directors and
targets to appoint a female director no later than 31 December

2024, the Board has achieved the measurable objectives in the

Board Diversity Policy.
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(6) Confirmation of independence by the

independent non-executive Directors

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines as set out in the
Listing Rules.

Except that Mr. Hu Yiping (an executive Director) is the father of
Mr. Hu Shihao (a non-executive Director), none of the Directors
has any personal relationship (including financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationship), with any other Director.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors
are invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring Directors to disclose
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments as well as their
respective identity of the public companies or organisations
and the time involved to the issuer, the Directors have agreed
to disclose, and already disclosed their commitments to the
Company in a timely manner.

(7) Induction and continuous professional

development

Pursuant to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Pursuant to the code provision C.1.1 of the CG Code, each newly
appointed Director should be provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding
of the Company’s operations and businesses as well as his/her
responsibilities under relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.
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BEERTHRSE
During the year ended 31 December 2023, all Directors, namely HZE2023F12A31HIEFE  28EF
Mr. Hu Yiping, Mr. Fei Zhongmin, Ms. Shan Bei, Mr. Hu Shihao, (BIE—F ek - BRLAE Bt -
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert, Mr. Ding Jiangang and Mr. Chen M E - EoxEELT - TEREER
Hengliu, have been updated with the latest developments Chen Hengliust &) B & B EEM EHER
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory BECETRAD FEMEREERTETE
requirements through reading materials to ensure compliance and MEFTERIBN  UBEREARIEAES
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices. BEIRITMEEERER - tHh MES
In addition, continuing briefing and professional development to REBRLAEXERBEVERERTUAR
Directors will be arranged whenever necessary. o
The individual training record of each Director received during the SEENAFEMEXEI 228850
Year is summarised below: T 8

Directors Reading materials
= EZHEME

Executive Directors

BITES

Mr. Hu Yiping Vv
H—FEsE

Mr. Fei Zhongmin Vv
BRREE

Ms. Shan Bei (resigned on 29 June 2023) Vv

B4+ (R2023456 A298 i)

Non-executive Director

FHITES

Mr. Hu Shihao Vv
SR E

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFHTES

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert v
EKEEL

Mr. Ding Jiangang Vv
T 2RIt E

Mr. Chen Hengliu vV

Chen HengliuZc 4
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(8) Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
performed by different individuals. Under the current organisation
structure of the Company, Mr. Hu Yiping is the Chairman of the
Company and Mr. Fei Zhongmin is the president of the Company
(namely, the chief executive officer of the Company).

The Board and the senior management, which comprises
experienced individuals with high calibre, can ensure the balance
of power and authority. As at 31 December 2023, the Board
comprised two executive Directors, one non-executive Director
and three independent non-executive Directors.

(9) Appointment and re-election of Directors

Each of Mr. Hu Yiping and Mr. Fei Zhongmin, being an executive
Directors, has entered into a service contract with the Company
for an initial term of three years commencing from the Listing Date.

Mr. Hu Yiping and Mr. Fei Zhongmin, being the executive
Directors, have renewed the service contract with the Company for
a term of three years commencing from 26 February 2022.

Mr. Hu Shihao, being the non-executive Director, has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of
three years commencing from the Listing Date.

Mr. Hu Shihao, being the non-executive Director, has renewed the
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 26 February 2022.

Each of Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert, Mr. Ding Jiangang and Mr.
Chen Hengliu, being an independent non-executive Director, has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date.

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert, Mr. Ding Jiangang and Mr. Chen
Hengliu, being the independent non-executive Directors, have
renewed the letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 26 February 2022.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has or is
proposed to have entered into any service agreement or letter of
appointment with any member of the Group (excluding agreements
expiring or determinable by any member of the Group within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation).

In accordance with the Articles, at each annual general meeting
one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office
by rotation, provided that every Director (including those appointed
for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

Any new Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall submit
himself/herself for election by shareholders at the first general
meeting of the Company after appointment and any new Director
appointed as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself
for re-election by the Shareholders at the next following annual
general meeting of the Company after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
monitoring and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-election and succession planning of Directors, in
particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

(10)Board meetings and committee meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly
intervals. Both the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee shall meet at least once every year and the Audit
Committee shall meet at least twice a year. Notices of not less
than fourteen days are given for all regular Board meetings to
provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend and include
matters in the agenda for a regular meeting. For other Board and
committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. The
agenda and accompanying board papers are dispatched to the
Directors or committee members at least three days before the
intended date of the meeting to ensure that they have sufficient
time to review the papers and be adequately prepared for the
meeting. When Directors or committee members are unable
to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known to
the chairman of the Board or the committee members prior to the
meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the Company Secretary
with copies circulated to relevant Board or Board Committee for
comments and records.
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Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the
Board and the committees and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Board or committee members
and dissenting views expressed. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and committee meeting are sent to the relevant Board or
committee members for comments within a reasonable time after
the date on which the meeting is held. The minutes of the Board
meetings are open for inspection by Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, eight board meetings

were held and the attendance of the individual Directors at these
meetings is set out in the table below:

Directors

B

Mr. Hu Yiping (Chairman and Executive Director)
A—FEE (ERFRTES)

Mr. Fei Zhongmin (Executive Director)
ERBGEEBMITES)

Ms. Shan Bei (Executive Director)*

BREZEGITESE)"

Mr. Hu Shihao (Non-executive Director)
ARREECGERITES)

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert (Independent Non-executive Director)
FoxkEET OB IERITES)

Mr. Ding Jiangang (Independent Non-executive Director)
TEmEE BIIFNITES)

Mr. Chen Hengliu (Independent Non-executive Director)
Chen HengliuZt & B IEATTE F)

*  Ms. Shan Bei resigned on 29 June 2023.

(11)Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specific
enquiry has been made of all the Directors and each of the
Directors has confirmed that he/she has complied with the Model
Code for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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(12) Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters. The Directors could have recourse to seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at the
Company’s expense and are encouraged to access and to consult
with the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group
are delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions
and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board to
ensure that they remain appropriate to the Company’s needs.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the management on the Company’s
behalf.

(13) Corporate governance function

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be
the collective responsibility of Directors and has delegated the
corporate governance duties to the Audit Committee which
include:

(@) to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the
Group;

(c) to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
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(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors of the Group; and

(e) to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code from
time to time adopted by the Group and the disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report to be contained in the
Company’s annual reports.

WORKFORCE DIVERSITY

The gender ratio in the workforce (including senior management) for
the year ended December 31, 2023 is 1:0.6. The total gender diversity
of the Group is balanced and the Group will continue to maintain the
gender diversity in workforce. For further details of gender ratio, please
refer to the disclosure in the ESG report.

INDEPENDENT OPINION MECHANISM
OF THE BOARD

The Company recognizes that Board independence is key to
good corporate governance. The Company has in place effective
mechanisms that underpin an independent Board and independent
views. The current composition of the Board comprises one third
of the independent non-executive Directors. The majority of the
members of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive Directors.
The Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee are both chaired
by independent non-executive Directors. The remuneration of
independent non-executive Directors are subject to a regular review to
maintain competitiveness and commensurate with their responsibilities
and workload. The independence of each independent non-executive
Director is assessed upon his/her appointment and annually.

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests,
if any, in proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board
at the Board meetings and abstain from voting, where appropriate.
External independent professional advice is available to all Directors,
including independent non-executive Directors, whenever deemed
necessary. The independent non-executive Directors have consistently
demonstrated strong commitment and the ability to devote sufficient
time to discharge their responsibilities at the Board.
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The Company has also established channels through formal and
informal means whereby independent non-executive Directors can
express their views in an open manner, and in a confidential manner,
should circumstances requires.

Accordingly, the Company, after review, is of the opinion that the
implementation of the Company’s independent opinion mechanism is
sufficient and effective.

BOARD COMMITTEES
(1) Nomination Committee

As at 31 December 2023, the nomination committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee”) comprised three
members, namely Mr. Hu Yiping (the chairman and executive
Director), Mr. Ding Jiangang and Mr. Chen Hengliu (each being
an independent non-executive Director). The majority of the
committee members are independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
Hu Yiping is the chairman of this committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the
following:

e To review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and to make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

e To develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the
qualifications of and evaluating candidates for directorship;

e To identify individuals who are suitably qualified to become a
member of the Board and to select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

e To assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors of the Company;
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e To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular, the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive officer of the Company; and

e To develop a policy concerning diversity of members of the
Board and to disclose the policy or a summary of the policy in
the corporate governance report.

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit
time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put
to the Board for decision. Their written terms of reference are
available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

During the year under review, one meeting of the Nomination

Committee was held and the attendance record of the Nomination
Committee members is set out in the table below:

Directors

B

Mr. Hu Yiping (Chairman)
HA—FEE(ER)

Mr. Ding Jiangang
T2mIsEE

Mr. Chen Hengliu

Chen HengliuZc 4

In the meeting, the Nomination Committee reviewed and
discussed the policy, procedure and criteria for nomination of
the Directors, reviewed and discussed the Board Diversity Policy
and discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing the
policy and the progress made towards meeting the measurable
objective in the policy, assessed the independence of independent
non-executive Directors, considered the re-appointment of the
retiring Directors, reviewed the time commitment required from the
non-executive Director and fulfilled required duties as aforesaid.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted the following policy with regard to nomination
of Directors.

1. Objective
The Policy aims to:

e set out the criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of directors of the Company;

e ensure that the Board of the Company has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
Company; and

e ensure the Board’s continuity and appropriate leadership at
Board level.

2. Scope

The Policy applies to the Directors of the Company and where
applicable, senior management prepared for Board positions
under the succession planning of the Company.

3. Nomination and Appointment of Directors
3.1 Criteria

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
Nomination Committee shall consider the following criteria in
evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships:

e (Character and integrity.

e Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under
the Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to the business
and corporate strategies of the Company.

e Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity
on the Board.

e Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a Board member and other directorships and
significant commitments.
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e Requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with
reference to the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules.

e The Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives
adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving
diversity on the Board.

e Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
business of the Company.

3.2 Nomination Procedures
3.2.1 Appointment of directors

() The Nomination Committee identifies individual(s)
suitably qualified to become Board members, having
due regard to the board diversity policy and the
nomination policy of the Company, and assesses the
independence of the proposed independent non-
executive director(s) as appropriate.

(i) The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s)
to the Board.

(i) The Board considers the individual(s) recommended
by the Nomination Committee, having due regard to
the board diversity policy and the nomination policy of
the Company.

(iv) The Board confirms the appointment of the
individual(s) as director(s) or recommends the
individual(s) to stand for election at a general meeting.
Individual(s) appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board will be subject
to re-election by shareholders of the Company at the
next annual general meeting after initial appointment
in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company.

(v) The chairman of the Nomination Committee shall
attend the annual general meeting of the Company
to answer the questions raised by the shareholders
on the nomination of directors and other matters in
relation to the Policy.
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(vi) The Shareholders approve the election of individual(s),
who stand(s) for election at general meeting, as
director(s).

3.2.2 Re-appointment of directors

()  The Nomination Committee shall review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the
retiring director including his attendance of Board
meetings and, where applicable, general meetings,
and the level of participation and performance of the
Board.

(i) The Nomination Committee shall also review and
determine whether the retiring director continues to
meet the criteria as set out in 3.1.

(i) The Board considers each retiring director
recommended by the Nomination Committee, having
due regard to the board diversity policy and the
nomination policy of the Company.

(iv) The Board recommends the retiring directors to
stand for re-election at the annual general meeting in
accordance with the Articles.

(v) The shareholders approve the re-election of directors at
the annual general meeting.

Review and Monitoring of the Policy

The Nomination Committee shall review the structure, size,
composition (including skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board on a regular basis at least annually and diversity of
the Board to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills
and experience and diversity of perspective appropriate to the
requirements for the business of the Company.

The Nomination Committee shall keep under review the leadership
needs of the Company, both executive and non-executive, with a
view to ensuring the continued ability of the Company to complete
effectively in the marketplace.

The Nomination Committee shall keep up to date and fully
informed about strategic issues and commercial changes affecting
the Company and the market in which it operates.
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(2) Remuneration Committee

As at 31 December 2023, the remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) comprised three
members, namely Mr. Fei Zhongmin (an executive Director),
Mr. Ding Jiangang (an independent non-executive Director) and
Mr. Chen Hengliu (an independent non-executive Director), the
majority of whom are independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
Ding Jiangang is the chairman of this committee.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the second model
described in E.1.2(c) under Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules
(i.e. make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management
members).

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include the
following:

e To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all the directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

e To review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time;

e To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of executive directors and senior management,
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment;

e To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors of the Company;
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To consider factors such as the level of remuneration paid
by comparable companies, the time commitment and
responsibilities of directors and senior management, and the
employment conditions of the Company and its subsidiaries
and consolidated affiliated entities;

To consider the level of remuneration required to attract and
retain directors to manage the Company successfully;

To consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Company and its subsidiaries;

To ensure that no director or any of his/her associates is
involved in deciding his or her own remuneration. For the
avoidance of doubt, members of the committee must not be
involved in deciding his or her own remuneration;

To review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

To review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

To review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules; and

To advise shareholders of the Company on how to vote in
respect of any service contracts of directors that require
shareholders’ approval in accordance with the Listing Rules,
and as to whether the terms are fair and reasonable, and
whether such contracts are in the interests of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole.
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Their written terms of reference are available on the respective
website of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year under review, one meeting of the Remuneration

Committee was held and the attendance record of the
Remuneration Committee members is set out in the table below:

Directors

E=x

Mr. Ding Jiangang (Chairman)
TERIEE(XRE)

Mr. Fei Zhongmin

BhgEsE

Mr. Chen Hengliu

Chen Hengliu%t £

In the meeting, the Remuneration Committee discussed and
reviewed the remuneration policy for Directors and senior
management of the Company, assessed performance of executive
Directors, and fulfilled required duties as aforesaid.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are disclosed in Note 8 to
the consolidated financial statements on pages 222 to 226 of this
annual report. Details of the remuneration by band of the members
of the senior management of the Company (except for Directors)

for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out below:

EEMBEGETRBIMAREARRSE
WL AR o
CEFE BT XAFHEEee

#TMEEEREMNEELHEEAIINT
*x:

Attended/Eligible
to attend

BHE AERHE
11

1/1

1/1

et FHZESwmAENTAQA
EELRREEBOFMEE  FETH
TEENERBIBR - WETT LA RKRE
BE -

ERESHTNFBRBERARFRE222
ZE226 B MR A S ImMAMN LS - # 22023
F12A31BEFEARARGSREREKE
(BEERIN RGBS SO HHFBEEH W
T

Number of
Remuneration band individual(s)
i == AE
Nil to RMB867,200 (equivalent to nil to HKD1,000,000) 2
TxE ARM867,2007T (HE R ZZE1,000,00077T)
RMB867,200 to RMB1,734,400 (equivalent to HKD1,000,000 to HKD2,000,000) 1
AR®867,2007T 2 ARE1,734,4007T (#8E 71,000,000/ 7T 22,000,000 7T)
RMB1,734,400 to RMB2,168,000 (equivalent to HKD2,000,000 to HKD2,500,000) 1

AR¥1,734,400t 2 AR ®2,168,0007T (FH & 722,000,000 7T 2,500,000 7T)
RMB2,168,000 to RMB3,035,200 (equivalent to HKD2,500,000 to HKD3,500,000) =
AR¥2,168,0007T E AR #3,035,2007T (FHE 72,500,000 7T £ 3,500,000/8 7T)
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(3) Audit Committee

As at 31 December 2023, the audit committee of the Company
(the “Audit Committee”) comprised three members, namely Mr.
Hu Shihao (a non-executive Director), Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert
(an independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Ding Jiangang
(an independent non-executive Director), the majority of whom are
independent non-executive Directors. Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert
is the chairman of this committee. The main duties of the Audit
Committee include the following:

e To be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal;

e To review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Committee should
discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences;

e To develop and implement policies on engaging an external
auditor to provide non-audit services. For this purpose,
“external auditor” includes any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm
or any entity that a reasonable and informed third party
knowing all relevant information would reasonably conclude
to be part of the audit firm nationally or internationally.
The committee should report to the Board, identifying and
making recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed;

e To monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
annual reports, accounts, half yearly reports and, if prepared
for publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant
financial reporting judgments contained in them;

e To review the Company’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems;
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To discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with management to ensure that management has performed
its duty to have effective systems. This discussion should
include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function;

To consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or
on its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings;

Where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;

To review the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ and
consolidated affiliated entities’ operating, financial and
accounting policies and practices;

To review the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response;

To ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter;

To report to the Board on the matters in the Terms of
Reference;

To review arrangements employees of the Company can use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters and
to ensure that proper arrangements are in place for fair and
independent investigation of these matters and for appropriate
follow-up action;

To act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;
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e To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

e To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

e To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

e To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors;

e To review the Company’s compliance with the corporate
governance code from time to time adopted and disclosure in
the corporate governance report;

e To review continuing connected transactions of the Company
and ensure compliance with terms approved by shareholders
of the Company; and

e To perform the Company’s corporate governance functions
with details set out in the paragraph headed “THE BOARD -
(13) Corporate Governance Function” above.

During the year under review, two meetings of the Audit
Committee were held and the attendance record of the Audit
Committee members at these meetings is set out in the table
below:

Directors

B

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert (Chairman)
FoEET (EFF)

Mr. Hu Shihao

ARF ST E

Mr. Ding Jiangang
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TEEBRRE

In those meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s
policies on corporate governance and discussed the same with
the Board, reviewed the financial reporting system, compliance
procedures, internal control and risk management systems
(including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions) and
associated processes and the re-appointment of the external
auditor and fulfilled required duties as aforesaid. The Board
had not deviated from any recommendation given by the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal
of external auditor.

The Audit Committee also reviewed (i) the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2023 as well as the audit’s report prepared by the external auditor
relating to accounting issues and major findings in course of audit;
(i) the interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries for
the six months ended 30 June 2023 as well as the review report
prepared by the auditor relating to accounting issues and major
findings in course of review; and (iii) the audit scope and audit plan
prepared by the auditor relating to the audit for the year ended 31
December 2023.

There are proper arrangements for employees, in confidence, to
raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control and other matters. Their written terms of reference
are available on the respective website of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

During the Reporting Period, there is no such matters that the
Board disagrees with the Audit Committee’s view on the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023 which give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of
the Group’s consolidated financial performance and consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval. The Company provides all members
of the Board with monthly updates on Company’s performance,
positions and prospects.

The statement by the external auditor of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of
the Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report in this
annual report.
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THE DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
REGARDING THE COMPANY’S ABILITY
TO CONTINUE AS A GOING CONCERN

The Company’s auditor, Elite Partners CPA Limited, issued a
disclaimer of opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group, details of which are set out in the sections headed “Disclaimer
of Opinion” and “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 131 to 132 of this annual report, note 2.1
to the consolidated financial statements on pages 143 to 150 of this
annual report.

Pursuant to code provision D.1.3 of the CG Code, the Board would
like to provide additional details on the disclaimer of opinion regarding
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

The Group incurred net loss of RMB1,960,305,000 for the year ended
31 December 2023. As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s net current
assets amounted to RMB4,821,819,000. As of that date, the Group’s
current portion of borrowings amounted to RMB13,449,949,000, while
its cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB4,599,819,000.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had not repaid certain senior
notes according to their scheduled repayment date and the
corresponding restructuring support agreement did not proceed
as scheduled and certain bank borrowings and other borrowings
had become default or cross default as described in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statement.

On 20 March 2024, a winding-up petition against the Company was
filed by China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited in the
High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region against
the Company, in relation to the non-payment of the abovementioned
senior notes issued by the Company in the principal amount of
US$350,000,000 and accrued interests of US$17,413,000.

The above conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainties
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. For further details of the multiple material
uncertainties relating to continue as a going concern as well as the
basis to the independent auditor’s disclaimer of opinion, please refer
to the independent auditor’s report as well as Note 2.1(iii).
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The Management’s Position, View and Assessment
on the Disclaimer of Opinion

The Board has given careful consideration to the matters raised by the
independent auditor, the liquidity and performance of the Group and
its available sources of financing in assessing whether the Group will
have sufficient financial sources to continue as a going concern. The
Board is of the view that there are no differences between the views
of the Board and the auditors on the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis with the disclosures of
multiple material uncertainties relating to events and conditions that
may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

In view of the uncertainties relating to going concern, the directors
of the Company have been undertaking the following measures to
improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position:

() the Group will actively negotiate with its creditors of the senior
notes and seek external financial advisers for various feasible
solutions to the relevant notes;

(i) the Group is actively negotiating with several existing financial
institutions and investors on the extension of certain borrowings.
The Group is also actively negotiating with various financial
institutions to secure new loans at reasonable costs;

(i) the Group will continue to implement measures to accelerate
the pre-sales and sales of its properties under development
and completed properties, and to speed up the collection of
outstanding sales proceeds and other receivables. Recent
relaxation of policies with regards to pre-sale requirements have
been encouraging to increase buyer interests and stimulate
demand. The Group will also continue to actively adjust sales
and pre-sale activities to better respond to changing markets to
achieve the latest budgeted sales and pre-sales volumes and
amounts;

(iv) the Group continues to identify suitable buyers and engage in
discussions with certain potential buyers regarding the possible
disposal of the equity interests in certain property development
projects or shopping malls of the Group in order to raise additional
funds; and

TRERHE

EEFUTRRERNTS  BER
B

EXgANEARERTERAU B RRGE
RER  CEERERBUZBENREAEE
AREBERRBMENEEARETARE LR -
EXeRh ESSHERBMHUSELER
AMEUGREMBREANER - REREEA
RHAEESBLERNELEARBNEN
MIERNE AN ZBEANNEE ML ED K

ENFRFEREZTHMRE  ~ARES
—EERIRTIER - AREAEEH RS M
K EA TR -

() Ao A L S S O A WS - 3
BEAR RIS S0 0B TR B ok A 4T
BATR

(i) AEEEBEGEETRESEEE KE
EEBRPETER - ARETERES
B REBELER - NI BORARSEH

===
1= /N

(i) AEESBEZERBANEFEFYE
R TYENTRE RHE - L HNRIKE =
RAEENHEMSFAREMREY - I
HARNREERENBER - BPREH
BERMEBRRIMFEL - REBE K EE
BEAREERBE RS - ERH T EHE
EMMIHIRE - EREANHEE - BER
BHE TR

(iv) AEBEEVEAEER  UBARLE
AEBEETYEFEIRR ORERBEY S
LDEETEEERTW  UWEKBEIE
TR

2023 FE#HRE ANNUAL REPORT 121



122 DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERHE

(v) the Group will continue to take active measures to control
administrative costs and maintain containment of capital
expenditures.

The directors of the Group have reviewed the Group’s cash flow
projections prepared by management, which cover a period of not less
than twelve months from 31 December 2023. They are of the opinion
that, taking into account the abovementioned plans and measures and
its available sources of financing, the Group will have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due within twelve months from 31 December
20283. Accordingly, the directors of the Group are satisfied that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.

However, should the Group be unable to achieve the abovementioned
plans and measures, it might not be able to continue to operate as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be made to write down the
carrying values of the Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts,
to provide for any further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify
non-current assets and noncurrent liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these adjustments have
not been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

The Board considers that while removal of the disclaimer opinion for
the upcoming financial statement will require taking into consideration
of the then conditions of circumstances, and thereby could only be
made at the end of the relevant reporting period, the proposed actions
could improve the Group’s liquidity and address the disclaimer of
opinion if they are successfully implemented.

Views of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee had critically reviewed the disclaimer of opinion,
and the management’s position, view and assessment concerning the
disclaimer of opinion and measures taken by the Group of addressing
the basis for disclaimer of opinion. The Audit Committee had also
discussed with the Company’s auditor regarding the financial position
of the Group, measures taken and to be taken by the Group, and
considered the auditor’s rationale and understood their consideration
in arriving its opinion. The Audit Committee has also discussed with
the management of the Company, reviewed the Group’s cash flow
projections prepared by management and the measures stated below,
and agrees with the management’s position and basis, especially on
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matters involving management’s substantial judgments. The Audit
Committee agrees that the Group’s measures as mentioned above
are carefully planned and closely monitored, which will significantly
improve the Group’s financial position if successfully implemented.
The Audit Committee also concurs with the Directors’ view as to
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Company on a going concern basis with multiple material uncertainties
disclosed. Moreover, the Audit Committee requested the management
to take all necessary actions to address the uncertainties regarding
going concern underlying the disclaimer of opinion that no such
disclaimer of opinion will be made in the forthcoming audited financial
statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for monitoring the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group on an
ongoing basis and review their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The management of the Group updates and reports the key risk areas,
including any remedial plans, if deemed necessary or appropriate, to
the Audit Committee for consideration. The identified key risk areas
and the appropriate risk mitigation strategies were reviewed and
commented by the Board at its meeting annually.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted review of both
design and implementation effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the year ended 31 December
20283, covering all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls, with a view to ensuring that resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions
are adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee communicates any
material issues to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, our internal control
department performed internal control review and carries out the
analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.
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The results of the independent review and assessment were reported
to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover, improvements in
internal control and risk management measures as recommended
to enhance the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group and mitigate risks of the Group were adopted by the Board.
Based on the findings and recommendations as well as the comments
of the Audit Committee, the Board considered the internal control and
risk management systems effective and adequate.

Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Company has established its enterprise risk management
framework in 2019. While the Board has the overall responsibility
to ensure that sound and effective internal controls are maintained,
management is responsible for designing and implementing an internal
control system to manage all kinds of risks facing by the Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritized and allocated treatments. Our
risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise Risk
Management - Integrated Framework, which allows the Board and
management to manage the risks of the Group effectively. The Board
receives regular reports through the Audit Committee that oversees
risk management and internal audit functions.

Our Risk Control Mechanism

The effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 December 2023 was conducted by
our internal audit department. The review is conducted annually. The
Group maintains a risk register to keep track of all identified major
risks of the Group. The risk register provides the Board, the Audit
Committee, and management with a profile of its major risks and
records management’s action taken to mitigate the relevant risks.
Each risk is evaluated at least annually based on its likelihood of
occurrence and potential impact upon the Group. The risk register is
updated by management as the risk owners with addition of new risks
and/or removal of existing risks, if applicable, at least annually, after
the annual risk evaluation has been performed. This review process
can ensure that the Group proactively manages the risks faced by it in
the sense that all risk owners have access to the risk register and are
aware of and alert to those risks in their area of responsibility so that
they can take follow-up action in an efficient manner.
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Our risk management activities are performed by management on an
ongoing process. The effectiveness of our risk management framework
will be evaluated at least annually, and periodic management meeting
is held to update the progress of risk monitoring efforts. Management
is committed to ensure that risk management forms part of the daily
business operation processes in order to align risk management with
corporate goals in an effective manner.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE MANAGEMENT RISK

The Group highly values ESG risk management and internal control
mechanism, and has proactively included relevant ESG governance
into its long-term planning. Based on the overall ESG management
philosophy, the Group has established an ESG management
framework and performed review on our ESG works in good time. The
Group has set up an ESG work group to be responsible for assisting
the Directors in assessment and identifying risks the Group faced
relating to ESG, so as to make sure that the Group has appropriate
and effective ESG risk management and internal control system in
place. For details, please refer to the Company’s ESG report.

Anti-corruption Policy

The Company does not tolerate any form of bribery, whether direct
or indirect, by, or of, its Directors, officers, employees, agents or
consultants or any persons or companies acting for it or on its behalf.
The Company adopts the anti-corruption policy in assisting the
employees in recognising circumstances which may lead to or give
the appearance of being involved in corruption or unethical business
conduct, so as to avoid such conduct which is clearly prohibited, and
to promptly seek guidance if necessary.

The anti-corruption policy will be reviewed on a regular basis, any
convicted cases will be reported to the Board.
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Whistleblowing Policy

The Company expects and encourages employees of the Group and
those who deal with the Group (e.g. suppliers, customers, creditors
and debtors) to report to the Company, in confidence, any suspected
impropriety, misconduct or malpractice concerning the Group. The
Company adopts the whistleblowing policy to provide reporting
channels and guidance on reporting possible improprieties and
reassurance to whistleblowers of the protection that the Group will
extend to them in the formal system.

The whistleblowing policy will be reviewed on a regular basis, any
suspected cases will be reported to the Audit Committee.

HANDLING OF INSIDE INFORMATION

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside
information in compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
notification of regular blackout period and securities dealing

procedures including

restrictions to relevant Directors and employees, identification of
project by code name and dissemination of information to stated
purpose and on a need-to-know basis have been implemented by the
Group to guard against possible mishandling and/or unauthorised use
of inside information within the Group.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2023, an analysis of the fee paid/
payable to the external auditors of the Company in respect of audit
services and non-audit services is set out as follows:
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND PRIMARY
CONTACT OF THE COMPANY

The Company engaged Ms. Chau Hing Ling, the executive director
of Corporate Services of Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited (a
company secretarial service provider), as the company secretary of the
Company. Her primary contact at the Company is Mr. Hu Yiping, an
executive director of the Company.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Chau Hing Ling
undertook not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training to
update their skills and knowledge during the year ended 31 December
2023.

GENERAL MEETING

During the year ended 31 December 2023, one general meeting, being
the 2023 annual general meeting of the Company (“2023 AGM”) was
held on 26 June 2023.

Name of the Directors

EEEW

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Hu Yiping

st

Mr. Fei Zhongmin

B E

Ms. Shan Bei (resigned on 29 June 2023)
B8 1 L+ (R2023%6 A29A8HT)

Non-executive Director
FHITES

Mr. Hu Shihao

RiEE St

Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHTES

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert

EoxtEE L

Mr. Ding Jiangang

T R4

Mr. Chen Hengliu

Chen Hengliuft &=

TRERHE

ARBNRAMERETEBRE
A

ARRBEZEAAMERBHEE Vistra
Corporate Services (HK) Limited >3 IRTE 1T
EEABRRZTETARANAAME - H1F
RARAMEEBMBARRARNNITESIA—

all

AESFCETRA £3.20&MRE - B E2023
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BRERE

HZE2023F 12 A31HILFE - A A 7AHK2023
F6HA26BEITT —ABREKRKE - AARQT
2023 F MEAFAKE ([2023F/EAF K
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Directors’
Attendance
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1/1

1/1

1/1

1/1

1/1

1/1

1/1
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The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, uses annual general meetings or other
general meetings to communicate with them and encourage their
participation. The chairman of the Board, the Chief Executive, and the
chairmen of Board Committees, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee attended the 2023 AGM to answer questions
and collect views of shareholders.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the shareholders and potential investors on the
Group’s business, performance and strategies. The Company also
recognizes the importance of timely and non-selective disclosure of
information, which will enable shareholders and investors to make the
informed investment decisions.

The Company adopted the shareholders communication policy, which
set out the framework the Company has put in place to promote
effective communication with shareholders so as to enable them
to engage actively with the Company and exercise their rights as
shareholders in an informed manner. The shareholders communication
policy will be reviewed on a regular basis by the Board.

The Company has established a range of communication channels
between itself and its Shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.
These include (i) the publication of interim and annual reports and/
or dispatching circulars, notices, and other announcements; (ii) the
annual general meeting or extraordinary general meeting providing a
forum for Shareholders to raise comments and exchanging views with
the Board; (i) updated and key information of the Group available on
the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website; (iv) the
Company’s website offering communication channel between the
Company and its stakeholders,and (v) the Company’s share registrar in
Hong Kong serving the Shareholders in respect of all share registration
matters.
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To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a two-
way relationship and communication between the Company and its
shareholders and maintains a website at http://www.dothinkgroup.
com, where up-to-date information on the Company’s business
operations and developments, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for public
access. Shareholders and investors may at any time contact the
Company’s Investor Relations Department at 852-36118195 or email
to ir@dexingroup.com.

Having considered the multiple channels of communication, the Board
is satisfied that the shareholders communication policy has been
properly implemented during 2023 and is effective.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
will be proposed by the chairman of that meeting for each substantially
separate issue at shareholder meetings, including nomination and
election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner
after each shareholder meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.

(1) Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

In accordance with Article 64 of the Articles, any one or more
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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(2) Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands. However, shareholders who wish to propose
resolutions may follow Article 64 of the Articles for requisitioning
an extraordinary general meeting and including a resolution at
such meeting. The requirements and procedures of Article 64 of
the Articles are set out above.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

(3) Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests
to the Company as follows:

Address: Room 1202, 12th Floor, China Resources Building, 26
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Attention: Investor Relations Department

Tel: 852-36118195

Email: ir@dexingroup.com

Enquiries will be dealt with in a timely and informative manner by
the Company.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company amended its
memorandum and articles of association of the Company to include
relevant provisions to reflect the requirements of the Listing Rules,
including but not limited to the Core Shareholder Protection Standards
in Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules, the Companies Act, Cap. 22 (Act 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, to adopt
house-keeping improvements to the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association and for corresponding consequential changes in
connection with the proposed amendments.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
31 March 2023 and the amended and restated memorandum of
association and second amended and restated articles of association
published on the website of the Stock Exchange.
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elite
=~ partners

To the Shareholders of Dexin China Holdings Company Limited
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Dexin China Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”), which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of material accounting policy information.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group. Because of the significance of the matter described
in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have
not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial
statements. In all other respects, in our opinion the consolidated
financial statements have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
Going concern

As set out in Note 2.1 (iii) to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group incurred net loss of RMB1,960,305,000 for the year ended 31
December 2023. As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s net current
assets amounted to RMB4,821,819,000. As of that date, the Group’s
current portion of borrowings amounted to RMB13,449,949,000, while
its cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB4,599,819,000.
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In addition, as at 31 December 2023, the Group had not repaid certain
senior notes according to their scheduled repayment date and the
corresponding restructuring support agreement was not proceed
as scheduled and certain bank borrowings and other borrowings
had become default or cross default as described in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statement. These conditions, together with other
matters disclosed in note 2.1 to the financial statements, indicate the
existence of material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The directors of the Company have been undertaking measures to
improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position, which are set
out in note 2.1 to the financial statements. The validity of the use
of going concern assumption on which the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared depends on the outcome of these
measures, which are subject to uncertainties, including: (i) successfully
negotiating with the creditors of senior notes for various feasible
solutions to the relevant notes: (ii) successfully carrying out the
Group’s business strategy plan including the acceleration of the sales
of properties; (iii) successfully obtaining of additional new sources of
financing as and when needed and extending of certain borrowings;
(iv) successfully disposing of the Group’s equity interest in property
development projects or shopping malls when suitable; and (v)
successfully implementing measures to speed up the collection of
outstanding sales proceeds.

Should the Group be unable to achieve the abovementioned plans
and measures, it might not be able to continue to operate as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write down the
carrying values of the Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts,
to provide for any further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify
non-current assets and noncurrent liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these adjustments
have not been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
However, we have not obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence in
relation to verify the assumption or input or existence in relation to the
measures describe above and regarding the Group’s ability to meet its
financial obligations and we have disclaimed our opinion.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and to issue an auditor’s report. We report solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. However, because of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion on these consolidated financial statements.
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We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chow Ka Li with Practising Certificate number
P0O7809.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Level 23, YF Life Tower

33 Lockhart Road

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Hong Kong,
25 April 2024
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

ek

Year ended 31 December
HBE12A31BLEE

2023 2022

20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Revenue Wt A 6 24,509,810 22,145,481
Cost of sales $H& A 7 (22,710,556)  (19,967,717)
Gross profit EF 1,799,254 2,177,764
Other income E At A 9 92,603 126,379
Other losses — net b &8 — F%58 10 (212,390) (85,061)
Selling and marketing expenses 56 & 4§55 2 7 (845,828) (689,179)
Administrative expenses 1T X 7 (1,054,841) (870,468)
Fair value losses on investment properties & & ¥ % A 72 BEEIE 15 (533,362) (25,784)
Operating (loss)/profit & (E518) /78 (754,564) 633,651
Finance income @& U A 11 64,685 87,995
Finance costs @i & Bk 2 11 (417,154) (185,855)
Finance costs — net @& KR — 558 (352,469) (97,860)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates D E A &R E R

/N 19 (204,065) 626,118
(Loss)/profit before income tax FTS %A1 (E518),F8 (1,311,098) 1,161,909
Income tax expenses FTiSHiF 12 (649,207) (1,000,375)
(Loss)/profit for the year £ (E518) /FIH (1,960,305) 161,534
(Loss)/profit attributable to: SA T & 7 G (B518) /78 :
Owners of the Company A Q F1# A A (2,188,918) 373,716
Non-controlling interests JF12f&# 25 228,613 (212,182)

(1,960,305) 161,534

(Loss)/earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company

AAFEEAELER (BB, 2F

- Basic and diluted — A& REE 29 RMB(0.74) RMBO0.14

AR¥(0.79)t AR¥0.147T

The above consolidated income statement should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

VA _E#R 6 W ah 3 FE S RE BT PN R — G BI7E -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEEBER

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE

2023 2022

20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARBTIT

(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year £ (E18)

FEAREE(ER),WESEE (1,960,305) 161,534

Attributable to: A T & F LG :
Owners of the Company AN A FIHEA A (2,188,918) 373,716
Non-controlling interests JE#2 f&#E 25 228,613 (212,182)
(1,960,305) 161,534

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should A _E4RA 2 U a5 3R FE B BERT M s — GERIE -
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
nREERER

As at 31 December
M12831H

2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets JEREE E
Property, plant and equipment % B = M & & 14 586,089 1,729,896
Investment properties 1% & ¥ 3 15 4,256,680 4,138,410
Intangible assets 2 & & 33 104
Investments accounted for using the equity method f# A #2547 BREVIRE 19 4,774,734 5,637,097
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss A R BEE R
HE#t A B e/mEE 21 11,100 9,743
Deferred income tax assets #EIEFT1S 5 & &= 17 774,082 573,143
10,402,718 12,088,393
Current assets REEE
Properties under development 2% 5 ¥ 3 22 31,675,601 60,921,824
Completed properties held for sale ¥ {EH & HE T3 22 8,563,238 3,234,456
Trade and other receivables and prepayments & 5 [ H fth f& g ZUE
UA KR TR FRIAE 23 3,906,490 4,500,560
Amounts due from non-controlling interests &Y FE12 B4 25 218 33 10,150,455 13,662,529
Amounts due from related parties [ Uz B8 75 7B 38 5,186,593 5,969,111
Contract acquisition costs & #J U BB 2 6(b) 291,607 358,949
Prepaid income taxes T FT{S ¢ 1,200,478 1,937,369
Restricted cash %R 3 & 24 145,405 67,710
Cash and cash equivalents 384 NI & ZEY 25 4,599,819 7,307,483
65,719,686 97,959,991
Assets classified as disposal group held for sale D38 A EHE~
HEARNEE 42 374,424 -
66,094,110 97,959,991
Total assets EE#%H 76,496,828 110,048,384
EQUITY ##%
Capital and reserves attributable to the owners of the Company
RATEEAEEELRREE
Share capital %74 26 10,130 10,130
Reserves & 27,28 4,342,088 6,551,026
4,352,218 6,561,156
Non-controlling interests 3F#5 p&#E 25 7,742,042 13,561,053
Total equity #4258 12,094,260 20,122,209

2023 FE#HRE ANNUAL REPORT 137



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
neEEERRER

As at 31 December
M12H831H

2023 2022

20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT

LIABILITIES &&
Non-current liabilities JE R B A &

Borrowings &3k 30 2,958,774 11,850,522
Amounts due to non-controlling interests J& 1< FE4%2 A% 48 25 7018 33 99,990 292,990
Deferred income tax liabilities #EEFT{S T B & 17 60,726 175,422
Lease liabilities A& & & 16 10,787 9,898

3,130,277 12,328,832

Current liabilities R E & &

Borrowings &k 30 13,449,949 9,340,550
Trade and other payables & 5 & E fth & (< Z 18 31 9,922,499 10,565,546
Amounts due to non-controlling interests J& 1< FE4%2 A% 42 25 7 18 33 3,006,638 3,351,907
Amounts due to related parties &1 B8 E 75 ZUE 38 6,885,553 6,990,372
Contract liabilities & 418 & 6(c) 26,200,149 46,326,798
Current income tax liabilities ENEAFTSFi & & 1,663,016 988,769
Lease liabilities FHE & & 16 - 3,753
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss A BEFE A

HEFT A ABENemasE 39 2,000 29,648

61,129,804 77,597,343
Liabilities classified with disposal group held for sale #2335 {EH & 2 H & 4H 7

Bz 8l 42 142,487 =
61,272,291 77,597,343

Total liabilities & E# % 64,402,568 89,926,175
Total equity and liabilities &= R B E# 76,496,828 110,048,384

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction LA F4R& & B Bk FEHEBEMMW T —G80E -
with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 135 to 287 were $135%F287 B W44 B EM&T N 20244 A25
approved by the Board of Directors on 25 April 2024 and were signed HESESSHE  WREXEFTSEES
on its behalf.

Hu Yiping Fei Zhongmin
tA—F B
Director Director
EE EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAEREDE

Attributable to the owners of the Company
AARERAEE

Non-
Share Other Statutory Retained controlling Total

capital reserves reserves earnings Total interests equity

e Rt R REEA a | FERER ERiE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AEETR  ARMTR  AR¥Tz  ARMTr  ARMTR | ARMTR | ARETR
(Note 26) (Note 27) (Note 28)
(Kz£26) (Hystan) (Kzt28)

Balance at 1 January 2023 7202351 A1 R &8 10,130 618,760 1,414,956 4,517,310 6,561,156 13,561,053 20,122,209
Comprehensive loss 2T &2

- Loss for the year - ERER - - - 218918 (218891 28613 (1,960,305)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FR2 A ELE - - - (2188918)  (2,188,918) 228613 (1,960,305)

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners

REEAEERRRANSHINRE

Capital injections from non-controlling interests JE2REETE - - - - - 92,221 92,221
Retum of capital to non-controling interests &4 A F

SRR - - - - - (3105009 (3,105,002
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries (Note 37)

WEEHB AR kBN (3437) - (20,031) - - (20,031) (624,356) (644,387)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 43) WERHIB 22 3] (Hi7£43) - - - - - 39,020 39,020
Distributions to non-controlling interests 43E2REZH AR - - - - - (950,793) (950,793)
Disposal of interests in subsidiaries without change of control (Note 37)

ERBEEHIERENER T EMBARER (HH37) - 11 - - 11 1,841 1,852
Disposal of subsiciaries (Note 41) &K B A (Hz41) - - - - - (1,500,555  (1,500,555)
Total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners

EEEAUREAREANSH) HRAAE - (20,020) - - (20,020)  (6,047,624)  (6,067,644)
Balance at 31 December 2023 #2023 12431 A4 e 10,130 598,740 1,414,956 2,328,392 4,352,218 7,742,042 12,004,260
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GOBERDE

Attributable to the owners of the Gompany

Non-
Share Other Statutory Retained controlling
capital resenves resenves eamings interests
BE R & ke ’
RMB'000 RMB'000 ‘ RMB'000
ARETT ARETT KB T T
(Note 26) (Note 27) (Note 28)
(Ht3rer) (Htr2s)
Balance at 1 January 2022 202251 A 1R {146 9,200 506,465 1,414,956 4,143,594 6,074215 15993290 22,067,505
Comprehensive income 2 A4z
- Profit for the year - ERFIE - - - 373,716 373,716 (212,182) 161,534
Total comprehensive income for the year £ A2 AIMEEE - - - 373,716 373,716 (212,182) 161,534

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners

REEARERRRANSHINRE

Subscription of shares &R A 930 204,371 = = 205,301 - 205,301
Capital injections from non-controlling interests FE 1k Ex )+ & - - - - 632,874 632,874
Return of capital to non-controling interests &4 F

kRS - - - - - (223898 (2,238,928
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries (Note 37)

WERME D AR (WEE87) - 14,201 - - 14291 (1034402 (1,020,111)
Acquisition of subsiciaries (Note 43) IS 22 7] (3£43) - - - - - 80,319 80,319
Disposal of interests in subsidiaries without change of control (Note 37)

ERBEEHERENER THEMBAMER (HH37) - 130,000 - - 130,000 547,000 677,000
Dividends fR & = (236,367) = = (236,367) = (236,367)
Disposal of subsiolaries (Note 41) it & B2 (341) - - - - - (206,918) 206,918)
Total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners

EREACHEARBANSH HRAEH 930 112,29 - - 113225 (2,220,085 (2,106,830)
Balance at 31 December 2022 4202212 331 R 144 10,130 618,760 1,414,956 4,517,310 6,561,156 13,561,053 20,122,209

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read LA 4R & #E 25 & B) 2% & B2 g Ff BT 5 — OFBIRE o
in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

140 DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED fE{5HERZERERAT



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mEHERER

Cash flows from operating activities E&FHNREHKE

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A31HLEEE

2023

20235
RMB’000
ARET T

2022
20224
RMB’000
AR¥ET T

Cash generated from operations & EFT15R & 32(a) 6,413,683 6,874,645
Income tax paid 2 T8 %% (674,218) (1,273,135)
Interest paid 2515 (908,747) (2,172,935)
Interest received & U F & 34,588 81,044
Net cash generated from in operating activities 482 /GBI FT15IR £ /F 58 4,865,306 3,509,619
Cash flows from investing activities R ZFEBNHRERE
Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment

HEBEYXE BB NRE A (38,122) (72,397)
Payments for purchase of investment properties 5ti& B & & ¥ % % 5018 - (415,622)
Investments in joint ventures ¥ & &R E - (14,632)
Investments in associates $fB& N a1 & (282,159) (1,308,105)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

BERAABENEAHZHTABENCREE (16,657) (76,300)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

HERARBEFEAAEZH A A BERNEREEMSIEA - 203,713
Advances to non-controlling shareholders [f]3F 1% A% i% B2 24 7% (2,604,007) (9,356,744)
Repayment of advances from non-controlling shareholders

FEPEAR IR R BB B R 2,015,500 4,960,830
Advances to third parties [f15 = J5 #3% (138,279) (898,719)
Repayment of advances from third parties 55 = 7B &85 487,711 486,978
Advances to joint ventures and associates [f]4& & 1b 2 K B & A Al 2 3 (5,184,197) (6,140,730)
Collection of advances from joint ventures and associates

W El & & 1 3 Bl 8 R R BVR 4,251,698 3,922,544
Net cash inflow from acquisition of subsidiaries Y& B A 7 13RI &R A 68,026 165,384
Advances to other related parties A £ i BA B 75 24 5k (103,110) (41,440)
Collection of advances from other related parties 4 2] E 1t B B 77 8 3% 8,957 9,343
Dividends received from joint ventures and associates

BliaeahR Mg RTIRE 103,861 162,427
Net cash inflow for disposal of subsidiaries &/ B QA RIFIR & R A 41 297,934 449,085
Net cash outflow for the disposel group & 4ERIFEIR &R (122) =
Return of capital from joint ventures and associates & ‘& {b 2 [ Bt & A 7]

BEEN 288,900 727,833
Net cash used in investing activities & & &8I FT IR & F 58 (844,066) (7,236,552)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AERTRER

Cash flows from financing activities B EFENHR L RE
Proceeds from borrowings from bank and other financial Institutions

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31HLEEE

2023

20234
RMB’000
ARE T

2022
20224
RMB’000
ARET T

BR1T R E b & BB RO (8 5P 15 5RIR 3,561,217 6,452,900
Repayments of borrowings from bank and other financial Institutions

BE B RITREME REEBNER (7,132,067)  (16,349,181)
Repayments of loans to third parties (Bi& % = T B E (501,066) (336,401)
Advances from third parties 38 5 =5 8K 314,040 1,738,739
Advances from joint ventures and associates & B & &1 3 L #4 N RIH B 3,922,226 3,295,290
Repayment of advances to joint ventures and associates

A& S bR L E RN RIEEENR (4,077,019) (3,398,061)
Advances from other related parties 3% & £ ih B8 B )7 B9 £ 3K 119,698 182,724
Repayment of advances to other related parties [F)H {th B85 77 (B i1 B3¢ (39,952) (35,710)
Capital injection from non-controlling interests R E T & 92,211 1,390,710
Capital returned to non-controlling interests %2 [a] JE4%2 A% 4 25 & 7K (2,704,483) (757,837)
Payments for acquisition of non-controlling interests it W B JE 22 IS #2515 7% (644,387) (1,188,829)
Advances from non-controlling interests & B FF#5 B HE 25 A B K 1,397,813 3,878,902
Repayment of advances to non-controlling interests

M FEIEAR 2 (B R K (975,656) (1,515,511)
Principal elements of lease payments F & MR H F B D (2,865) (7,679)
Proceeds from subscription of shares R8I A5 2B - 205,301
Proceeds from disposal of interests in subsidiaries without loss of control

FEARKEEHENERL T L EHE QR ERAERIE 1,852 24,427
Restricted cash for borrowings & Z &) 2B #1138 & (77,695) 1,385,290
Net cash used in financing activities

MEEARSFE (6,746,133) (5,034,926)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

RERASEB/YWRL FHR (2,724,893) (8,761,859)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year F#138& KIREEEY 7,307,483 16,110,197
Foreign exchanges on cash and cash equivalents 38 & KIR &S EYE R 17,229 (40,855)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year EXBHERBEELEEY 25 4,599,819 7,307,483

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Dexin China Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16 January 2018 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111,
holding company. The Company and its subsidiaries (the

Cayman lIslands. The Company is an investment

“Group”) are principally engaged in the property development and
construction services, property investment and hotel operations in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company’s shares were listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 26 February 2019.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), unless otherwise stated.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies
information adopted in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied
to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial
statements are for the Group consisting of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

() Compliance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs”) and Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“HKCO”)

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs and disclosure
requirements of the HKCO.

e R ERR M

—REHR

EEhEERERAR (KRR RER
EHENRENR2018F1 16 EM SR
S IRERRER AT - AT
P BRI A Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands ° Z&xA &) A&
BERAGE c RRRIREMBAR ([KE

EDEZRPEARLME([HE])KE
MEREREERS  MERERBEE

o

KRB GBR2019F2 826 B EE BB A
RHFAR AR ([BFT]) £ e

BRIERBHRY  TRIZFERA
ARE(TARED 25 -

EXRETTBEREN

B HR A

A FRERRZERE M HHREREE
MZERSTBRENEE - KRB B HA
O ZEBBCRRFTEERFEER —BE
o BBHRRDARER (BARQE REH
BAREK) mE -

o

21 REEE

0 @75%@%%¢ﬁ%0§%%%
320 REER TN (55
@ o)

AEENGEMBERETIREEE
B %5 S R Rl R BB R R R B RO 3%
BRERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(1)

(i)

144 DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and investment properties, which are carried at fair
value.

Going concern basis

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
incurred net loss of RMB1,960,305,000. As at 31
December 2023, the Group’s net current assets
amounted to RMB4,821,819,000. As of that date, the
Group’s current portion of borrowings amounted to
RMB13,449,949,000, while its cash and cash equivalents
amounted to RMB4,599,819,000.

On 13 December 2023, the Company announced that
the restructuring support agreement for restructuring of
senior notes was not proceed as scheduled such that the
aggregate principal amount of the relevant outstanding
senior notes of US$350,000,000 and the accrued interest
of US$17,413,000 became overdue. As of the date of
approval of these consolidated financial statements, the
Company has not made such payments.

In additions, as at 31 December 2023, certain bank
borrowings and other borrowings of the Group with
the principal balance of RMB2,219,550,000 became
cross-default and repayable on demand under the
circumstances that the unpaid senior notes as described
above.

BETHRERERAA

2. EXEFBREHR (H)

21 REE%E (58)

(i) FELHAZL

(i)

BAMBRRDRBELKALE
2 WEEHEAL BEHEAR
BHH ARGNSBAEREAN
% (RO (EHE3I) fetsaT -

GRS R E

HZE2023F12A31HIEEF
E AEEEEFEBARK
1,960,305,0007T ° }A20234F 12
AB1H  AEBRBHEEFE
BAR4,821,819,0007T ° &
ZZA  AEEEXRORBTD
AANR®A13,449,949,0007T °
MERERESSEMARARKE
4,599,819,0007T °

M2023%F12A13H * X RFEMH
BHELAEENERIEHEL
ARETEIETT - BBURBRAREN
BEEREAR S HFE350,000,0003%
JT N BT FIE.17,413,000E T8
B HERFREMBHRERIEH
B ARRNARIEE BB -

SN - PA2023%F12 A31H » A%
B Ao HEARK2219,550,000
TTHE TRITERREAMERE L
MARMELEEIBR TR XEL
BEBRERER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER ()

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 fRBEXE (58)

(i) Going concern basis (continued)

On 20 March 2024, a winding-up petition against the
Company (the “Petition”) was filed by China Construction
Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited in the High Court of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the “High
Court”) against the Company, in relation to the non-
payment of the above mentioned senior notes issued by
the Company.

The above conditions indicated the existence of material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In view of aforesaid mentioned, the directors of the Group
have given careful consideration to the future liquidity
and performance of the Group and its available sources
of financing in assessing whether the Group will have
sufficient financial sources to continue as a going concern.
The following plans and measures are formulated to
mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve the financial
position of the Group:

(i) The Group will actively negotiate with its creditors of
the senior notes and seek external financial advisers
for various feasible solutions to the relevant notes;

(i) The Group is actively negotiating with several existing
financial institutions and investors on the extension
of certain borrowings. The Group is also actively
negotiating with various financial institutions to secure
new loans at reasonable costs;

(i) FFEAEERE (B

M2024F3 5208 @ P REEZIRTT
(M) IR BIR AR MBS ERTT
HEmE AR (EEER]) B
HARRMBEREF(2H)) ' A
ABBARINARRIEITH LB
FBIE o

FRIERKRAFESATEEMN
AR ASERELERNELSE
j(%%ﬁﬂ °

EREMER - AREEESRA
AEERTERHVBERER
FESER  DEBEZERASER
RE B 2 R IR LA R AT A A &
R o 72 4R AR R EN 14 B ) R B B
B REBEIE A T8 R IE
i

() AEESEGEETRRERE
ANETTHER - YHBEERES
BREAITRRIR 7 &= ROMNEB A
BERNER

(i) AEBEZRBESEBERER
BREFHEBBRHELERE THER
HIR - AEE RS SREE
BRGEAGBXNAESHE

.
A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER (8)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 fREE%E (58)

(i) Going concern basis (continued) (iii) FEAEAS B (B

146 DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

(i) The Group will continue to implement measures to
accelerate the pre-sales and sales of its properties
under development and completed properties, and to
speed up the collection of outstanding sales proceeds
and other receivables. Recent relaxation of policies
with regards to pre-sale requirements have been
encouraging to increase buyer interests and stimulate
demand. The Group will also continue to actively
adjust sales and pre-sale activities to better respond
to changing markets to achieve the latest budgeted
sales and pre-sales volumes and amounts;

(iv) The Group continues to identify suitable buyers and
engage in discussions with certain potential buyers
regarding the possible disposal of the equity interests
in certain property development projects or shopping
malls of the Group in order to raise additional funds;
and

(v) The Group will continue to take active measures to
control administrative costs and maintain containment
of capital expenditures.

The directors of the Group have reviewed the Group’s
cash flow projections prepared by management, which
cover a period of not less than twelve months from 31
December 2023. They are of the opinion that, taking
into account the above mentioned plans and measures
and its available sources of financing, the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its operations
and to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due within twelve months from 31 December 2023.
Accordingly, the directors of the Group are satisfied that
it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

BETHRERERAA

(i) SR B AR B R AR B IR

MRFAZRTYEFAERKRTY
KIHE - RS INRIEERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER ()

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 fRBEXE (58)

(i) Going concern basis (continued)

The management has formulated a number of plans
and taken a number of measures, but the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern still depends on
(i) successfully negotiating with the creditors of senior
notes for various feasible solutions to the relevant
notes: (ii) successfully carrying out the Group’s business
strategy plan including the acceleration of the sales of
properties; (iii) successfully obtaining of additional new
sources of financing as and when needed and extending
of certain borrowings; (iv) successfully disposing of the
Group’s equity interest in property development projects
or shopping malls when suitable; and (v) successfully
implementing measures to speed up the collection of
outstanding sales proceeds.

Should the Group be unable to achieve the
abovementioned plans and measures, it might not be able
to continue to operate as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to write down the carrying values
of the Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for any further liabilities which might arise, and
to reclassify non-current assets and noncurrent liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities, respectively. The
effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in
these consolidated financial statements.

(i) FFEAEERE (B

EEEE TSR T EILRAE T
Hit EAKERSELESE LR
BRREMBENIIBURR  ()AKIh H
BEFEERANEBARENESE
AITTEOR T SRAETTRER ¢ (DARKTH#
TAEENEREIEETE - 2550
HRYEHE  (IVEBZERKID
BB ERENRAET
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BRYEFZERB IBEYH LK
B R(V)BRIITE B b AN IR AR
HERANEE -

5 AN R B R RE =B Ll st & & fa
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR ERR M EE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(iv) New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accounts (“HKICPA”)
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
Group’s annual period beginning on 1 January 2023 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

2. EXEFBREHR (H)

21 REE%E (58)

() AR I 2 HAT RATHERT 2

BB B ER

REBNAFEERRELEMIERE
BXREABERSHMAS((HH
SERAE]) BB T X
ISR 2 B AN BRELER] - WH
ANEE2023F1 A1BRBNEE
HAFE 3 I AE 2K

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments
BB GRELERIFETIR R & 4 MAERERT
Amendment to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
ERGTERE1RREBM B RE LR A BREKE
BEBMER2R BTN
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates
ER G ERESHE 2B FEHEFTE R
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a single transaction
BB G ERFE125 2 BT A HE-XHELNEENBEHEBONREERE
Amendments to HKAS 12 International tax reform — Pillar Two Model Rules
BRI ERE125 2B BIBR B 2T — SXAE — SR RAR

Except as stated below, new and amendments to HKFRSs
listed above did not have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER ()

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 fRBEXE (58)

(iv) New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time
in the current year. HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements is amended to replace all instances of the term
“Significant accounting policies” with “material accounting
policy information”. Accounting policy information
is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it
can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if
the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting
policy information relating to material transactions, other
events or conditions is itself material.

If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial accounting
policy information, such information must not obscure
material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also amended
to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step materiality
process” to accounting policy disclosures and to judge
whether information about an accounting policy is material
to its financial statements. Guidance and examples are
added to the Practice Statement.

() AIEEH B LR 2 HAT RANEATZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR ERR M EE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2. EXEFBREHR (H)

21 REE%E (58)

(v) Amendments to HKFRSs that are not mandatorily for the

current year

The Group has not early applied the following

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective

Amendments to HKAS 1

BAGRTERF1R BRI A

Amendments to HKAS 1

BARGTERFE1R ZEFT A

Amendments to HKFRS 10

BRUHMEERFE105 K

and HKAS 28

FR G ERFE285 2 BRI A

Amendments to HKFRS 16

BBV BHRELERFE165 BTN
Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7
BB EAETR BBV BRE

ERETH ZAEFT A
Amendments to HKAS 21

R G ERFE215] 2 BRI A

() AFRIFEFIERIEEET.C ZEH

HHEER

B KIE S A THIBEAE
kAR IS 2 BB RS
8

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current'
SBEAERMEIERE

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants'
MmN ERB B E

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture®

REZFHEABEN

AgAEERZRZEEHERTE®

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback!
SROATHEEAE

Supplier Finance Arrangements'’

HEBBE L

Lack of Exchangeability?

R A R 2

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2024.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2025.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.

The Group is in the process of assessing the potential impact
of the amendments to HKFRSs but are not yet in a position

to determine whether the amendments to HKFRSs will have

a material impact on the Group’s performance and financial

position and on the disclosures. The amendments to HKFRSs

may result in changes to how the Group’s performance and
financial position are prepared and presented in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER ()

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

22 M E]

2.2 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(a) Business combinations

Business combinations under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporates the
financial statement items of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been consolidated from the date
when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are consolidated using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised
in respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in
the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of
the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated income statements and the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income includes the results
of each of the combining entities or businesses from
the earliest date presented or since the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under the
common control, where this is a shorter period, regardless
of the date of the common control consolidation.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by those
entities. All intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between combining
entities or business are eliminated on consolidation.

MEAREASEEREHIRNMEE

B (EREBILER - EAKEN2HEE

*%i‘“ﬁﬁﬁ@%ﬂy SE A 2 O 3R A R bR sk
%ﬁ—lmliliﬁﬂ’ﬁéﬂ C WHERENBBRE

HER DN EBRPELZF LR -

RSB HIZERE - MEBAR B ES
rEREE ZKE@“‘EItEEﬁ? N
WRIEHIRER EE AR IERA AR

(a) EBEA G

KIS T EI#HE G

RAMBHRREBEEEXLRENS
G#E’JA HFEEBREBNIM B RKIA

CBEIME AR EAHFEBRER
%mxh%ﬂﬁh%\l%ﬁ HED&HEE
N

BHE %&‘%%&E’Jﬁé/ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ?
HOARASNRBREERS

AR o IR R RERS /RT'
BT BT TR KBS
ARAEE AEAIARRENR
R EEFENEDEDKRZHS
PEEF R A B B 0 HERR R AT FRIR ©

FERBERMGEEHARERERE
EAHBEBARFAMKILINOZE
R A HERIEKERT
HREES 2 AR AREHE A
/E)E’J%,\ N8 8 R4 ) 4R
BARMAH -

B R — Rt &t
A GFE B3 2 RROFT A
ABRS - EHEAESR
SR DA AR -

2023 FE#HRE ANNUAL REPORT 151



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2. EXEFBREHR (H)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued) 22 MiE A =] (4])

(a) Business combinations (continued) (a) EFEGf

Business combinations not under cormmon control

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interest and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation are measured at either
fair value or the present ownership interest’s proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at their acquisition date fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER ()

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued) 2.2 KiE A =l (48)

(a) Business combinations (continued) (a) EFEGf

Business combinations not under common control
(continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without

()

154 DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at
the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category if equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

(d) Structure entities

()

For structured entities, the Group assesses whether they
should be consolidated based on the contractual terms
as to whether the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power to
direct the activities of the entity. Third-party beneficiaries’
interests in the consolidated structured entities with
a limited life or puttable instruments issued and are
classified as liabilities in the Group’s consolidated balance
sheets, and net profits or losses attributable to third-party
beneficiaries are recorded in consolidated profit or loss as
“finance costs”.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment and is being either the cash
consideration amount or the amount of net asset value
of the subsidiaries for share-settled transaction under
reorganisation and business combination under common
control. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER (8)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 Associates

156 DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally
the case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised
at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased
to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss of the
investee after the date of acquisition. Dividends received or
receivable from associates are recognised as a reduction
in the carrying amount of the investment. The Group’s
investment in associates includes goodwill identified on
acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in
an associate, any difference between the cost of the associate
and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3

2.4

Associates (continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises
the amount adjacent to “share of results of an associate” in
profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in profit or loss.

Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification depend on the
contractual rights and obligations of each investor, rather than
the legal structure of the joint arrangement. The Group has
assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and determined
them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for
using the equity method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER (8)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.4 HEZH (&)

24 Joint arrangements (continued)

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses and movements in other comprehensive income.
The Group’s investments in joint ventures include goodwill
identified on acquisition. Dividends received or receivable
from joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in a joint venture, any difference between
the cost of the joint venture and the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is accounted for as goodwill. When the Group’s share of
losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in the
joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
ventures), the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
joint ventures.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there
is any objective evidence that the investment in the joint
venture is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the joint venture and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to “share of results of a
joint venture” in profit or loss.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the
joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with

the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-

maker (“CODM?”), who is responsible for allocating resources

and assessing performance of the operating segments, has

been identified as the executive directors that makes strategic

decision.

2.6 Foreign currency translation

@

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are generally recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR ERR M EE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

e assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that

balance sheet

e income and expenses for each statement of profit
or loss and statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are translated at

the dates of the transactions), and

e all resulting exchange differences are recognised in

other comprehensive income.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and any impairment loss. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the

items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are

incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER ()

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
27 M - BEKNRE (&)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost, net of their residual values over
their estimated useful lives or, in the case of leasehold
improvements and certain leased plant and equipment, the
shorter lease term as follows:

Buildings and leasehold improvements 20 years
BFEREEMEEE 20%F
Office equipment 3-5 years
NS 3E5%F
Motor vehicles 4 years
it 4%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “other gains-net” in profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents the direct costs of
construction incurred of property, plant and equipment less
any impairment losses. No provision for depreciation is made
on construction in progress until such time the relevant assets
are completed and ready for use. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

The carrying amount of an asset under construction is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount.

WERERENE  AREMAF A (£
RERAA  KWMAEEMERERSE
THERE MR ENRIATEREHES
A BCE A (FRRR EFIEREE)

BEMRAKEERAERFHN SR
SHRETENALFE(WER)

WEENKREESNEMGTATRES
3 AEFEENRHRZETKE S

o

7 o

HEEENIESABLEMERAR
BREEMRE @ YRER THHMK
SRR -

ERTRERDE BELAREBEL
MEEREZRKAREMRERSE - &
BTRECHBEERT RAKARL
R St RITERE - E2IRE
RIRARACHABERDERY
% BEMRENEZER -

R EENREERRE AR K
Bl & 78 - R H AR B DI #UR = 7T iR
BlIEH -

2023 FE#HRE ANNUAL REPORT 161



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EREFTHERER (E)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.8 Intangible assets 28 BMILEE
Computer software FTE B
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on EENTES Ut BIRESET
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use B G EE S A BARBE T AE A B K
the specific software. These costs are amortised over their KFUNBARL o ZERAREGET]
estimated useful lives (2 to 5 years). Costs associated with ERAFEH (2E5F) Ny - g
maintaining computer software programs are recognised as an EREHEENKARE SRR A
expenses as incurred. B o

2.9 Investment properties 20 BEYE
Investment properties, such as right-of-use assets, are held WEME(NFEBREEE) B IERAK
for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, EFE B AT ERIERES WK
and that are not self-use by the Group. They also include BABERWESLSR - WEWMENTA
properties that are being constructed or developed for future BERERBEUELKBIEREYE
use as investment properties. Land held under operating MY T EAREMENERT
leases are accounted for as investment properties when the E U ESEAN T HEIES
rest of the definition of an investment property is met. In such IEMEARE REHEBERT BB
cases, the operating leases concerned are accounted for as AT ER|EEMEHEARE - 158
if they were finance leases. Investment properties are initially MEYSIEK A E  BIEEBERS
measured at cost, including related transaction costs and RAREZ KA (@ER) - YLD
where applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition, % BB YERALEMEYE  BE
investment properties are carried at fair value, representing RONEGHEEESREAPETH R
open market value determined at each reporting date by BmEEE - A4 BENEEFED
external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices, BET WKIEETEENHED « 2
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location IR TEAZEELHEE(NEE
or condition of the specific asset. If the information is not T o UKEEBMBAEBEE  AEES
available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods such FREMGEEE IS NERTS
as recent prices on less active markets or discounted cash B A ERKBLIER S RETEE - A
flow projections. Changes in fair values are presented in profit HEEEZESIEAMEKS S EEN—
or loss as part of a valuation gain or loss. HANBZEAR RS o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER ()

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
20FERMEERE

2.10lmpairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible
assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (“cash-generating unit”). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.11Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Net realisable value is determined
by reference to the sale proceeds of properties sold in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion, or by
management estimates based on prevailing marketing
conditions.

Development cost of property mainly comprises cost of land
use rights, construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised
for qualifying assets and professional fees incurred during
the development period. On completion, the properties are
transferred to completed properties held for sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER (8)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
2.11 B Y (&)

2.11Properties under development (continued)

Properties under development are classified as current assets
when the construction of the relevant properties commences
unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond normal
operating cycle. The normal operating cycle is usually between
2 and 3 years.

Costs to fulfil a contract comprise the development cost and
land use right cost directly related to an existing contract
that will be used to satisfy performance obligations in the
future. The costs to fulfil a contract are recorded in properties
under development if they are expected to be recovered. The
amount is amortised on a systematic basis, consistent with
the pattern of revenue recognition of the contract to which the
asset relates.

2.12Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties remaining unsold at reporting period
end are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises development costs attributable to the unsold
properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the sale
proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses, or by management
estimates based on prevailing marketing conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER ()

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.13Financial assets 2I3ERMEE
2131 Classification 21817748

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income. For investments in debt instruments, this will
depend on the business model in which the investment
is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

AEERESBEED BUTE
Bl

s REBAAEEFEGIAR
fo 2 E W K ET A S
BMEE - R

REHRAGTENEREE -

ARESBEANEREESREE
E’J%ﬂ‘%ﬁfﬁ&f EREME LK
/TV\ °

HE

HREARBEFENEE B
B Em A2 Ik E AR - &
REBTAKRE  SRFHERE
MEBRAME - B ER I,E:Tx
& BIBURR AN B R 145 FERR
ﬁEEWTTﬁY@f@L&Hﬁ%ﬁﬂxé&
AR BEFARME2EKE

/7

‘<<‘r

/7

,D]]

N

AEBENEEEBEEMERE
RNEFR FEEFHoHABHERKR
iéf o

2023 FE#HRE ANNUAL REPORT 165



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER (8)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.13Financial assets (continued) 213 REE ()
2.132Recognition and measurement 2132 RETE

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the
consolidated income statements.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are two measurement categories into which the Group

g tERE - ARERAAEBES
MEEMEELFEAABER
ERREHFARDR) WESH
BENEERZIRAHTHEEE
TTE - BAREBEFEAESE
FFARENEREENRIHRAR
A RS RN

EFETA

HEAEBEHRTARFAREER
BENEBEARBENRESRE
FRME - AREREEBTAD
REETEER

classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: assets that are held for collection e HENAK:FBEHNAKEE

of contractual cash flows where those cash flows ABReREMEE  MERS
NREEANS RFBHZMT -
RIR B SEA AT 2 - $IRNRE
R ATE B RBRE S
BAEMNEBKIRE - HREHE
BRZEERIEER IR ER
RERe 2HEKERNTER © Z
ZoRBENNBRAERE
R EEFFARERA o

represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on
a debt investment that is subsequently measured
at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income when the asset
is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2. EXSGHBERER (F)

2.13Financial assets (continued) 213 EMEE (8)
2132Recognition and measurement 2182 R RETE (BB
Debt instruments (continued) EHTAE)

e Fair value through profit or loss: assets that do not
meet the criteria for amortised cost or financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain
or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not
part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or
loss and presented net in the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income within ‘other losses — net’
in the period in which it arises. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in the ‘finance
income’.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in the
consolidated income statements as other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in ‘other losses —
net’ in the consolidated income statements as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses)
on equity investments measured at financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER (8)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
214EHEEMT A

2.14Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated balance sheets when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the
counterparty.

2.15lmpairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised
cost and debt investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk. Note 3.1.2 details how the Group determines
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses (i.e. the present value of all cash shortfalls) over
the expected life of the financial assets.

For contract assets and all trade receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the assets. The provision matrix is determined
based on historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the contract assets and trade receivables with similar
credit risk characteristics and is adjusted for forward-looking
estimates. At every reporting date the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER ()

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
215 & B & ERE ()

2.15lmpairment of financial assets (continued)

Impairment on other receivables are measured as either
12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit
losses, depending on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If a significant
increase in credit risk of a receivable has occurred since initial
recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime expected
credit losses.

2.16Land use rights

All land in the PRC is state-owned or collectively-owned
and no individual ownership right exists. Land use rights are
acquired by the Group for development of properties. Land
use rights held for development for sale are inventories and
measured at lower of cost and net realisable value, of which
those within normal operating cycle are classified as current
assets and included in properties under development or
completed properties held for sale, while those out of the
normal operating cycle are classified as non-current assets.
Land use rights to be developed for hotel properties and self-
use buildings, are non-current assets, which are stated at cost
and subsequently amortised to the profit or loss on a straight-
line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EREFTHERER (E)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.17Trade and other receivables 21TE 5 R H Mt W IE
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for BoRWARIEARBEERBER L
properties sold or services performed in the ordinary course ENMENRENRBMERT P I
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is EUHYFRIE o 8 5 K& H th FE WK IE TR
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle RN —F SR ARG (RE—REKE
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. BRAMIERR)A) - AIESEARS
If not, they are presented as non-current assets. BE GRIZYAERBEE -
Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair B REMEBRRBEIVS R AR ER
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the R REFAEERERNRERBEK
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. KRR ARG E o

2.18Contract assets and liabilities and costs for LBENEERBEBURNBEN
obtaining contracts 2%
Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group FRBRPIIVEAK  AEEHEE
obtains rights to receive consideration from the customer SEPXNHNRE  WAERETSE
and assumes performance obligations to transfer goods or EEVMIRBOREAOET - ZZEF
services to the customer. The combination of those rights MEHETHEREBBFEESFA
and performance obligations gives rise to a net asset or B SFFSEMNEREORE2HEN
a net liability depending on the relationship between the BRME o MUERE & T &R B -1
remaining rights and the performance obligations. The EANBBEBRTHNBENEME - AIZE
contract is an asset and recognised as contract assets if the HNE—IHEE UHERRENEE -
measure of the remaining conditional rights to consideration ERNKARERER  GHNEESE
exceeds the satisfied performance obligations. Contract BREEFHEWNIE R WFGE
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights HMEEBBRGEN  AZEHAE—
become unconditional. Conversely, the contract is a liability HEE  ITBRRBENAEE ELXE
and recognised as contract liabilities if the measure of the BEREBEABITR  6HBEHERE
remaining performance obligations exceeds the measure of WA o

the remaining rights. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

The Group recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a WAEEERGAT KRB RMEEFE
contact with a customer within contract assets if the Group OMEEMNIZESKRA - BlgBE AKX
expects to recover these costs. RERBEHERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER ()

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

219Cash and cash equivalents and restricted QOB ERBESEEYURZRS

cash

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes
cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less. Bank deposits which are restricted
to use are included in “restricted cash” of the consolidated
balance sheets. Restricted cash is excluded from cash and
cash equivalents.

2.20Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

221Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment
is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER (8)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.22Borrowings and borrowing costs 22 ERREREA

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case,
the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-
payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of
the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER ()

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.22Borrowings and borrowing costs (continued) 2.2 fE R R AR A ()

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
like properties under development, assets under construction
and investment properties under construction, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

2.23Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER (8)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
2.23Current and deferred income tax (continued) 2,23 BN HA R IR FE P15 8¢ (48)

(a) RIEBATISH

(a) Current income tax

(b)

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Group’s entities operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The group measures its tax
balances either based on the most likely amount or the
expected value, depending on which method provides a
better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit and at the time of the transaction does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER ()

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
2.23Current and deferred income tax (continued) 2,23 BN HA R IR FE P15 84 (48)

(b) Deferred income tax (continued) (b) EALFTFF (&

Inside basis differences (continued)

Deferred income tax is determined using the tax rates(and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the
Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only when there is an agreement
in place that gives the Group the ability to control the
reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable
future, deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary
differences arising from the joint venture’s or associate’s
undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures only to the
extent that it is probable the temporary difference will
reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER (8)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
2.23Current and deferred income tax (continued) 2,23 BN HA R IR FE P15 8¢ (48)

(c) Offsetting (c)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.24Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

The group companies incorporated in the PRC contribute
based on certain percentage of the salaries of the
employees to a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan organised by relevant government authorities in the
PRC on a monthly basis. The government authorities
undertake to assume the retirement benefit obligations
payable to all existing and future retired employees under
these plans and the Group has no further obligation for
post-retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.

Contributions to these defined contributions plans are
expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.24Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Housing benefits, medical insurances and other social

()

insurances

PRC employees of the Group are entitled to participate in
various government-supervised housing funds, medical
insurance and other social insurance plan. The Group
contributes to these funds based on certain percentages
of the salaries of these employees on a monthly basis.
The Group’s liability in respect of these funds is limited to
the contribution payable in each period. Contributions to
the housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurances are expensed as incurred.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:
(@) when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS 37 and
involves the payment of terminations benefits. In the case
of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the number
of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling
due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER (8)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
26 EE/A (F)

2.24Employee benefits (continued)

(d) Employee leave entitlements (@) 1ERKRIREF
BENFBRENTCEEZAZSE
FRHER - AEBABEEEERE
=AY EEEREBRBEEFR
BT B EE D B -

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.

BEMRBRMEREEIENARE

are not recognised until the time of leave. 7T HER o

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave

2.25Provisions 2251145

EAREEERENEHTMELRS
MR B B R B ER
4 DA 38 5T R B E R SR 3t
% ML EREE  BTREAR

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.26 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of properties in the PRC
and services in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities.
Revenue is shown, net of discounts and after eliminating sales
with the Group companies. The Group recognises revenue
when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group’s activities, as described below.

(i)  Sales of properties and construction services

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the
asset is transferred to the purchaser. Depending on
the terms of the contract and the laws that apply to the
contract, control of the asset may transfer over time or
at a point in time. Control of the asset is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:

e provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the purchaser; or

e creates and enhances an asset that the purchaser
controls as the Group performs; or

e does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised
at a point in time when the purchaser obtains control of
the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER (8)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
2.26Revenue recognition (continued) 226 A FERE (18)

HEYERZZRE (B)

(i) Sales of properties and construction services (continued) ()

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation is measured based on the Group’s
efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance

BRETTREZRAEETHKE
HWEBNEIRAL 2 ZBERE D
REEENEHRNEEADBMG

obligation, by reference to the contract costs incurred up FTAARILEBIMET = ©
to the end of reporting period as a percentage of total

estimated costs for each contract.

YN E —SHERNY
XRABRIPESNME  WALE
RERHEBXNEERIMENE
physical possession or the legal title of the completed EEEBAEBERIAREEL TR
property and the Group has present right to payment and I AT BE AE AU IR B FRFFERR ©

the collection of the consideration is probable.

For property development and sales contract for which
the control of the property is transferred at a point in time,
revenue is recognised when the purchaser obtains the

EHRERXSERE  AEESHA
BHEKE DT E (NBEX) M
EAGHREDER -

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effect of a
financing component if it is significant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER ()

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
2.26Revenue recognition (continued) 226 A FERE (18)

() HEYRRZZRE (&)

(i) Sales of properties and construction services (continued)

For construction services, the Group’s performance
creates or enhances an asset or work in progress that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced,
thus the Group satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time. Revenue in respect of
the construction services is recognised over time on a
cost-to-cost method. It is measured by reference to the
contract costs incurred up to the end of the reporting
period as a percentage of total estimated costs for each
contract. Costs incurred in the year/period in connection
with future activity on a contract are excluded from
contract costs in determining the stage of completion. The
directors consider that this input method is an appropriate
measure of the progress towards complete satisfaction
of these performance obligations under HKFRS15. The
Group becomes entitled to invoice customers based on
achieving a series of performance-related milestones.
The Group recognises a contract asset for any work
performed, and the amount previously recognised as
a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables at
the point at which it is invoiced to the customer. If the
milestone payment exceeds the revenue recognised
to date under the cost-to-cost method then the Group
recognises a contract liability for the difference. There
is no significant financing component in construction
contracts with customers as the period between the
recognition of revenue under the cost-to-cost method and
the milestone payment is always less than one year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR ERR M EE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.26 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i) Hotel operation

Revenue from hotel operation is recognised in the
accounting period in which the related services are

rendered.

(i) Rental income

Rental income from properties leasing under operating
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease

terms.

2.27TManagement and consulting services income

Income from rendering of management and consulting
services is recognised in the accounting period in which the

related services are rendered.

2.28Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using

the effective interest method.

2.29Dividend income

Dividends are recognised as revenue when the right to receive

payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER ()

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
2O BEREL

2.30Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher
of

e the amount determined in accordance with the expected
credit loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
and

e the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on
the present value of the difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments required under the debt instrument and
the payments that would be required without the guarantee, or
the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party
for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of joint
ventures and associates are provided for no compensation,
the fair values are accounted for as contributions and
recognised as part of the cost of the investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER (8)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.31Leases 231188

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the
lease and non-lease components based on their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for
which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate
lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for
these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER ()

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.31Leases (continued) 21 HE (&)

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of the
liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the
Group, which does not have recent third party financing,
and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER (8)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

231 FHE (E)

2.31Leases (continued)

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data)
which has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the
group entities use that rate as a starting point to determine the
incremental borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When
adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take
effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the
right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each

period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received

e any initial direct costs, and

e restoration costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ERETTHEKRER ()

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.31Leases (continued) 21 HE (&)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment
and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised
on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-
term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less without a purchase optim. Low-value assets comprise IT
equipment and small items of office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term (Note 16). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease
term on the same basis as lease income. The respective
leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their
nature. The Group did not need to make any adjustments to
the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting
the new leasing standard.

2.32Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion
of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but
not distributed at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

3. KRR ER

31 MEREKEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
interest rate risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Group’s
principal activities are conducted in RMB.

The Group’s principal activities are conducted in RMB,
except that certain cash in banks, other receivables, other
payables and borrowings are denominated in Unites State
Dollar (“*USD”) and Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD”). As at 31
December 2023, the carrying amounts of the Group’s
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in USD
amounted to RMB185,138,000 (2022: RMB175,602,000) and
RMB2,969,038,000 (2022: RMB2,643,183,000) respectively,
and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in HKD
amounted to RMB347,082,000 (2022: RMB392,500,000) and
RMB272,000 (2022: RMB268,000). If there is a 6% increase/
decrease in RMB against USD, the effect of decrease/increase
in the loss for the year is RMB167,034,000 (2022: increase/
decrease in profit of RMB148,054,000), If there is a 6%
increase/decrease in RMB against HKD, the effect of increase/
decrease in the loss for the year is RMB20,808,600 (2022:
increase/decrease in profit of RMB23,533,000).

The directors are of the opinion that the Group’s activities
do not expose it to any significant foreign exchange risk.
The Group’s overall risk management program focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. AR ERE (F)

(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

311

312

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from long-term
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk which is partially
offset by cash held at variable rates. Borrowings obtained
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. The Group closely monitors trend of interest rate
and its impact on the Group’s interest rate risk exposure.
The Group currently has not used any interest rate swap
arrangements but will consider hedging interest rate risk
should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2023, borrowings of the Group
which were bearing at floating rates amounted to
RMB8,771,254,000 (2022: RMB10,842,559,000). If
interest rates on borrowings at floating rates had been
50 basis points higher or lower with all other variables
held constant and without taking into account interest
capitalisation, interest charges for the year ended
31 December 2023 would have been approximately
RMB43,856,270 higher/lower (2022: RMB54,213,000
higher/lower).

Credit risk

The Group has no concentrations on credit risk. Cash
transactions are limited to high credit quality institutions.
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to financial assets is the carrying amounts of cash and
cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand), restricted
cash, trade and other receivables, amounts due from
related parties and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss shown in the consolidated balance sheet.

3.1 BiEsmE bR = ()

311

312

VeI o

AEBOMRERK B RER -
RPN R ENEREAKEE
mIRERENERAR - ZRRED
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B E MR R EREAEEE
BAREENXAR AEEZY)
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MR2023F12A31H * ZEE U
FEANEGFENERAEARE
8,771,254,0007T (20224 : AR
#10,842,559,0007T) ° fi#Z &7
EH) 8 SR R EFH sk TRE501EE
BEFTAEMEESRIGTTE R
TERFBEXRE - BB ZE2023
F12A31 B IEFEMFEZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. AR ER (F)

(CONTINUED)
3.1 BAEs bR = ()

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

312 Credit risk (continued) 312 5B R (&

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, in order to manage
this risk, the Group’s bank deposits are mainly deposited
with reputable banks which are all high-credit-quality
financial institutions incorporated in the PRC.

For the trade receivables arising from sales of properties,
the Group manages the credit risk by fully receiving
cash or properly arranging the purchasers’ mortgage
loans financing procedures before delivery of properties
unless strong credit records of the customers could be
established. The Group closely monitors the collection of
progress payments from customers in accordance with
payment schedule agreed with customers. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
purchasers with an appropriate financial strength and
appropriate percentage of down payments.

Meanwhile, the Group has the right to cancel the
contracts once repayment from the customers is in
default; it also has monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue
balances. In addition, the Group regularly reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade receivables
to ensure that adequate impairment provisions are made
for irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties and customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. AR ERE (F)

(CONTINUED)
3.1 BiEsmE bR = ()

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

312 Credit risk (continued) 312 =B R (&

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
purchasers of the Group’s property units and provided
guarantees to secure obligations of such purchasers for
repayments. Detailed disclosure of such guarantees is
made in Note 34. A purchaser defaults on the payment of
its mortgage loan during the guarantee period, the bank
holding the guarantee may demand the Group to repay
the outstanding principal of the loan and any interest
accrued thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group
is able to forfeit the customer’s deposit and resell the
property to recover any amounts paid by the Group to
the bank. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

For other receivables and amounts due from related
parties, the Group assessed the credit quality of the
counter parties by taking into account their financial
position, credit history and other factors. Management
also regularly reviews the recoverability of these
receivables and follow up the disputes or amounts
overdue, if any. The directors are of the opinion that the
risk of default by counter parties is low.

AEBEERAKENEENNET
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR ERR M EE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

312 Credit risk (continued)

3. KERERE (&)

3.1 BAEs bR = ()

312 EEmEE (&

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as
at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

e internal credit rating

e external credit rating

e actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that

AEBEEENTRERRZEE
AT RENE - BRFEESREE
FERBRELASFEREEN - &£
A ERERR T BREEINE -
SESHREBMEEHTEONE
b2 B AATER B IR A AR
EITHER - AROEEAESNE
B RRIERTE R - FRIEES
TUATERR

o REEEFK

o INEMEERIR

o EX - UBMEERETER
S E TR B A M TR B BUE R

ABITEENENELEAE
LR EARTFIZ(E

are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

e actual or expected significant changes in the o EARIEFXRBRALEEEN
operating results of individual property owner or the ERRTEHERE L
borrower

e significant changes in the expected performance e EBRAEHRERITAMNENRX

and behaviour of the borrower, including changes in
the payment status of borrowers in the Group and
changes in the operating results of the borrower.

B BREERARKNEER
A SRAR SR B B A SR A B A

BEER( -

AEBRAZSEBFIANDELS
A RIREEEERREESHEH W
BEREENTR - ZFERBEERR
AT AR BRSNS R AR — B o

The Group uses four categories for those receivables
which reflect their credit risk and how the loss provision
is determined for each of those categories. These internal
credit risk ratings are aligned to external credit ratings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

312 Credit risk (continued)

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group’s

expected credit loss model is as follows:

Category
il

Performing

Underperforming

2z

Non-performing

T8

Write-off

s

Group definition of category

FEEGTHERNESR

Customers have a low risk of default
and a strong capacity to meet
contractual cash flows

BEFENORARREERENELESNE
KB ERE

Receivables for which there is a
significant increase in credit risk; as
significant increase in credit risk is
presumed if interest and/or principal
repayments are more than 1 year
past due

EE R ERZE LI W FRIE ¢ fHFE
R/ SR EFEMER—F - AH
ERIEERREZEM

Interest and/or principal repayments
are more than 2 years past due

FER,/ RASER QL BBMF

Interest and/or principal repayments
are more than 3 years past due and
there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery

MER/SHACBEFEOHR=FAEL " B
HIBTEF el m

e R ERR M

3. KERERE (&)

3.1 BiEsmE bR = ()

312 EEREE (&

AEEBEHEEEBREAZRNOR
RABKEIAT

Basis for recognition of expected
credit loss provision

BRRAFMEEBEERENEE

12 months expected losses. Where the
expected lifetime of an asset is less
than 12 months, expected losses are
measured at its expected lifetime

RIR12(E AV TEERE R - SR TEEIFE
HE12EA 2 ANEE - TBHEEE
RIBHFEM &

Lifetime expected losses

TFEHTR SRR

Lifetime expected losses

FERERER

Asset is written off

WsHEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR ERR M EE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
312 Credit risk (continued)

The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately
providing for expected credit losses on a timely
basis. In calculating the expected credit loss rates,
the Group considers historical loss rates for each
category of receivables and adjusts for forward looking
macroeconomic data.

() Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the simplified approach to
providing for expected credit losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables from
third parties and related parties and contract assets.

Expected loss rate of contract assets and trade
receivables from government authorities are assessed
to be low. The loss allowance provision for these
balances was not material for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: same).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. B EkEE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MBEEE (&)
312 Credit risk (continued) 312 15E=EE (&
() Trade receivables and contract assets (continued) () BZENFIEREHEE (&)
In calculating the expected credit loss rate of the trade RETEE S EWRIBRTERE
receivables, the Group has considered the historical BEEEXR  AEBEEEER
credit loss experience to incorporate relevant, current AWMEEBEEBER  UEBEE
and more forward-looking information for different BB SRBGIEZ R REZA
class of trade receivables which grouped based on EMHAEEER - MESE
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past WHIERER HIREEAES
due. The loss allowance provision as at 31 December MEER B  EHREE
2023 and 2022 is determined as follows. 7 o 20234 K 2022F 12 A

BTHMEEREETWNT -

Over Over
1 year 2 years
Within | and within | and within Over

1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years
1R 1226 2Z3F 3FLE

At 31 December 2023
A2023F 128318
Trade receivables (RMB’000)
EZRUNR(ARETR) 223,476 119,781 5,457 1,054 349,768
Less: receivables from government
authorities (RMB’000) &t

BUS#EFE(ARETT) (64,810) (7,124) - - (71,934)
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000)
REAE (AR T ) 158,666 112,657 5,457 1,054 277,834
Expected loss rate T8 #iE518 & 2.40% 4.53% 11.73% 100.00%
Loss allowance provision (RMB’000)
BEEEEARETT 3,811 5,106 640 1,054 10,611

2023 FE#HRE ANNUAL REPORT 195



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. % EMRERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 HMEKEZE (&)
312 Credit risk (continued) 312 SEEE (&
(i) Trade receivables and contract assets (continued) () BZEXFERELEE (B)

Over Over
1 year 2 years

Within and within and within
1 year 2 years 3 years
1ER 1224 2FE3F

At 31 December 2022
M2022F12A31H
Trade receivables (RMB’000)
EZRUHBR(ARBTT) 281,457 40,534 151 1,485 328,627
Less: receivables from government
authorities (RMB’000) &t

B #5008 (AR TF7T) (84,811) (13,659) (89) = (98,559)
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000)
REAEARET ) 196,646 26,875 62 1,485 225,068
Expected loss rate T8 i1 % 0.25% 2.69% 30.65% 71.04%
Loss allowance provision (RMB’000)
EREE (AR TT) 500 721 19 1,055 2,295
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. B EkEE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MBEEE (&)
312 Credit risk (continued) 312 15E=EE (&
() Trade receivables and contract assets (continued) () BZENFIEREHEE (&)

The closing loss allowance provision for trade M2023F12HA31AME FE
receivables as at 31 December 2023 reconcile to the WERIE 2 F R BB F 1)
opening loss allowance for that provision as follows: B EBHYROT

Trade receivables

(excluding

receivables from

government

authorities)

B2 EWRIE

(T EIEEW

BUN 48 1 RRE)

RMB’000

AR¥ET T

At 1 January 2022 42022%181H 1,628

Provision for loss allowance recognised in profit or loss, net

REEPHERNEEREFE 667

At 31 December 2022 742022F 12531 H 2,295

At 1 January 2023 7420231818 2,295
Provision for loss allowance recognised in profit or loss, net 8% #E R K

EER TR 8,316

At 31 December 2023 ®¥2023%F12H831H 10,611
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. M E ke EE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 HMEKEZE (&)
312 Credit risk (continued) 312 5B EfE (&
() Trade receivables and contract assets (continued) () B ZEMFIEREHEE &)
For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, I ZE2023%F 2022F12 A31
the provision for loss allowances were recognised in BIEFE  BEREEREZF
profit or loss in administrative expense in relation to BUREE 5 EWFIER BEaTT
the impaired trade receivables. RS A ERR o
As at 31 December 2023, the gross carrying amount M2023%F12A310H - &5
of trade receivables excluding receivables from JE W ERIE (1 B 43 JE YUY
government authorities was RMB277,834,000 (2022: BHFIB)WEEEEAAR
RMB225,068,000), and thus maximum exposure to #277,834,0007T (20224
loss was RMB267,223,000 (2022: RMB222,773,000). AR#225,068,0007T) °
HEANEEHOASARE

267,223,0007T (20224 : A
R#&002 773,0007T) °

(i) Other receivables (i) E A EKFIE

For financial assets measured at amortised cost MBI AT ENESREE
include other receivables, other deposits, amounts (BIEEMEWRIE - Bk
due from non-controlling interests and amounts © - EWSEER R IE R B
due from related parties, management makes W S RIB)ME - BEE
periodic collective assessments as well as individual G BER WG S - WARE
assessment on the recoverability of deposits and BEMNGERS  BAELBRK
other receivables based on the consideration of AEHEERNEZEE  Hikek
historical settlement records, past experience and b fE YA R AT B 2 R /B
forward-looking information. Credit losses for deposits ERIFTAS o =& K& H i FE YK
and other receivables (excluding prepayments and H(TeEENREERAEMTE
prepaid other taxes) are assessed on both individual IR MEEEEIZER &
and collective basis. RERBEBEEITAIIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

BAFE R AR M RE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. M E ke EE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MBEEE (&)
312 Credit risk (continued) 312 15E=EE (&
(i) Other receivables (continued) (i) E M ERFIE ()

The closing loss allowance provision for other M2023F 12 H31 B #Y H fh &
receivables as at 31 December 2023 reconcile to the WERIE 2 F R BB F 1)
opening loss allowance for that provision as follows: B EBHYROT

Other
receivables

Hfth & Ut R 1R

RMB’000
ARET T

At 1 January 2022 1420221 H1H 91,187
Provision for loss allowance recognised in profit or loss, net F 8% A #E 52 &)

EREE R 116,721
At 31 December 2022 142022612531 H 207,908
At 1 January 2023 74202351818 207,908
Provision for loss allowance recognised in profit or loss, net 78 #E R /)

BRI 195,745
At 31 December 2023 A2023F12H31H 403,653
All of these financial assets are considered to have FIBZSeMEENEERR
low credit risk, and thus the impairment provision B E AR - SE R RS
recognised during the reporting period was limited to M ERERERE 128 B
12 months expected losses. Management considered TEHEERR - EEERANK
other receivables from third parties to be low credit BEZFTMEMERREREE
risk as they have a low risk of default and the issuer RRE - B R%ERIENELD
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash REREAETAEEEEE S
flow obligations in the near term. BITERHNaNHEERESR

75 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. M E ke EE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 HMEKEZE (&)
312 Credit risk (continued) 312 5B EfE (&

(i) Other receivables (continued) (i) E M ER A (HB)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the I ZE2023%F 2022F12 A31
provision for loss allowance were recognised in profit BIEFE  BEREEREZF
or loss in administrative expenses in relation to the BRI (B /) B FE Y GRIE B Y

impaired other receivables. TR PR o
As at 31 December 2023, the maximum exposure R2023%F12A31H * KEHE
to loss of other receivables for third parties, related =77 - B RIEEREER
parties and non-controlling interests were as follows: A fE W R IE B B K B 1R R D

SR
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET ARBTIT
Amounts due from related parties J& U B85 77 708 5,186,593 5,969,111
Amounts due from non-controlling interests &4 3F 12 B 4 25 718 10,150,455 13,662,529
Amounts due from third parties (including deposits and others) F& Uk

F=HFIA(PEES REM) 2,413,311 3,257,635

17,750,359 22,889,275
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. AR ERE (F)

(CONTINUED)
3.1 BiEsmE bR = ()

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

313 Liquidity risk 313 B E TR %

Management of the Group aims to maintain sufficient
cash and cash equivalents or have available funding
through proceeds from pre-sale of properties and an
adequate amount of available financing including short-
term and long-term borrowings and obtaining additional
funding from shareholders. Due to the dynamic nature of
the underlying businesses, the Group maintains flexibility
in funding by maintaining adequate amount of cash and
cash equivalents and through having available sources of
financing.

The Group has a number of alternative plans to mitigate
the potential impacts on anticipated cash flows should
there be significant adverse changes in economic
environment. These include reducing land acquisition,
adjusting project development timetable to adapt
the changing local real estate market environment,
implementing cost control measures, promotion of sales
of completed properties, accelerating sales with more
flexible pricing and seeking joint venture partners to
develop projects. The Group will pursue such options
basing on its assessment of relevant future costs and
benefits. The directors consider that the Group will be
able to maintain sufficient financial resources to meet its
operation needs.

The table below sets out the Group’s financial liabilities
by relevant maturity grouping at each balance sheet date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

AEEEEEEEAFARNRE
kR EEBYIBRBEEMENFR
SHREESIRES  YHERHA
MAIBARE (BREEARRBRE
R URBERRESEINES -
MR EEXBNBERE - AEE
BREREANRE LIRS EED
UA R B8 P E) R BB B R A RS
BHEEN -

HEBRFHIRNERNTHES) - A
SEEARZ B A E BRI
HEBERRERENBEETE - &
B T WEE - AR R R
By ) 2% DAL FE N 2L Y B 3 S 4t
EMSRE - BRANEGIER
RHERTIYE - BEEEENTE
EMREE RBRELLEREIER
HRZER - AREREREE R
BRI A R M ss O RHE #E R (B
BE EERR/AKEGESMER
AEWMBERRMEEEER

TREJINEEERBRAAEE
AN BARE SN EREE -
RTPBEBENERER/ANARUERRS

==
JILEE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MBERERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 HMEKEZE (&)
313 Liquidity risk (continued) 313 mEE T/ (B

Less than
1 year or Between 1 Between 2 Over
ondemand | and 2 years | and 5 years 5 years Total
1E LR

HEREXR EES 225%F 5F4L #ar
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARBTR | ARMTR | ARBTR| ARETR

As at 31 December 2023 72023F 12 431H
Borrowings &K 14,136,652 2,046,742 372,978 1,636,266 18,192,638
Trade and other payables, excluding accrual

for staff costs and allowances, and other

taxes payable B 5 & E A& B (T EE

FE&t 8 T AR SR Bh DA B B th JE 151 B 08) 8,501,079 - - - 8,501,079
Amounts due to non-controlling interest &S

IR IR 1,900,930 1,175,698 - - 3,076,628
Amounts due to related parties & B8 75

A 4,768,510 2,117,043 - - 6,885,553
Lease Liabilities BE& & - - - 38,425 38,425
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit

orloss EE A BIEE HEZB ABEMN

eRAE 2,000 - - - 2,000
Financial guarantee contract S 1ER A 4] 6,404,804 468,175 - - 6,872,979

35,713,975 5,807,658 372,978 1,674,691 43,569,302
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MBERERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MBEEE (&)
313 Liquidity risk (continued) 313 mEE T/ (B

Less than
1 year or Between 1 Between 2 Over
on demand and 2 years | and 5 years 5 years
1E LA

SR Bk 1204 PENT:= 5E F s
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR | ARETR | AR®FR| ARBTI| ARETR

As at 31 December 2022 72022912 A431H
Borrowings &K 9,692,311 10,013,845 2,148,272 1,568,768 23,423,196
Trade and other payables, excluding accrual

for staff costs and allowances, and other

taxes payable & 5 & H A& 5B (TR

JEET B TN JOE Ak A I Ho At FE A H18) 7,350,954 = = = 7,350,954
Amounts due to non-controlling interest &

IR IR 3,438,283 310,989 - - 3,749,272
Amounts due to related parties & B8 5

FR 6,992,462 - - = 6,992,462
Lease Liabilities FHEB & 3,823 - - 38,425 42,248

Fiancial liabilities at fair value through profit

orloss AR EBEFEEEESH AR

eRAE 29,648 - - - 29,648
Financial guarantee contract S ERA 4] 14,914,831 3,636,483 422,474 - 18,973,788

42,422,312 13,961,317 2,670,746 1,607,193 60,561,568

The Group also provides guarantees to secure repayment NEBTIEHERUNBERANEBRYESE T
obligations of certain purchasers of the Group’s property NETERNERECRAELE  BE
units and the principal of borrowings of the joint ventures, NAMERAE  EEBAEESERNE
associates, which will have contractual cash flows only if K B PERBEATERETNIEN
the guaranteed purchasers, joint ventures and associates T TeEL£E4RERE (:E34)

default the repayment (Note 34).
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Ra MBI R

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. AR ER (F)

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital management 32 EXEHE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for the owner and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to the owner, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net borrowings divided by total
capital. Net borrowings are calculated as total borrowings
(including current and non-current borrowings as shown in
the consolidated balance sheets) less total of cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash.

Borrowings (Note 30) & &k (Ff7£30)

ARBEAEE Y BNAREALE
REGENES - W ARE ARHE
R0 AE 26 AR B R G R -
B e 4 05 5 B T A S DR T A
7N o

RRTGAABERNER  ~EET A
EHEXNTHAEANRS SR &
TR R E B E AR AET °

AEBENEERABLRERERER
MEE - BERELXREFFRR
INERBEAE - (ERUFRRETRE
B(ERGREERBRAIIRHMEE
KIERNHES) BRER € LIRS FEY
HFRFREAEAE -

As at 31 December
M12H31H

2023 2022

20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

16,408,723 21,191,073

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 25) i : 3R & MIRE&ZEY (W:F25) (4,599,819) (7,307,483)

Restricted cash (Note 24) 5[5 #l|28 & (i 5£24)

(145,405) (67,710)

Net borrowings f& 5 F %8
Total equity #z 4258

11,663,499 13,815,880
12,094,260 20,122,209

Total capital B A48 %8

23,757,759 33,938,089

Gearing ratio EE B E X

49% 41%
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R MBI

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. AR ERE (F)

(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation

33 RABEEME

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value

The Group’s financial instruments carried at fair value
include financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. The different levels of the financial
instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method,
have been defined as follows:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and
equity securities) is based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity
securities.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

(@) EZERAEBESERN ST A

AEBBEAARBEIENERIAS
BEAABEFEREZHTAER
MeEMEERRE ERGBEZER
ABEINENERIATAERATE
(N

F—ER EEBMSLELXZHNEE
TRABNARARXZOITET A RERE
BHR)NAABEENRSHROTS
HE - RAKREABFEREEMER
MMISRESEMHRZERS - ZFT
Bt AS—ER -

FZEL ATEEBRMB LR ZNE
BMITAMNAABEFEASZAERT
BRMBEENGERNEE - &
ALk EEEMBEANMG
o MAEITERAARBEMTENME
BRBABBYAEBE - BT A
AE_EMR -

FZE& WA -BAXZHEERNHA
BBRAFENABEEMISEIE - B
THHABZ=ZER - FLTRAES
BBt ERER o

AT TAMASEGHERTE
EEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. I ¥ b B 3R (48)
(CONTINUED)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 A EEME (&)
(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued) (a) ZLnBESEN T A (E

The table below analyses the Group’s financial TREZERARBEGEHERTEA
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 December 2023 HIBEER DM AELEBER2023F &
and 2022, by level of the inputs to valuation techniques 2022%F 12 A31BIZ A A BEYIK
used to measure fair value. MEFTE-

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—ER FER F=BH gt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | AR®TR | AR®TR | ARMT:R

At 31 December 2023 742023%12831H
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
RARBEMEAAZH T ABRNEREE -
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
BARBEAEEHEDFAERNSHEAR -
At 31 December 2022 72022F12831H
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
RARBEMEAAZHFIABENEHEE - - 9,743 9,743
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
RAREBEMEAAZHFABRZNERAE - - 29,648 29,648

11,100 11,100

2,000 2,000

Range of unobservable inputs

NCE RPN 6 Y
Significant unobservable inputs Valuation approach 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
EXTTREGARE EERE 2023%12A31A8 2022612 A31H
Expected rate of return T8 [E #7 % Return approach [BI3R5% 2%-8% 2%-8%
Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value: the A BRGASEEA L BENE
higher of expected rate of return, the higher the fair value. % EHERRESEA A BEDS
M e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. AR ERE (F)

(CONTINUED)

3.3 R EEMAE (8)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

The Group manages the valuation of level 3 instruments
for financial reporting purpose on a case by case basis. At
least once every reporting year/period, the Group would
assess the fair value of the Group’s level 3 instruments by
using valuation techniques.

The valuation of level 3 instruments mainly included
investments in wealth management products issued by
banks or other financial institution. As these instruments
are not traded in an active market, their fair values have
been determined by using applicable valuation techniques,
which mainly include discounted cash flows.

If the fair values of the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss held by the Group had been 10% higher/
lower, the loss before income tax for the year ended
31 December 2023 would have been approximately
RMB1,110,000 lower/higher (2022: profit before income
tax of RMB974,000 higher/lower).

The Group’s policy was to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end
of the reporting period. There were no changes in level
3 instruments during the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: same).

(a) ZLBEFRN ST A (E

A BB 0 B A9 IR I AR
REBE=HTANMGE - RE—
BT R AR R
EHMHEE=RT AN R BE
EATE S — R -

FE-RTENGEZIEBRYEIRT
SRS B ERITHIEM E MK
BRE - ARZEF LAY RRERET
BR% - Bt ERAEETERA
BENBERMEE ETEER
BRReRERR -

EAEEMBERAAEEMNER
HEH ABENEREENRQ
AREEEM BI10% - BEZE
2023F12A31HIEFEMAME
BATE BRI A R
1,110,0007T (20224 : FT{SHLAI
FEE N, R AR Q74,000
7o) °

REBMBREEREHRERAD
AEEEANEAREL - HE
2023F12A31HILFE F=E
HITEIEEMEE (20224 - 1A
) o
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Ra MBI R

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3. KERERE (&)

3.3 R EEMAE (8)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
(b) Investment properties b) REYZE

AEBOREMEE AL BER

o

Investment properties of the Group were measured at fair

il

value.

) A IEEER

() Fair value hierarchy

=

This note explains the judgements and estimates Y 5 R FE N AR A I TS R A
made in determining the fair values of investment BARNBERRRTENREYME
properties that are recognised and measured at A BERTEAERRGET - A
fair value in the consolidated financial statements. SREEAAEBEMARAZIED
To provide an indication about the reliability of the AEIREERE  NEERBEHE

inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has Bl EFECREED B=EER -
classified its non-financial assets into the three levels

prescribed under the accounting standards.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end
of the reporting period.

There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3 for
recurring fair value measurements during the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: same).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. AR ERE (F)

(CONTINUED)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 AAEBEME (&)
(b) Investment properties (continued) (b) KEYEE

(i) Valuation techniques used to determine level 3 fair

(i) BEEE=ERAAEEFAEG

values

The directors determine a property’s value within a
range of reasonable fair value estimates. Fair values
of the Group’s completed investment properties are
derived using the income capitalisation approach. This
valuation method takes into account the net rental
income of a property derived from its existing leases
and/or achievable in the existing market with due
allowance for the reversionary income potential of the
leases, which have been then capitalised to determine
the fair value at an appropriate capitalisation rate.

Fair values of the Group’s investment properties under
development are derived on the basis that they will
be developed and completed in accordance with the
latest development proposals provided to us by the
Group. It is assumed that all consents, approvals and
licenses from relevant government authorities for the
development proposals have been obtained without
onerous conditions or delays. In arriving at the fair
values, the direct comparison approach is adopted by
making reference to comparable sales transactions
as available in the market and also taken into account
the costs that will be expended to complete the
developments to reflect the quality of the completed
developments. The “market value as if completed”
represents the opinion of the aggregate selling prices
of the property assuming that it would be completed
as at the valuation date.

All resulting fair value estimates for investment
properties are included in level 3.

E#AM

EENEEMNARBEMDFH
BANETYRER AKEE
BRIREMENORAABER
RIRZERCEES - &b
BIDEA R EARBHEM
BR/ AR5 AT UER
MESWAFERE - BEREF
HENERWAENIEEE &
B BEREHEETUERL
MR -—BEEACRETE
RAEE -
AEBERREMENAAE
BT ERE SRR AR B
H) BT P R R B R B ST
MFH - EERREIL EEH K
HHIEBIERT - EpFEE
A ERSHEBBA PR MA
RE - #EXMFFAIE - EatE
AREER  ERMERLR
% BRMIGAEFSNAIELL
BIHER 5 R INE BTk f %
BIEBHRA - RRREET
FBEBEEMNEE - [RTEM
BIEBERDENRGEEAHE
RTHERTMEMRBHER
MER e

—YREEENREVELR
EBEMLFTHIAZ=ER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. M EEERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 AAEEME (&)
(b) Investment properties (continued) (b) KEYZEE
(i) Fair value measurements using significant (i) 1EHEXT A B ) A 5
unobservable inputs (level 3) (BE=EBR)ETAREERE
Detailed disclosures of the changes in level 3 items BB E20234F 22022F 12
for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 AS1BLEELEEHEAREE
for recurring fair value measurements are disclosed FTEMNE=ERIEEFHNE
below. B EHREN T
(iv) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value (iv) 1E1EBAZIRRELL 7 B EAY
EIx
The following table summarises the quantitative TREBMEEEE=ERAN
information about the significant unobservable inputs BEFEMAERTITERE
used in recurring level 3 fair value measurements. See ABBHEER - BREME
(i) above for the valuation techniques adopted. Az (BB M52 5 i)

Fair value at 31 December

M12A31BW A REE

Properties status 2023 2022
W) 351K 28 20234 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET T ARBTT

Completed B3 T 4,256,680 3,409,410
Under development 5935/ - 729,000
4,256,680 4,138,410

210 DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED Ei=FEERERLE
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R MBI

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. iR RERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 AAEBEME (&)
(b) Investment properties (continued) (b) KEYEE

(iv) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
(continued)

Properties status Unobservable inputs

SN FABREARE

Completed E% T Term yield T8 £l &
Reversionary yield 18 53 iz %
Monthly rental (RMB/sg.m./month)
A& ARET/FHK/A)
Occupancy rate =

Unit rate (RMB/sq.m.) B & &
Under development B2/ (ARETL/FAHK)
Accommaodation value (RMB/sg.m.)

BEBAREL/ FHK)
Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value:
— 1 The higher rate of term yield and reversionary
yield, the lower the fair value;

— 2 The higher monthly rental, the higher the fair
value;

— 3 The higher the occupancy rate, the higher the
fair value;

— 4 The higher the unit rate, the higher the fair
value;

— 5 The higher the accommodation value, the higher
the fair value;

(v) 1EEBAZIRREL A (EER

I (&)

Range of unobservable inputs
AUBERABEEE
As at 31 December

M12A31H

2023 2022
20234 20225

1.0%-6.5% 0.9%-5.2%
1.5%-7.0% 1.4%-5.7%
18-550 30-582
80%-100% 71%-100%
- 6,791-10,646

- 8,801-20,305

TRBRBARBEQAEE
FIBE(E

— 1HEBRERRER RS
Xfm o 2ABEBE

- 2RHEgME 2nEE
B

— SHEEXHE AR EE
BE

— 4ERBEHS
BB

ot
I
>
i}

- SBREEBHR  RAEE
BE
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Ra MBI R

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. AR ER (F)

(CONTINUED)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 AAEEME (&)
(b) Investment properties (continued) (b) KEYZEE
(v) Valuation processes ) 1ZEFEF

The Group’s investment properties were valued by an
independent professionally qualified valuer, who holds
a recognised relevant professional qualification and
has recent experience in the locations and segments
of the investment properties valued. For all investment
properties, their current use equates to the highest
and best use.

The Group’s finance department has a team to review
the valuations performed by the independent valuer
for financial reporting purposes. This team reports
directly to the executive directors. Discussion of
valuation processes and results are held amongst the
executive directors, the valuation team and the valuer
at least once every six months for the Group’s interim
and annual reporting process.

At each reporting period end, the finance department:

e Verifies all major inputs to the independent
valuation report;

e Assess property valuations movements when
compared to the prior period valuation report; and

e Holds discussions with the independent valuer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4. EXE&Hfhat R M
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated i BLAR & B 7 R 3R E BT R R RO A 5T I )
financial statements are evaluated and based on historical DERBRELRREMER(BEREBE
experience and other factors, including expectations of MTERREEATEH B & FH) ETAT
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the iy o REBHRRMEL G RER - BE
circumstances. The Group makes estimates and assumptions B @M RLZAEEERER -
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by Tl ] ge 2 BN T E M B EE R
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates EERAENEMEELEE R ENMGE
and assumptions that may have a significant effect on the carrying MR -

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(a) Provisions for properties under development (@ BRIYWERBEHENRT

and completed properties held for sale ME 2z BE

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties REBERBERPYERSELED
under development and completed properties held for sale BITYEMNAIEREEREERF
according to their net realisable values based on the reliability BRI HZEMENREDME - At - &
of these properties. As a result, provisions for properties under RAMERBIELHENR T 2 &
development and completed properties held for sale involve BEEREMERNRREERTEHE
critical accounting estimates on the future selling prices and S DA B B8 R A W) /98 TR AN 1E
variable selling expenses for the properties, as well as the EvN-HEER

costs to completion for properties under development.

(b) Fair value of investment properties (b) REWMERAAEE
Investment properties including those completed investment REVMEBEERIREDERER
properties and investment properties under construction, R EYE BREMEREALE
are carried at their fair value. The fair value of the investment BIER - REWMEAARBEIDZES
properties was determined by reference to valuations VEEVEGEMRBAMEGELE
conducted on these properties by an independent professional HZEVEETHNHEETE BB
property valuer using property valuation techniques which HEW RERITM RS TRE -

involve certain assumptions of prevailing market conditions.
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e PR ERR M EE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c) Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such difference will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provision in the year in which such determination
is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when management
considers to be probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

(d) PRC land appreciation taxes

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in the PRC.
The Group has not finalised its PRC land appreciation
taxes calculations and payments with local tax authorities
in the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of the land appreciation and
the related land appreciation taxes. The Group recognised
the land appreciation taxes based on management’s best
estimates according to the interpretation of the tax rules. The
final tax outcome could be different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, and these differences will impact the
taxation and tax provisions in the years in which such taxes
have been finalised with local tax authorities.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(e) Classification of subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates

The classification of an investment as a subsidiary, a joint
venture or an associate is based on whether the Group
is determined to have control, joint control or significant
influence over the investee, which involves judgements
through the analysis of various factors, including the Group’s
representation on the chief decision making authorities
of an investee, such as board of directors’ meetings
and shareholders’ meetings, as well as other facts and
circumstances.

Subsidiaries are consolidated, which means each of their
assets, liabilities and transactions are included line-by-line in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements, whereas the
interests in joint ventures and associates are equity accounted
for as investments on the consolidated balance sheet.

Accordingly, any inappropriate classification as a result of
recognition or derecognition of the investments could have a
material and pervasive impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Executive Directors have been identified as the CODM.
Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the Executive Directors, which are used
to allocate resources and assess performance. The Group is
organised into three business segments: property development
and construction, property investment, and other businesses.
Other businesses mainly include hotel operations. As the CODM of
the Group considers most of the revenue and results of the Group
are attributable to the market in the PRC, and only an immaterial
part (less than 10%) of the Group’s assets are located outside the
PRC, no geographical segment information is presented.

The directors of the Company assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of segment results,
which is a measure of revenue and gross profit of each operating
segment.

4.
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e R ERR M
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. 2 %% % (&)

The segment information provided to the executive directors for MBPTESRENEHEZ Mo FBEZE2023
the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2023 is F1I2AMHIEFENDHERAT -
as follows:

Property
development
and Property Other
construction investment businesses Unallocated Total
NERBRER NERE A FEAR a;

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR®TR ARBT T ARBTR ARBTR

Revenue from contracts with customers ER A HEERYA 24,364,221 - 54,112 - 24,418,333

Revenue from other sources - Rental income E R FMA —

i ON - 91,477 - - 91,477
Segment revenue 2 KA 24,364,221 91,477 54,112 - 24,509,810
Inter-segment revenue 2 KA - - - - -
Revenue from external customers S 9ME FEEHUA 24,364,221 91,477 54,112 = 24,509,810
Gross profit £7 1,715,706 47,158 36,390 - 1,799,254
Other income Eft A 92,603
Other losses - net Eft/518 — 558 (212,390)
Selling and marketing expenses 58 &z & #51% (845,828)
Administrative expenses fTHFI % (1,054,841)
Fair value losses on investment properties R& %A 7 BERE - (533,362) - - (533,362)
Finance costs - net &R A —F5 (352,469)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates HEAE R ER

YN ES (204,065) - - - (204,065)
Loss before income tax Fr& % Al &#E (1,311,098)
Income tax expenses T &% (649,207)
Loss for the year R (1,960,305)
Depreciation and amortisation ¥7% [ % & 25,680 - 30,884 - 56,564
Segment assets 2 BEE 70,456,610 4,895,075 359,961 785,182 76,496,828
Segment liabilities 2 # & & 42,891,533 3,113,101 265,469 18,132,465 64,402,568

Additions to non-current assets (other than financial
instruments and deferred income tax assets) SR E FEREA &
(ERIARERAEHAERIN 282,159 - 8,316 - 290,475
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The segment information provided to the executive directors for
the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2022 is

as follows:

e

BAFE R AR M RE

5. 7 HER (&)

MITESRENEEE2H D BEZ=2022
F12A31HIEFENDIBERDT ¢

Property
development
and Property Other
construction investment businesses Unallocated
MERE R nERE H ¥ REAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT
Revenue from contracts with customers EE FRIA HIE £ RMA 21,987,115 - 54,431 - 22,041,546
Revenue from other sources - Rental income Eft R FMA —

AelA - 103,935 - - 108,935
Segment revenue 2 A 21,987,115 103,935 54,431 = 22,145,481
Inter-segment revenue 2 KA - - - - -
Revenue from external customers B5MFE FEZHMA 21,987,115 103,935 54,431 = 29 145,481
Gross profit E7I 2,085,364 65,014 27,386 - 2,177,764
Other income EfMA 126,379
Other losses - net Eft/518 — 55 (85,061)
Selling and marketing expenses & [ % S X (689,179)
Administrative expenses 1THFI (870,468)
Fair value losses on investment properties R& %A 7 BERE = (25,784) - - (25,784)
Finance costs - net B&R A —F 5 (97,860)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates HEAE R ER

BERAEE 626,118 - - - 626,118
Profit before income tax AT/ 1H|E 1,161,909
Income tax expenses FT&H X (1,000,375)
Profit for the year R F|E 161,534
Depreciation and amortisation 472 [ % & 13,662 = 32,337 = 45,999
Segment assets 7 BEE 103,201,203 5,442,582 821,713 582,886 110,048,384
Segment liabilities S & & 63,068,497 4,018,489 483,926 22,355,263 89,926,175
Additions to non-current assets (other than financial

instruments and deferred income tax assets) & JERE A &

(ERIARERAEHEERM 510,812 604,015 339,820 - 1,454,647
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Ra MBI R

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. 2 %% % (&)

Reportable segments’ assets are reconciled to total assets as EWMOHNEEREELBENHERAT ¢

As at 31 December
M12H31H

2023 2022

follows:

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

Segment assets 7 2 E E 75,711,646 109,465,498

Unallocated: FEn
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss IR AR BETE B EE

FFABEHNESREE 11,100 9,743
Deferred income tax assets #EEFTE T & = 774,082 573,143
Total assets per consolidated balance sheet 418 BEBERTHEELE 76,496,828 110,048,384
Reportable segments’ liabilities are reconciled to total liabilities as EWHHTEREBFEEENYRNOT ¢
follows:
As at 31 December
M12831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETTT
Segment liabilities 2 2 & (& 46,270,103 67,570,912
Unallocated: FREDE :
Deferred income tax liabilities #&iEFTS 5 & & 60,726 175,422
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFT5 5 & & 1,663,016 988,769
Borrowings & 16,408,723 21,191,072
Total liabilities per consolidated balance sheet A EEBBERTH B ELAEE 64,402,568 89,926,175
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R MBI

6. REVENUE 6. LA

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A318LLEE

2023 2022

20234 2022%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T

Revenue from property development and sales & ith 2 5 %% & 4 & Fr 5 A 24,222 358 21,821,761

Hotel income JE J& YA 54,112 54,431

Rental income & U A 91,477 103,935
Management and consulting services income (Note a)

B N FE ARSI (Ficta) 141,863 165,354

24,509,810 22,145,481

Revenue mainly included sales of properties, which is recognised WAXZBEDEFEE  BRBRE—KH
at a point in time. BhTER o
(a) Management and consulting service income (a) BB KR AHREWA
The amount mainly represents the management and ZeETITERERBERYEAEEAER
consulting services provided to the Group’s joint ventures and AEBEEPERBERARENE
associates in relation to the property development projects. B R EARE o
(b) Details of contract acquisition costs: (b) EX W R AT -
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Costs for obtaining contracts EX{S& #J I AK AN 291,607 358,949
Management expects the incremental costs, primarily EIEEEINMESMEEESYMEL
sales commission and stamp duty, incurred for obtaining MEER A (FTELSEERS REE
the property sales contracts are recoverable. The Group T eemlgE - REED E RN b EE
capitalised these incremental costs and amortised them when S KA 1E A B UL AT T R R S H
the related revenue is recognised. There was no impairment 3 o BB ALK AN I A KRB E
loss in relation to the costs capitalised. 18 o

2023 FE#HRE ANNUAL REPORT 219



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ra MBI R

6. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 6. WA (#8)
(c) Details of contract liabilities: (c) EHNEEFHE
As at 31 December
M12A318
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥EFTTT
Contract liabilities related to sales of properties FIHEME BB E N AE 26,200,149 46,326,798
The Group receives payments from customers based on ANEBIRYENESYRNITREHERES
billing schedules as established in the property sale contracts. BEEmEEUWEEIE - ZEHIER
Payments are usually received in advance of the performance BEBTYERBRAREES YK
under the contracts for property development and sales. BY o
Revenue recognised related to carried-forward contract HZE2023F12A31BILEE © &t
liabilities amounted to RMB23,976,203,000 for the year ended LA B ERANKA LS ARK
31 December 2023 (2022: RMB21,241,164,000). 23,976,203,0007T (20224 : AR

21,241,164,0007T) °

(d) Unsatisfied contracts related to sales of (d) EEYEERNATREN

properties
As at 31 December
M12831H

2023 2022

20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Sales of properties $HE&E %

Expected to be recognised TEHA#% 1A T 71| HAR FE R
— within one year — —F X 26,825,304 32,413,055
— after one year — — %1% 8,502,937 20,875,656

35,328,241 53,288,711
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7. EXPENSES BY NATURE 7. EMEETHAX

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A318LLEE

2023 2022

20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Cost of properties sold — including construction cost, land cost, provision for
properties under development and completed properties held for sale and
capitalised interest expenses B EWEN A (BRIFZEMA « LHIAKA - FEEF

MERFFHEHE R T Y ERME R E MM B ) 22,282,822 19,357,480
Cost of construction services and others £ & iR #5524 2 E b 373,916 549,062
Other taxes expenses £ 1th 75 IEFI 2 138,752 139,900
Staff costs (including directors' emoluments) (Note 8) B T A (B IEEEEE)

(fF7E8) 378,891 605,778
Marketing and advertising costs ‘& 4 & J& & ik 7% 395,025 228,249
Consulting and project management fees A NIBEE B2 E A 248,652 176,554
Property management fees )3 & 18 & 34,005 70,692
Short-term lease payments %2 8378 & {5 5k 24,306 25,476
Entertainment expenses B35 % 24,664 40,001
Office and travelling expenses %2 & 2 ik F 52 47,299 77,787
Depreciation (Note 14) #& (ft314) 56,493 45,311
Net impairment losses on financial assets % @& &R (B 5 18F 58 195,745 116,721
Impairment losses on investments accounted for using the equity method {5 3 # %%

EIERNIRERERR 278,376 -
Amortisation of intangible assets % /& 2= & 71 688
Legal and professioan| fee j&#& & H & A 128,708 68,932
Auditors’ remuneration 1% i & 3 B

— Audit services — &=t IR 3,500 5,437

— Non-audit services — JEE =t AR = -
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8. STAFF COSTS - INCLUDING 8. EIA—BREEMHE

Year ended 31 December
BZEZ12A31BLLEE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%ET T AREET T

Wages, salaries and bonuses and other benefits Iﬁ  F e RIEAL A R H AR 376,797 604,521
Pension costs — statutory pension 2R & KA — SEEEK S 39,108 92,739
Others Hfit 7,261 15,969
Total employee benefits expenses & T1&F|fA X 4258 423,166 713,229

Less: capitalised in properties under development, investment properties
under construction and construction in progress i : B3 -

R EMHERTRETIZEENE (44,275) (107,451)
378,891 605,778
Pensions scheme — defined contribution plans Rk 1E— TEEHTTE
Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required NEBFFHRBARINESBLEHM AT
to participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme BTSSR EBEENERETERESETE -
administrated and operated by the local municipal government. REBNHEMHBARIEEEFSNET
The Group’s PRC subsidiaries contribute funds which are b 51 1) 52 51 B4 A A 1R B3R IR AE A 1R 4t
calculated on certain percentage of the employee salary to the B o

scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the employees.
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8. STAFF COSTS - INCLUDING 8. ETRA-—BIEEEMS
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (%)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=M<
The directors’ emoluments paid/payable by the Group are as REBEN/ENOEZHMESOT ¢
follows:

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HILLEE

2023 2022

20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT

Fees, salaries and bonuses and other benefits #& ~ ¥ & RIEAT A K&

HAith 1z A 5,642 5,338
Pension costs K& KA 315 325
5,957 5,663
The emoluments received by individual directors are presented BSESHWRHME 20T
as below:
(i) For the year ended 31 December 2023 () BLE2023F 12431 HILF/ZF

Salaries and Contribution
other benefits | Discretionary | to retirement
Name of Directors Fees E bonuses scheme Total

EEns k3 HftfEA RERAL | BATEIRR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR [ ARBTR | ARETR | AR®TR| ARETZR

Executive Directors #1TE%

Mr. Hu Yiping #—F %4 - 500 - 101 601
Mr. Fei Zhongmin & 85t & - 767 2,789 101 3,657
Ms. Shan Bei (resigned on 29 June 2023)

BEZL (R2023F6 A29 A EHT) - 262 403 50 715

Non-executive Directors ¥ TES

Mr. Hu Shihao #z55 %4 120 - 391 63 574
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert Tk iEfE £ 138 - - - 138
Mr. Chen Hengliu Chen Hengliu%t 4 136 - - - 136
Mr. Ding Jiangang T 354 136 - - - 136
Total 85t 530 1,529 3,583 315 5,957
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8. STAFF COSTS - INCLUDING 8. EIRA—BEEEME
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEE < (E)
(i) For the year ended 31 December 2022 () BEZE2022%F12H31HIFFE

Salaries and Contribution
other benefits | Discretionary | to retirement

TE A

Name of Directors Fees HEM bonuses scheme

EFHA we | EbEN | BEEL | R ,;
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARBTL | ARETE| ARMTRZ| ARETR

Executive Directors $l{TE%

Mr. Hu Yiping #— T2t 4 - 500 - 103 603
Mr. Fei Zhongmin 2 .81 5% & - 3,052 - 90 3,142
Ms. Shan Bei £+ - 1,046 - <]y 1,136

Non-executive Directors ¥ TEE

Mr. Hu Shihao s & %4 352 - - 42 394

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert Tik##&+ 130 = = = 130

Mr. Chen Hengliu Chen Hengliu%t 4 129 - - - 129

Mr. Ding Jiangang T 2% 4 129 - - - 129

Total #5t 740 4,598 - 325 5,663

(i) Directors’ retirement benefits (i) EFRIKEF

No retirement benefits were paid to the directors of REE2023F12A31HIEFE -

the Company by the Group in respect of the director’s REBWEBRESEERA LA
services as a director of the Company and its subsidiaries B ARZESSRIEEARARHH
or other services in connection with the management of MR R E15E 12 A B e H A AR 7%
the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries for the year R4 A FE S ETRRET
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: same). (20224 : #ER]) °
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II‘/_.F jﬁ%#&% M-J- -LE

8. ETRA-—BEESH=
(%)

8. STAFF COSTS - INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
(a) ESBS ()

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

(i) ZEFEEBET

(iii) Directors’ termination benefits

(iv)

(v)

None of the directors received any termination benefits for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did not
pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ services.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors.

Save as disclosed in Note 38, as at 31 December 2023,
there were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such directors.

NEE2023FE12A31 B ILEE -
BEE E W T BBAER

(v) BIEREFIRE M IE=T7 X THY

v)

RiE

NEE2023FE12A31 B ILEE -
ANEE W Eph iRt E F R M mE
Al = T AHEAAARE -

KEE i%f*%/ﬁ%fl&ﬁii
FHENER BT ANEL
UEAREMLE ZHIMEEER -

BRETESSFTHE TR B A1 + 720234
12A31H  MENES  XES
THEOZERREEHENERR
R ANER  BUERREMR
S HE

(vi) Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements i) BEERX G« A AINEIEX
or contracts #m
Save as disclosed in Note 38, no significant transactions, BRBfTFESSFT MR E AN - N A EH

arrangements, and contracts in relations to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company has a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2023.

MM AREEEREHEEARAR
EENETEERSHEEEEAR
AR FE RSB E2023F 12 A 31
BIEFEMNEMBERTFENEAR
2 BHEREH -
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8. STAFF COSTS - INCLUDING 8. ETRA-—BIEEEMS

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (%)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEEREFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in HZE2023F12A31BLEFE ' A&EE
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 included MNAZER=SHMA TR EE—% (2022
one (2022: one) director whose emoluments are reflected in F:—RESZESHEERLEX
the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the DT AFIR) - BE2023F12
remaining four (2022: four) individuals during the year ended AS1BIEFEEMN T TMHE (2022
31 December 2023 are as follows: F OB ALTHMESOT :

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31ALLEE

2023 2022

20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT

Wages and salaries and bonuses and other benefits T& * ¥ RIEALA K

H 1@ T 4,990 8,103
Pension costs — statutory pension B & A — SEEEK S 381 307
5,371 8,410
The emoluments of these remaining individuals of the Group REBZERTATIHHSEE D
fell within the following bands: T

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31HLEE

2023 2022

2023 20224
Number of Number of

individual individual

A AE

Annual emolument band FE# £ & E
RMB900,000 to RMB1,800,000 (equivalent to HKD1,000,000 to HKD2,000,000)

AER#900,0007TE A K #1,800,0007T (18 71,000,000/ 7T 22,000,000/ 7T.) 3 1
RMB1,800,000 to RMB2,300,000 (equivalent to HKD2,000,000 to HKD2,500,000)

AR®1,800,0007t F A R #2,300,0007T (F8E 742,000,000/ 7L 2,500,000/ 7T) 1 2
RMB2,300,000 to RMB3,200,000 (equivalent to HKD2,500,000 to HKD3,500,000)

AR®2,300,0007t £ A R #3,200,0007T (18 742,500,000/ 7T £3,500,000/% 7T) - 1
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9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hzg A

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HILLEE

2023 2022

20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT

Interests income from related parties and third parties U B8 77 &5 = 75

WA 7,884 36,543
Income from providing repayment guarantee for the borrowings of joint ventures
and associates Ft& & 1% K& A AfE IR ERERELWA 686 8,543
Others (Note) E i (FffzE) 84,033 81,293
92,603 126,379
Note: It mainly comprises of forfeiture of rental and management fee izt : ERERWEeREEERE MEP
deposits, utilities charged to tenants, repairs and maintenance KWW KESE  #HERREBRAZE -
income, etc.
- =yt
10. OTHER LOSSES - NET 10. Hftb 518 — F 5

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2023 2022

20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT

Gains/(losses) on disposals of subsidiaries (Note 41)

HE BB R B s (B518) (FtsE41) 88,501 (121,334)
Losses on disposals of investments accounted for using the equity method
HEEAERETIRNIRENEE (118,867) -
Fair value changes on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss BRARBEFAEEEZH I ABINERMEERAGN A BERD 27,648 (35,990)
Exchange losses [& i 518 (48,137) (110,303)
Others £1tb (161,535) 182,566
(212,390) (85,061)
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11. FINANCE COSTS - NET 1. AMERAE — FEE

Year ended 31 December
BZEZ12A31BLLEE

2023 2022

20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT

Finance costs & Bk 4%

— Borrowings
— B 1,347,595 1,890,000
— Amounts due to non-controlling interests, related parties and third parties
—FEfT IR e - BAEE T RE = RIE 318,758 263,115
- Lease liabilities
—HEAE 959 1,403
— Net exchange (gains)/losses on financing activities
—BMEFZBABER (W), EEFE (30,907) 41,908
— Less: capitalised interest
— R BRMEFE (1,219,251) (2,010,571)
417,154 185,855
Finance income &8 & YA
Interest income from K 24 A
- Bank deposits — $R1T1FX (64,685) (87,995)
Finance costs — net B & B2 — F 58 352,469 97,860
A
12.INCOME TAX EXPENSES 12. FR 8 H A

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2023 2022

20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT

Current income tax: ENEAFTEF:

- PRC corporate income tax —F Bl 1> 2 1551 649,764 698,184
- PRC land appreciation tax — /1 B + it 3 {E i 266,877 79,151
916,641 777,335

Deferred income tax (Note 17): dEEFTEH (F:E17) -
- PRC corporate income tax —F Bl 1> 2 551 (267,434) 223,040
(267,434) 223,040
649,207 1,000,375
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12.INCOME TAX EXPENSES 12. Fr 1§54 B 52 (&)
(CONTINUED)
The tax on the Group’s (loss)/profit before tax differs from the AEBEHA (BB FBEHFHIEARRIRE
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average BiRAERFE,EEATEARNINETY
tax rate applicable to profit/loss of the consolidated entities as MEMSEHOERESE - BRAT :
follows:
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALLEE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
(Loss)/profit before income tax FT{S#i AT (E18) /F/H (1,311,098) 1,161,909
Adjust for share of results of joint ventures and associates reported net of tax
MAAEMAIEE ERENEE QR REERE (KRB 204,065 (626,118)
(1,107,033) 535,791
Tax calculated at applicable corporate income tax rate 1% A 1 2 Fr S5 1 &

A E IR (276,758) 133,948
Effect of expenses not deductible for income tax purpose A~ A] H1FT 15 fﬂ?ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ 516,426 661,357
Effect of tax losses not recognised as deferred income tax assets &R AL

ISR EENTRIBBRENTE 209,381 145,707
PRC land appreciation tax deductible for income tax purpose AJ H1F715 % #) 5

T IR ET (66,719) (19,788)
Corporate income tax 1% FT15 % 382,330 921,224
PRC land appreciation tax A7 B + it 1 (E 266,877 79,151

649,207 1,000,375
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n‘l_ﬁ

12.

230 DEXI

BB R

INCOME TAX EXPENSES
(CONTINUED)

PRC corporate income tax

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations
in PRC has been calculated at the applicable tax rate on the
estimated assessable profits for the year, based on the existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

The corporate income tax rate applicable to the group entities
located in mainland China is 25% according to the Corporate
Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “CIT Law”)
effective on 1 January 2008.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on LAT effective 1 January 1994, and the Detailed
Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations of the PRC
on LAT effective on 27 January 1995, all income from the sale
or transfer of state-owned land use rights, buildings and their
attached facilities in the PRC is subject to LAT at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the appreciation value, with
an exemption provided for sales of ordinary residential properties
if their appreciation values do not exceed 20% of the sum of the
total deductible items.

The Group has made provision of LAT for sales of properties
according to the aforementioned progressive rate.

Overseas income tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands and, is exempted from Cayman Islands
income tax. The Company’s direct subsidiary in the BVI was
incorporated under the BVI Business Companies Act of the British
Virgin Islands and is exempted from British Virgin Islands income
tax. The Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong are subject to profits
tax at the rate of 16.5%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSES
(CONTINUED)

PRC dividend withholding income tax

Pursuant to the Detailed Implementation Regulations for
implementation of the Corporate Income Tax Law issued on 6
December 2007, dividends distributed from the profits generated
by the PRC companies after 1 January 2008 to their foreign
investors shall be subject to this withholding income tax of 10%, a
lower 5% withholding tax rate may be applied when the immediate
holding companies of the PRC subsidiaries are incorporated
in Hong Kong and fulfil the requirements to the tax treaty
arrangements between the PRC and Hong Kong. The Group has
not accrued any withholding income tax for these undistributed
earnings of its PRC subsidiaries as the Group does not have a
plan to distribute these earnings out of the PRC.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
December 2023, nor has any dividend been proposed since the
end of the reporting period (2022: nil).

12,

13.

e R HRAR N

FriE®is < (&)

RERERHMAES

BIER 2007512 A6 A EME (D EFTEH
EEHIEG) - H2008F1H1H% » A
HRAREENFBEREGIMNEEE DR
BB EIE10% MBI RMMIBINFTBR - 4
BN E R RN EEERAREES M
PR I F5 6 R R B B A BT AT S 00 B A
WLHERE - BERAS%MERTEINFHE -
AR B AT ZIE P BN R 5k
REEFEWNBRARMNZERDRATF -
MAEE L AR ZE BT B ERIBNAT
158 -

Hﬁz%\
REE2023F12 A31 B IEFE N EIR

HEZEMBEE - MEERSHRAKE
HERRR R (20224 « f#) o
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14, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14.Y%¥ - BER®ZE

Buildings and
leasehold Office Motor Construction Right-of-use
improvements equipment vehicles in progress assets Total

BTRER

nx&eE AR AE ERIR fERRER it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT N R AR®TR AR®BTR ARBTT ARBTR

Year ended 31 December 2023

BZ22023E 1231 AL ER
Opening net book amount as at 1 January 2023

R2023F1 A1BRENRRFE 392,142 1,705 3,063 651,069 681,917 1,729,896
Additions & 33,681 45 45 13,899 - 47,670
Transfer to investment properties

BREERANE - - - (475,545) (464,005) (939,640)

Transfer to the disposal group classified for
held-for-sales

BREHEARIELE 2N EAR (144,789) (161) - - (30,260) (175,210)
Disposals & (16,490) (171) (2,191) (1,282) - (20,134)
Transfer to right-of-use assets EREEFREE - - - (70,441) 70,441 =
Depreciation 17& (50,323) (514) (627) - (5,029) (56,493)
Closing net book amount &K B &% 214,221 904 290 117,700 252,974 586,089
At 31 December 2023 2023512831 H
Cost B 421,076 13,011 3,106 117,700 273,419 828,312
Accumulated depreciation £;H7& (206,855) (12,107) (2,816) - (20,445) (242,223)
Net book amount BE %4 214,221 904 290 117,700 252,974 586,089

Buildings and
leasehold Office Motor Construction Right-of-use
improvements equipment vehicles in progress assets Total

WRRME ik ERIR ERELE it
VB ooo RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT AREFT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT AREFT

Year ended 31 December 2022

220226128310 LEE
Opening net book amount as at 1 January 2022

R202F1 1B ENRRFE 481,284 1,981 5,826 425,229 188,464 1,102,784
Additions A E 71,916 803 1,466 105,852 159,783 339,820
Transfer from Investment properties

EROREDX - - - 131,306 454,878 586,184
Disposals & (138,867 (34) (1,885) (1,829) (110,966) (253,581)
Transfer to buildings ERZEF 9,489 - - (9,489) = =
Depreciation 1 & (31,680) (1,045) (2,344) - (10,242) (45,311)
Closing net book amount & RER /558 392,142 1,705 3,063 651,069 681,917 1,729,896
At 31 December 2022 142022127318
Cost B 452,014 13,799 8,519 651,069 697,334 1,822,735
Accumulated depreciation Z;H7& (59,872) (12,094) (5,456) - (15,417) (92,839)
Net book amount B %28 392,142 1,705 3,063 651,069 681,917 1,729,896
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
II‘I_F jﬁ%#&% M-J- -LI

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14.Y% - BER®E (@)
(CONTINUED)

op

W RHBRITENT -

S

Depreciation has been charged to the consolidated income RE
statements as follows:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILLEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETT
Cost of sales #5872 13,065 17,036
Selling and marketing expenses $4%& & & 4/ % 12,205 5,823
Administrative expenses 1T B X 31,201 22,171
Properties under development Fi35 4% 22 281
56,493 45,311
All buildings were located in the PRC. FrIEEFHuNPE -
The information of the Group’s pledged assets is disclosed in the AREBEDKAEENE BB ENME36 -
Note 36.
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e PR HRAR MR

15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. B EY

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HILEE

2023 2022

20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT

Opening net book amount 4 %] 8k /% 58 4,138,410 5,003,804
Additions RNE - 604,015
Disposals & (16,108) -
Transfer from properties under development and completed

properties held for sale E# 5 AP YERIFEREMNE T YWE - 98,459
Fair value changes A BEZ ) (533,362) (25,784)
Disposal of subsidiaries & & A &) (271,900) (955,900)
Transfer from/(to) property, plant and equipment R H ~ (E#EE) % -

5 K& 939,640 (586,184)
Closing net book amount 4F & fF /58 4,256,680 4,138,410
Rental income A& U A 91,477 103,935
Fair value losses on investment properties & ¥ ¥ A 1 BEEIE (533,362) (25,784)

(441,885) 78,151

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had no contractual
obligations for repairs, maintenance or enhancements.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, no investment property was
resulted from operating of sub-lease.

The information of the Group’s pledged assets is disclosed in the
Note 36.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R HRAR N

16. LEASES 16. HE
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated () REEEEABRABRNR
balance sheet b |
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following amounts FEAERRRBETIHEEMRBER
relating to leases: IA

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
#H £2023F B Z=20224F

12A31H 12A31H
IEFE HFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETIT

Property, plant and equipment - right-of-use assets 1% - FE K

RiE- FRAEEE

Land use rights + {3 FA# 252,974 677,942
Properties #713 - 3,975
252,974 681,917

Lease liabilities FHE & &
Current i E) - 3,753
Non-current JE/7 B0 10,787 9,898
10,787 13,651
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16. LEASES (CONTINUED) 16. & (&)
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (b) RERE W ER TR ABRAKIE

income statement

The consolidated income statement shows the following reWmzxET NHEERERIE
amounts relating to leases:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
#H £2023F B Z=20224F

12A31H 12A31H
IEFE EFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETIT

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets F AEEEITEEH

Land use rights {3 FA % 1,054 3,428
Properties #73 3,975 6,814

5,029 10,242
Interest expense (included in finance cost) #8515 (B 5 AR E AR ZN) 959 16,401

Expense relating to short-term leases and low value assets (included in cost
of goods sold and administrative expenses) 52 HiF & &

REBEEMABARZ (Bt ABEEMRARITHASR) 24,306 25,476
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain MHETEEER EHE - TR
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease & BB R R AR o BR AR A PTHE
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the HEBEZER#ERI  HEHRIL
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the 42 I AN (R] 3256 o
lessor.
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e R HRAR N

17. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/ 1. EEFIBHREE 8&
LIABILITIES
(a) Deferred income tax assets (a) EIEEFIEREE

As at 31 December
M12831H

2023 2022

20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREFIT

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
ERBEENA T EES B E R ERE -

Tax losses HtIHE1E 353,530 377,403
Impairment of assets & & & 127,218 47,620
Revaluation losses of investment properties
KREMFEAER 128,463 -
Revaluation losses of financial assets & g & & B (4518 26,268 30,016
Others Efh 138,603 118,104
Total deferred income tax assets EEPTST & ELLE 774,082 573,143
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses EIEFTSHEEL ] B BIBARRIER
carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related Tt ) R 2 2R AR A B MR &5 R B B TE U
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 BAEEER - R2023F12H31H -
December 2023, the Group did not recognise deferred income AEBEIWEGRARES840,281,000
tax assets of RMB209,381,000 (2022: RMB145,706,000) in T (2022%F : AR%837,524,000
respect of tax losses amounting to RMB840,281,000 (2022: TT)MA R AREZRRBWALEER
RMB837,524,000), that can be carried forward against MEBEEAELNEHEEAR
future taxable income. These tax losses will expire up to and #209,381,0007T (20224F : AR¥E
including year 2027. 145,706,0007T) - ZEMEBEER

2027 FF X AIE M °

2023 FE#HRE ANNUAL REPORT 237



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR HRAR MR

17. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/ 1EEMESHEE 8
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) (&)
(a) Deferred income tax assets (continued) (a) IEEFTESHREE ()
Movements of deferred income tax assets without taking into EREEHEENZE (TZFEEKIEHE
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax BB AEARERARER) T ¢

jurisdiction is as follows:

Deductible
Revaluation temporary | Revaluation
losses of | differences of losses of
investment [investments in financial
Impairment properties | subsidiaries assets
Tax losses of assets REBAFH
RENE | RENTHNH tREE
RakR BENE EffEE | ERMEE EftEE 2t it
Movements RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
25 AEBTR | ARMTR | ARETR | ARMTR | ARBTR [ ARMTR | AR¥T:R
At1 January 2022 ¥202261 A1 412,687 37,667 - 234,658 21,018 101,185 807,215
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss
B () /3T A (28,389) 9,953 - (234,659) 8,998 16,919 (227.171)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR] (6,901) = = = = = (6,901)
At 31 December 2022 1420225121318 377,408 47,620 - - 30,016 118,104 573,143
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss
RERGEA)/HR 41,621 79,598 128,463 - (3,748) 20499 266,433
Disposal of a subsidiary 115 —~FHHEAT (65,494) - - - - - (65,494)
At 31 December 2023 1420235127318 353,530 127,218 128,463 - 26,268 138,603 774,082
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17. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred income tax liabilities

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
ERBEENA T EES B E R ERE -

BB HRRNEE

nv']'i

1EZEFREREE &E (&)

(b) ELFEHER

As at 31 December
M12831H

2023

2022
20224
RMB’000
ARBT T

20234
RMB’000
ARET

Revaluation gains of investment properties & & 4 % #) & (fH Uz 60,726 108,738
Taxable temporary differences of properties under development £
MENERTE R IEZE - 66,684
Total deferred income tax liabilities #E LTS B (E 4858 60,726 175,422
Movements of deferred income tax liabilities without taking BELEFSHABENEE (TEREHEBRM

into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same
tax jurisdiction is as follows:

Revaluation gains
of investment
properties
REMER
Efilia
RMB’000
ARBTR

Movements

29

BENERR ARG AT

Revaluation gains
of properties
under development
ERMER

Efils

RMB’000
AR®TR

Total

@t
RMB’000
ARBT T

At 1 January 2022 42022F1F1H 222,334 64,336 286,670
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss 1A #8% (Gt \) /4% (6,479) 2,348 (4,131)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (& — I B2 7] 42,252 - 42,252
Disposal of subsidiaries {H &/ B2 A (149,369) - (149,369)
At 31 December 2022 7420225128318 108,738 66,684 175,422
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss 5 183 (1) /3 A 1,347 (2,348) (1,001)
Disposal of subsidiaries ({H & i B2 A (49,359) (64,336) (113,695)
At 31 December 2023 420235128315 60,726 - 60,726
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e PR HRAR MR

17. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/ 1.EEFTEHREE &6 (&)
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(C) Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB311,993,000 (2022: (C)RE=EL AmE THEBARBKREH

RMB327,773,000) have not been recognised for the
withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries. Unremitted
earnings totalled RMB3,119,930,000 as at 31 December 2023
(2022: RMB3,277,733,000), as the Group does not have a
plan to distribute these earnings out of the PRC.

BROEMEMREREMHEERER
RIEFTSTHAEARKE311,993,000
(20224 : AR®327,773,000
JT) ° FA2023%F12A31H » AR
E B AT S 7E R B LA SN [ R
KEHAF  BHZERFNETARE
3,119,930,0007T (20224 : AR
3,277,733,0007T) °

18. SUBSIDIARIES 18. BB A 7

(a) EXFZRERS

(a) Material non-controlling interests

Set out below is the summarised financial information for a
subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material
to the Group. The amounts disclosed for the subsidiary is
before inter-company eliminations.

Hangzhou Dexin Donglai Real Estate Co.,Ltd

Summarised balance sheet

TXHINEBHAEBMEBEKRN
IEERERN—FHNBARNMBEE
BHME  pRzMERRMEENSRE
i AREE R BB o
MINEERKERZEGR L E]
EEEEREE
As at 31 December
M12831H

2023 2022

20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T

Current &)

- Assets — BE 2,744,576 2,001,847

- Liabilities — &1& (1,723,572) (509,973)
Total net current assets 427 8) & E/FE 1,021,004 1,491,874
Non-current 3£ &)

- Assets — BE 7,107 1,999

- Liabilites — &1& - (450,000)
Total net non-current assets/(liabilities) Z3ER BN EE (B &) FE 7,107 (448,001)
Net assets & & %8 1,028,111 1,043,873
Proportionate share of the net assets attributable to non-controlling interests

RO IEE R s R R B B RE 671,961 682,263
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niﬁ (=] /ZTigqu&E%EiBfTA?E

18. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18. fiy B 2 8] (%)
(a) Material non-controlling interests (continued) (a) ERFZERAER ()
Hangzhou Dexin Donglai Real Estate Co.,Ltd (continued) MMNEERKERZBRL A (E
Summarised income statement and statement of WEERRE2EWBERBE

comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31ALLEE

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFIT

Revenue YA 1,800 =

Loss before income tax FT5 % Bl 18 (20,870) (8,126)

Income tax credit FTS i E R 5,108 1,999

Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year - N E1E K & &5 184258 (15,762) (6,127)

Total comprehensive loss for the year allocated to non-controlling

interests 7 ic T IEEAR S BV F A2 HE B AR (10,302) (4,005)

Summarised statement of cash flows HERERPE

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BHILLEE

2023 2022

20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities & & E & Fr153, (FTF)

REFHE 941,537 (1,178,502)
Net cash used in investing activities & /& E) AT IR & 558 (470,309) (40)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities &t & & (FT ) /Fri5

HEFR (450,000) 1,474,884
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents IR & K& IR & S (E W N FEE 21,228 296,342
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year #1384 IR & ZEY 296,342 =
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FXRIE & MIRE ZHEY 317,570 296,342
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n‘l_ﬁ

BB R

18. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(a) Material non-controlling interests (continued)
Nanjing Dedian Real Estate Co.,Ltd

Summarised balance sheet

Current 7 &b

18. i BB 2 &) ()
(a) EXRFFEZERER (B)
ARREEELERAT

REREEME

As at 31 December
M12831H

2023 2022
20224
RMB’000
ARET T

2023%F
RMB’000
ARET T

- Assets — BE 1,231,327 1,529,159

- Liabilites — &1& (349,233) (590,865)
Total net current assets 427 B) & E/F & 882,094 938,294
Non-current 3£ E)

- Assets — BE 2 3

- Liabilites — Bf& - -
Total net non-current assets & IE R B E E FE 2 3
Net assets & EFE 882,096 938,297
Proportionate share of the net assets attributable to

non-controlling interests 3% Eb 5l 51l FEIE IG5 FE (G O B )R B 432,227 459,765
Summarised income statement and statement of WBEBREZHKSRBE

comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31ALLEE

2023 2022
20224
RMB’000

ARETT

2023%F
RMB’000
ARET T

Revenue ¥ A 5,146 3,070,557
(Loss)/profit before income tax FriSHi AT (E518),/F38 (56,201) 584,458
Income tax expenses P15 FI 2 - (145,540)
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year

FR(ER) /FBEREE (BB) e (56,201) 438,918
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year allocated to non-controlling

interests D BE TIFERERNF AN E (BEB) M iEE (27,538) 215,070
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18. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18. fiy B 2 8] (%)
(a) Material non-controlling interests (continued) (a) ERFZERAER ()
Nanjing DedJian Real Estate Co.,Ltd (continued) HREEEXFFRLA(E
Summarised statement of cash flows BEREBREE

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31ALLEE

2023 2022

20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities &% E8) (FTF) /Fri5

e HE (240,880) 15,186
Net cash generated from investing activities & ;& BN AT 1538 & F 48 - —
Net cash used in financing activities Bt & EEFTHIR & 558 - (304,969)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

RekBReEFBYWRDFRE (240,880) (289,783)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year E¥3R & KL EEY 427,005 716,788
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year F R & MIREEEY 186,125 427,005
Hangzhou Dexin Industrial Development Co., Ltd. MINEEEFZERBR L 7]
Summarised balance sheet EEEBERUE

As at 31 December
M12A831H

2023 2022

20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T

Current &

- Assets — BE 1,648,932 4,125,225

— Liabilities — &1& (2,151,151) (3,748,539)
Total net current (liabilities)/assets #i g (B &), EEFE (502,219) 376,686
Non-current 3E7 )

— Assets — BE 479,645 631,078

- Liabilities — B 1& 10,930 =
Total net non-current assets 22 IE R ENE EFE 490,575 631,078
Net (liabilities)/assets (B &) /& E FE (11,644) 1,007,764

Proportionate share of the net (liabilities)/assets attributable to
non-controlling interests &t Il DG FEIEASAE RS FE (G K (B1E) /B EFE (5,822) 503,882
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18. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18. iy B 2 8] (%)
(a) Material non-controlling interests (continued) (a) ERFZERAER (1)
Hangzhou Dexin Industrial Development Co., Ltd. (continued) MMNEEERXZRBRA A (E
Summarised income statement and statement of WEERREERBERBE

comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Revenue WA 2,284,850 1,528
Profit/(loss) before income tax P& 5 AT FE, (E518) 694,156 (6,192)
Income tax (expense) credit FT5 % (F2) & (173,565) 1,523
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year
FRNFIE, (BB R2EkE (B18) 858 520,591 (4,669)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year allocated to non-controlling
interests S BE TIFERE RN F AL E W (B8) 425 260,296 (2,335)
Summarised statement of cash flows ReERBRUR

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILLEE

2023 2022

20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities &% E8) (Fr )/ Fri5

b2 (174,033) 5,943
Net cash generated from investing activities

REZBABRSFHE 7 652
Net cash used in financing activities B4 & EE)PTHIR £ F 58 (11,000) (345,194)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ¥4 N IR & ZE W ) F 58 (185,026) (338,599)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year F#138 & MIR& EHEY 187,837 526,436
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year £ RIE4 MRS ZEY 2,811 187,837
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e R HRAR N

19.INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 19. EAERESERNIRE
USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(a) Investments accounted for using the equity (a) FHERZEZYRNKRE
method
()  The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance () REGEEABRAERABIEMR
sheets as “Investments accounted for using the equity BRES| BRI E M FIELT ¢

method” are as follows:

As at 31 December
MW12831H
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET T ARETFIT
Joint ventures & &1 1,137,989 757,642
Associates Bt & A A 4,190,121 4,879,455
Less: provision for impairment & : JB (B & (553,376) =
4,774,734 5,637,097
(i) The amounts recognised in the consolidated income (i) NEFEWRERANERBIHEEE
statements as “Share of results of joint ventures and TERBEATEE|HRED
associates” are as follows: ™
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Joint ventures & &% (103,425) 128,520
Associates Bt & AR (100,640) 497,598
(204,065) 626,118
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wne IR R AR AT

19.INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 19. E R A5 BRAVIRE ()

USING THE EQUITY METHOD

(CONTINUED)

(b) Set out below are the principal joint ventures and associates (b) T X EHFIAERPN20234F 2022412
of the Group as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. The place A31EMEFESECERBENT -
of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of il i D VA A Ba ) WS e
business. EHEME o
() Joint ventures: () BEPFE:

% of ownership interest

EHERERADL
Place of business/
Place of incorporation M2A31H Measurement
Name of entity and business method
B/ EMRIR
EH2R B3 Eip-:D
Hangzhou Detong Real Estate Co. Ltd The PRC 50% 50%  Equity Method
MNEREXBRAA G Tyl
Hangzhou Yinfeng Real Estate The PRC 55% 55%  Equity Method
Development Co. Ltd
MR EREBREEAT i G Tl
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II‘I_F jﬁ%#&% M-J- -LI

19.INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 19. £ =R A5 BRAVIR & (FF)

USING THE EQUITY METHOD

(CONTINUED)

(b) Set out below are the principal joint ventures and associates (b) X & FIAEEPN20234F K 2022412
of the Group as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. The place A31EMETESAECERBENT -
of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of MMMt T AEEE
business. (continued) EHEME o (B)

(i) Associates: (i) HERNA] -

% of ownership interest

EHERERADL

Place of business/ As at 31 December

Place of incorporation M2A31H Measurement
Name of entity and business method Principal activities

EXny/EMRIR
.52 e EiB- D
Hangzhou Hewei Real Estate Co., Ltd. The PRC 35% 35%  Equity Method Property development
MMEHEXERAA ! BRI nER%
Ningbo Xinde Zhonghe Real Estate Co., Ltd. The PRC 4% 41%  Equity Method Property development
ERHERAESERAR e A% nERE
Sichuan Hanjing Real Estate Co., Ltd. The PRC 30% 30%  Equity Method Property development
mIHRERBRAA i 7% nERE
Wenzhou Country Garden Real Estate Development The PRC 30% 30%  Equity Method Property development

Co., Ltd.

ANEEREHEREEBR AT i A% nERE
Wuhan Baoye Dexin Real Estate Co., Ltd The PRC 30% 30%  Equity Method Property development
REBXEEEXEARAR il R NA mERE
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AN S =
19.INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 19. E ARERZESIRNIRE (8)
USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(CONTINUED)
(c) Summarised financial information for C)BERAREELENMKE
associates and joint ventures =
(i) Set out below is the summarised financial information () TXHINAEEMSEEAAEE
for Wuhan Baoye Dexin Real Estate Co., Ltd, which is a ARAREEXEFEEXERAAN
material associate to the Group. HBEERME -
Summarised balance sheet EEEERHE
As at 31 December
MW12H318
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Non-current assets R EEE 5,804 5,807
Current assets HREIEE
Cash and cash equivalents IR & MR & % EY) 48,034 28,780
Other current assets HE b ingh& & 517,784 1,133,722
565,818 1,162,502
Total assets EEA 5 571,622 1,168,309
Current liabilities RE & &
Other current liabilities HAth 78 & & 443,812 1,100,740
Total liabilities & &4 % 443,812 1,100,740
Net assets EE F{E 127,810 67,569
The Group’s share in % N8 BIR& (716 30% 30%
The Group’s share of net assets N5 B B (5 & & R E 38,343 20,271
Carrying amount BRHEIE 38,343 20,271
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19.INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(CONTINUED)

(c) Summarised financial information for
associates and joint ventures (continued)

()

(i)

(continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

Revenue WA

Interest income F1| 2 U A

Income tax expense FT{5FiFI 5%

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
FRMEREE K =ERE

e R HRAR N

19. £ A s R SRR AV IR E (4]R)

(c) BELNTREELENMBKE
FELE ()
0 (&)
2HWERBE
Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31BLEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
745,949 294,121
68 73
(9,270) (1,620)
60,241 4,285

Set out below is the reconciliation of the summarised
financial information presented to the carrying amount of
the Group’s interest in Wuhan Baoye Dexin Real Estate
Co., Ltd.

() TXEIFF2NNMBERBEEALE
BRRZEXRBEERARARINE
SMREEZ RN -

As at 31 December
M12831H

2023 2022
20224
RMB’000
ARETTT

20234
RMB’000
AR®T T

Opening net assets £ EEFE 67,569 63,284
Profit for the year & R FE 60,241 4,285
Closing net assets £ R & E R {E 127,810 67,569
The Group’s share in % A& E A 1G 30% 30%
The Group’s share of net assets & B fE(5 & E/FE 38,343 20,271
Carrying value BRI {E 38,343 20,271
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19.INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 19.

USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(CONTINUED)

(c) Summarised financial information for
associates and joint ventures (continued)

(iii) Set out below are the summarised financial information
for joint ventures, which are individually immaterial to the
Group.

£ A A RAVIRE (8)

) BERAARSERENUESE
FEEE ()

(i) TXEFER TS HARNEBLTE
ANELLENPEERRE -

Year ended 31 December
HZEZ12A31BLLEE

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARBT T

(Loss)/profit for the year A (E518) /FIH (188,695) 564,587

Other comprehensive income E it & Uk z5 - =
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year R & & (E5i8)

W AR AR (188,695) 564,587

(iv) Set out below are the summarised financial information for
associates, which are individually immaterial to the Group.

(iv) T EFIERIM S A A REL N E
REEE RBINPEERBE

Year ended 31 December

HBE12A31BHILLEE

2023 2022

20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT

Profit for the year & R FE 550,170 2,969,005
Other comprehensive income £ fifi & W 25 - -
Total comprehensive income for the year R4 mE Uk 25 4258 550,170 2,969,005

250 DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED fE{EHEZERERAF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
II‘I-F =) jﬁ%#&% M-.I--LI

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 20 ZEHETHEMI R

CATEGORY
As at 31 December
MW12H31H

2023 2022

20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T

Financial assets: €@ & E :
Assets at amortised cost IR K AT E R EE

- Trade and other receivables — & 5 & H b fE UL FK 1B 2,752,792 3,583,410

— Amounts due from non-controlling interests — JEUL FF1% A HE 25 7018 10,150,455 13,662,529

- Amounts due from related parties — J& U B85 5 708 5,186,593 5,969,111

- Restricted cash — 2R HI3H ¢ 145,405 67,710

— Cash and cash equivalents — IR 4 RIREEHEY 4,599,819 7,307,483
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss I A f EBEFFEAHEH

ARG EREE 11,100 9,743

22,846,164 30,599,986

Financial liabilities: £ B & & :
Financial liabilities at amortised cost R# HKX AFFEN SR A &
— Trade and other payables, excluding accrual for staff costs and allowances
and other taxes payable — & 5 Rk H A EIB (M BIEER B TRA R

JEERL A T2 B FE A A5 18) 8,211,972 7,193,118

— Amounts due to non-controlling interests — &1 JF1% A% A %5 7B 3,106,628 3,644,897

— Amounts due to related parties — &1~ B8 75 28 6,885,553 6,990,372

- Borrowings — & 16,408,723 21,191,072

Lease liabilities F & & f& 10,787 13,651
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss IZA R BETE B &5

SFABGNERAR 2,000 29,648

34,625,663 39,062,758

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 21, Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁk;ﬁﬁﬂ@iﬂﬁ
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS AEBEHNEREE

As at 31 December
MW12831H

2023 2022

20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT

Unlisted equity securities 3F T & A& & % 11,100 9,743
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22. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
AND COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD
FOR SALE

2023

20234
RMB’000
ARET T

22, BB PB4 1 038

As at 31 December
M12831H

2022
20224
RMB’000
ARBTIT

Properties under development %%/ #) 3 34,165,174 61,783,008
Less: provision for properties under development Ji : 5325 4 5 B (2,489,573) (861,184)
31,675,601 60,921,824
Completed properties held for sale ${EH &)k T 8,574,190 3,267,973
Less: provision for completed properties held for sale

A FEHENR T RER (10,952) (33,517)
8,563,238 3,234,456
40,238,839 64,156,280

Properties under development comprise: Fi3sFR ¥ % B 3E :
— Construction costs — AR 8,371,852 13,257,876
- Land use rights — =+ A #E 20,323,460 43,153,139
- Interests capitalised — &AL T & 2,980,289 4,510,809
31,675,601 60,921,824

AEENRETDERFELENRTY
R HE - YTRBHNIERSERY
NIRRT RAHELE -

Properties under development and completed properties held for
sale of the Group are all located in the PRC and expected to be
completed and available for sale within normal operating cycle.

B E2023F 12 A31 B ILFE © EHRMER
(bR B7.15% (20224F : 6.59%) °

The capitalisation rate of borrowings is 7.15% for the year ended
31 December 2023 (2022: 6.59%).

AEECEREENERENH 36

The information of the Group’s pledged assets is disclosed in the
Note 36.
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES BEFNREMERREBEBLURTE
AND PREPAYMENTS FRIE

As at 31 December
M12831H

2023 2022

20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT

Trade receivables (Note a) Z 5 FEWFE (KizEa)

- Third party — =7 128,476 142,293
- Related party — Bt 221,292 181,334
Less: provision for impairment J& : J&{E &5 (10,611) (2,295)
339,157 321,332

Notes receivables FEIN Z & 324 4,443

Other receivables Hft fE T E
— Deposits for property development and construction projects — #7135 &

BEEBES 644,005 373,010

— Deposits for borrowings — f&k#&& 44,140 4,313
- Cash advances with third parties (Note b) — =7 & 83 (Ft3tb) 844,287 881,843
— Interest receivables — FEUFI S 85,501 55,359
— Supervisory account (Note c)— EZ& BE P (Fiztc) 982,343 2,052,053

— Others — £ 177,594 98,298
Less: provision for impairment & : J&i {8 & (364,559) (207,241)
2,413,311 3,257,635

Prepayments Tt &
— Prepayments for acquisition of land use rights — Y& +3b(F i &Y

T RIR - 19,361

- Prepaid value added tax and other taxes — FE{HIE{E T K H 7 18 915,951 661,472
— Prepayments for property development — #2583 19384 FUA 169,940 147,783
— Others — Efh 67,807 88,534
1,153,698 917,150

Total trade and other receivables and prepayments £ 5 & H#h FEU TR &
IR RN IR 3,906,490 4,500,560
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2. E5 REMEWRENURE
NESENE )

(a) 20234 %2022F 12 A31HMNE 5 B

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at 31 December

2023 and 2022 based on invoice dates or contractual terms
are as follows:

RERBEZAHE A OIERNERE D
RN

As at 31 December
MW12831H

2023 2022

20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT

Within 90 days 90A N 207,446 255,645
Over 90 days and within 365 days 90K A %365k 16,030 25,811
Over 365 days and within 2 years 365K A 24 119,781 40,534
Over 2 years 2F A 6,511 1,637

349,768 323,627

Trade receivables are denominated in RMB and mainly arise
from sales of properties and construction services. Proceeds
from sales of properties and construction service are generally
received in accordance with the terms stipulated in the sale
and purchase agreements. There is generally no credit period
granted to the property purchasers.

Trade receivables with ageing over 365 days mainly
included receivables of construction service fees for two
resettlement community projects, of which the customers are
subsidiaries of the local State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission. Management considers the credit
risk is not high since these customers have no recent history
of default. The Group maintains frequent communications
with these customers. Management closely monitors the
credit qualities and the collectability of these receivables and
considers that the expected credit risks of them are minimal
in view of the history of cooperation with them and forward
looking information.
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES VESRHEMEBEWKIENURTE

AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED) HEE (#)

(b) As at 31 December 2023, the amounts included certain (b) R2023F12A318 ' S8 FREE=
cash advances from third parties of approximately TR R E A AR E224,606,0007T
RMB224,606,000 (2022: RMB262,614,000) which bear (2022%F : AR¥262,614,0007T) -
interest rates of 8% to 10% per annum (2022: 8% to 10% HIZ8%E10% (2022%F : 8% E10%)
per annum) and were repayable according to respective MEMEGE  WEKAERHZE
agreements. R e

(c) According to the relevant documents issued by the local (c) Rikt s HA L HEREERE B LA
state-owned land resources administration, several property BEXH  XEBETHERRAF
development companies of the group must deposit the /,\Z-E? ERITIRFERETHEED X
proceeds from the pre-sale of certain properties in the FRiSRIBERBHEMERZNERT
designated bank account as the guarantee deposit for Ko ZFREMEERM T EE i
the construction of relevant properties. The deposit can BREE B ER ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁi%‘iﬁ
only be used to purchase construction materials and pay BEZNEBERMEEENREEE - %
the construction fees of relevant property projects when EGERERBREBEEYEE T
obtaining the approval of the local state-owned land resources BEZEMENEHERE (URESE
administration. Such deposit balance will not be released until RAE) BT A BERR o

the relevant pre-sale property is completed or the real estate
certificate of such property is issued (whichever is earlier).
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24. RESTRICTED CASH 24, FREIBEE

As at 31 December
MW12831H

2023 2022

20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT

Guarantee deposits for bank borrowings and bank acceptance notes #R17 85 %

RITHE R BRI ERTR 143,483 65,034
Others HAh 1,922 2,676
145,405 67,710
Denominated in RMB LA A R#HE 145,405 67,710
145,405 67,710
The Group placed certain cash deposits with designated banks as AEBEEREBEERTHEAGTRESR
security mainly for borrowings and issuance of commercial bills. FABER KRBT EZBIEER
25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BRERASTEEY

As at 31 December
M12A831H

2023 2022

20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT

Denominated in JA T3 &% HE

-RMB — AR# 4,597,805 7,246,170
-USD — =7t 1,632 58,866
- HKD — BT 382 2,447
4,599,819 7,307,483
The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign AN R SHE R SR E R IMNE DA
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies out of Bt 5% 5 5N T i P B 7R 38 ST AP B B
the PRC are subject to relevant rules and regulation of foreign FFF Fft 78 45 &) A8 B S BE & i) AR Al e 0K
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government. Mo
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26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. I Z<

Equivalent
Number of | Nominal value of | nominal value of
ordinary shares | ordinary shares | ordinary shares

EEREA BEREE | HERSEEE
uss$ RMB’000
E AR¥TR

Authorised: &

As at 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022,
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023
1202261 R18 « 2022412R318 -

2023F1 418 K2023F12A31H 5,000,000,000 2,500,000
Issued: 21T :
As at 1 January 2022 72202251 A1H 2,701,341,000 1,350,671 9,200
Subscription of shares (Note) (7 (Fi+) 268,000,000 134,000 930
As at 31 December 2022 732022412 A31H 2,969,341,000 1,484,671 10,130
As at 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 72023F1 A1H &

2023 12F31H 2,969,341,000 1,484,671 10,130
Note: Pzt :
On 13 December 2022, an aggregate of 268,000,000 shares have been MR2022%F 128138 @ BEEERER N DRNBHE
successfully placed by the placing agent to not less than six placees. B2 A Ih L& & ££268,000,0008% %17 °
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27. OTHER RESERVES 21. H At & B
Share Other

premium reserves Total

gy H it e st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AR¥T T AR®T T

Balance at 1 January 2022 7420225181 B & & 664,393 (157,928) 506,465
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries (Note 37)

Y B BT 8 X R By BRSME 2R (B EE37) - 14,291 14,291
Subscription of shares &% 1H 204,371 = 204,371
Disposal of interests in subsidiaries without change of control

(Note 37) FEAREE AL HIENZIER T HEMNE R R ELR

(Ft3E37) - 130,000 130,000
Final dividends for 2021 (Note 13) 20214E R 2% &, (Ff5E13) (236,367) = (236,367)
Balance at 31 December 2022 742022512 531 H V4 & 632,397 (13,637) 618,760
Balance at 1 January 2023 jA2023%1 81 H & & 632,397 (13,637) 618,760
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries (Note 37)

WeBS I B X Rl ERSME 23 (P EE37) - (20,031) (20,031)
Disposal of interests in subsidiaries without change of control

(Note 37) TEREAEHIERENBE R THEMNB A RER

(B 5E37) - 11 11
Balance at 31 December 2023 X2023%12 831 H V45 &k 632,397 (33,657) 598,740
Other reserves mainly represented the share premium from the EMREHEEIEEBLARA LTEANR
Company’s listing and the accumulated capital contribution from MuEBEREBERARERRENLEHER
the then shareholders of the group companies in excess of the FHEEBETRERD -

consideration given in relation to the reorganisation.
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28. STATUTORY RESERVES 28. = EfRE
In accordance with relevant rules and regulations in the PRC, RIBFPEBRARALER  £5IRK
when declaring dividend, the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are B RNEB/FEMEQBEBR
required to appropriate not less than 10% of their profit after BB e ER RERTENEF
taxation calculated under PRC accounting rules and regulations to HR10% A LEIREEERES -
the statutory reserve fund, until the accumulated total of the fund BEEAERESNRFTABEIEZD
reaches 50% of the registered capital of the respective companies. AIFEME AS50% A1 - AERHEE S
The statutory reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the R HEAS P IR ER BRI E BT
relevant authority, to offset losses brought forward from prior years FEAZEHNBEBEIENS AFHEIR
or to increase the paid up capital of respective companies. B o

29. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 29. B 1% (B518) B F

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31ALLEE

2023 2022
20234 20224

(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company (RMB’000)

AARGEAR AEML (BB, FlEARETT) (2,188,918) 373,716
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (in thousand)

BEITERRINEF B AT 2,969,341 2,723,674
Basic (loss)/earnings per share (RMB per share)

BRER(BE) B (BRARET) (0.74) 0.14
The Company had no dilutive potential shares in issue, thus the ARARBAEMEBTNEEHER
diluted (loss)/earnings per share equals the basic (loss)/earnings - Bt - BREE (BB BFNE
per share. REBRER(EER) &BF -
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30. B &K

As at 31 December
MW12831H

2022
20224

30. BORROWINGS

2023
20234

Borrowings included in non-current liabilities: 5t AFFREE BB :
Bank borrowings $R17& %

- Secured — B 11,139,890 13,726,519
Other borrowings H b &5k
- Secured — HEH 2,357,356 4,210,300
— Unsecured — K18 16,000 436,400
Less: current portion of non-current borrowings & : FEBNEA{E FRRIBNEAZE 7> (10,554,472) (6,522,697)
2,958,774 11,850,522
Borrowings included in current liabilities: st AR B ABHER :
Bank borrowings $R17& %
- Secured — B#E# 20,000 102,000
Other borrowings E th f& 5%
- Secured — HiEH#H - 130,500
— Unsecured — fE#3# - 3,000
Senior notes B 7L 2 & 2,875,477 2,582,353
Current portion of non-current borrowings FEBNER{& Zk &9 BN EA=E 7> 10,554,472 6,522,697
13,449,949 9,340,550
Total borrowings f& X #48 16,408,723 21,191,072

%2020&12% » AN R EEITHR2022F12
MRS EA2008 B THELE
%%((2022@%5%%}%) 0 20225 B HRE

In December 2020, the Company issued senior notes with a
principal amount of USD200 million due in December 2022 (the
“2022 Senior Notes 1”). The 2022 Senior Notes |, bearing interest

at a fixed rate of 9.95% per annum with interest payable semi- BURETFFRI.95%:1 5 - FXERH
annually in arrears, matured on 3 December 2022. RENAF—RFIE - BER20229F12 A3H F
By o
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30. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

In January 2021, the Company issued senior notes with a principal
amount of USD150 million due in December 2022 (the “2022
Senior Notes II”). The 2022 Senior Notes Il, bearing interest at a
fixed rate of 9.95% per annum with interest payable semi-annually
in arrears, matured on 3 December 2022.

The above notes were consolidated and formed into a single class
on 13 January 2021.

On 9 December 2022, sufficient votes were obtained by the
Company to further proceed with the restructuring support
agreement by a vote of creditors of the senior notes. On 15
December 2023, the Company announced that the restructuring
support agreement was not proceed as scheduled.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company has not repaid the last
tranche of interest and principal of the above mentioned senior
notes. The unpaid principal amount and accrued interest are
US$350,000,000 and US$17,413,000, respectively.

In additions, as at 31 December 2023, certain bank borrowings
and other borrowings of the Group with the principal balance
of RMB2,219,550,000 became cross-default and repayable on
demand under the circumstances that the unpaid senior notes as
described above. Accordingly, the above-mentioned borrowings
are classified as current liabilities in the consolidated financial
positions of the Group.

The Group’s bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2023
of RMB13,5633,000 (2022: RMB18,608,719,000) were secured
by certain own-used properties, land use rights, investment
properties, properties under development and completed
properties held for sale of the Group with total carrying values
of RMB20,314,986,000 (2022: RMB34,514,929,000). The
Company’s equity interests in certain subsidiaries were pledged as
security for borrowing of the Group at 31 December 2023.

e R HRAR N

30. & =X (#%)

M2021F1H » RRAIEITHR20224F12
AEHMAEERIG0EBETNELE
1 ([2022F BAEZEI) - 2022F BEE
BINREEEMEKRI.O5%:TE - B ERNH
REM—RFE - ER2022F12 A3H 3|
H o

LA FZE 202151 A13B A 0t Mk &
— 85 -

R2022F 1290 - BBELEEEEA
BERR ARAESRHAZHENIFL
E—DETEAESIFE - R2023F12 A
158 » RA A E B iR s a8
HETT o

M2023%F12H31 8 + AAGRIREN LiE
EREBRZHE-BRERERE - RIAXE
& EEF B 9 5l /350,000,000 7T &
17,413,000 T °

AN - 2023128318 » AEB AL
A R%2,219,550,0007T K& TERITIER
REMERE LARFEEZENERLT
RNEHNBEREREN - Bt - LilifE
FRAEBGEEMBRATIERREDE

f& °

AEBEMN2023F12A31HMRIT R EM
B AR#13,5633,0007T (20224 © AR
#18,608,719,0007T) * JYHAKREEA
R*20,314,986,0007T (20224 : AR
34,514,929,00070) MASEE TERAY
¥ TR REVME RAEPYE
REEL SRR TYEERT - R2023F
12A31H * A QFEE THE QR A RE
ERAEREBER ERER -
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30.

262 DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

BB R

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Certain group companies in the PRC have entered into fund
arrangements with trust companies and assets management
companies, respectively, pursuant to which these financial
institutions raised funds and injected them to the group
companies. Certain equity interests of the group companies were
held by the financial institutions as collateral of which the Group
is obligated to redeem at predetermined prices. The funds bear
fixed interest rates and have fixed repayment terms. Thus, the
Group did not derecognise its equity interests in the subject group
companies but treated the fund arrangements as other borrowings
in the consolidated financial statements.

(a) The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest-rate
changes and the contract